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Welcome to Dechra
Group Strategy

e To sustain growth from our core businesses
e To continue to develop our veterinary pharmaceutical portfolio
e To increase our pharmaceutical penetration into international markets
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Dechra Pharmaceuticals PLG
Annual Report and Accounts for the year ended 30 June 2003

Financial Highlights

+20% +33%

Revenue Adjusted Profit Profit Before
£ mitlion Before Taxation
Taxation* £ milhon
£ million
04 05 06 07 08 04 05 06 07 08
% 10%
+23% + °
Adjusted Earnings Dividend
Earnings per Share per Share
per Share* penca pence
pence
04 05 06 07 08 G4 05 OB O7 08 G4 05 06 07 08
* Before VetXX® rationalisation costs and amortisation of acquired intangibles
Key Developments
® Robust organic growth in operating profit ® Key pharmaceuticals continue to Increase
® VetXX acquisttion fully integrated and market penetration
performing 1n line with expectations ® NVS® grew ahead of strong market
@® Product development progressing to growth
schedule ® Dales continues to show good growth

® Vetory/® US FDA compliance notification
received with US faunch scheduled for
January 2009

www.dechra.com
stock code DPH
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Dechra Pharmaceuticats PLC
Annual Report and Accounts for the year enced 30 June 2008

Operational Review

Pharmaceuticals Division

DVP EU grew strongly throughout the financial year. Both the
existing UK and export businesses and the six months’ revenue
from VetXX contributed to this performance,

Pharmaceuticals Share of Total Share of Adjusted
Revenue Group Revenue Operating Profit

uwp104% 17% 50%

to £54.3m (2007 £26 7m)

Dechra Veterinary Products (“DVP”)

Marketing and development of licensed branded pharmaceuticals
to the vetennary profession worldwide

Dales Pharmaceuticals {“Dales”)

Licensed manufacturer of veterinary and human pharmaceuticals for DVP and third
party customers
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Performance
® KEY PRODUCTS CONTINUE o)
TO GROW STRONGLY up 7 6 A)
® SIGNIFICANT INCREASE IN US
Adjusted operating
REVENUE profit

£m

® EXCELLENT PERFORMANCE
FROM DALES - OPERATING PROFIT
UP 36%

Milestones

® Successful integration of VetxXX

® Strong EU growth of Vetory/ and Felimazole®

® Good market penetration by new genenc launches in UK
® Pharmaderm range integrated into US operation

Milestones

® Further new third party contracts gained

® Successful ‘go live’ on new Oracle integrated IT system
® Further progress on quality management systems

www.dechra.com
stock code DPH
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Dechra Phammaceuticais PLC

Annual Repart and Accounts tor the year ended 30 June 2008

Operational Review

Fharmaceuticals Division continued

Dechra Veterinary Products operates in the USA
and ten European countries Norway, Denmark,
Finland, Sweden, the Netherlands, Spatn,
Portugal, France, Ireland and the UK.

Product Type

Diets:

Speciirc® Ife-stage diets for dogs and cats
These are a range of vetennary only diets for
heafihy dogs and cats

Specific therapeutic diets for dogs and cats
These are a range of diets specifically targeted to
assist In the management of clirnical condtions
such as kidney problems, heart prablems and
allerges

Spectfic

Global Operations

freland

UK

USA

Partugal

Pharmaceuticals:

Canaural® — first Ine treatment for otitis externa
in the cat and dog i the UK

CleanAural® — |leading ear cleaning product

Equipalazone® — the lsading non-steroidal antr-
inflammatory drug (NSAID) for the treatrment of
musculoskeletal disorders in the horse

Felimazole — the first vetennary licensed
product for the treatment of feline hyperthyroidism

Fuciderm® — for the treatment of suface Canaural
pyoderma in the dog

Equipalazone

France
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Norway Finland

Sweden

—O 0 Denmark

Neotherlands

Spain

A number of our products are also marketed by partners
worldwide into important territories, including Germany,
Italy, Canada, Australia and Japan. We have also started
to develop relationships and have initial sales within
Eastern Europe.

Annualised Revenue by Product Type

Fucrthalmic® Vet — the onty lcensed
product for the treatment of conjunctatis Instruments and
associated with staphyiococcal nfections consumables
Malaseb® — the only UK licensed medicated 5 o/o
shampoo for cats and dogs
Manufactunng
The Vetivex® range of nfusion fiuds — 1 2 o /
Fomazols  "0ENSed for the traatment of defrydration (1]
Vetaryl — a novel and patented product for
the freatment of Cushing's Disease {excess
corlisol or hyperadrenocoricism) in gogs
Diets.
0/
26%
Fucithalmc
Vetory!

Pharmaceuticals

53%

Care’

4%

www dechra.com
stock code DPH
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Dechra Pharmaceuticals PLC
Annual Report and Accounts for the year ended 30 June 2008

Operational Review

Services Division

NVS services both companion animal and livestock practices and
agricultural merchants. As with other divisions within Dechra, NVS
benefits from the good year-on-year growth in the veterinary market
which has seen growth of approximately 10% in the year.

Services Revenue Share of Total Group Share of Adjusted
Revenue Operating Profit

up 11 °/o 83(y0 500/0

to £259.4m (2007 £234 2m)

National Veterinary Services (“NVS”)

UK market leader in the supply of pharmaceuticals and added value services to the
veteninary profession, including management information systems and consumer
and internet services

NationWide Laboratories (“NWL"”)

Multi-disciplined independent cormmercial veterinary laboratory

Cambridge Specialist Laboratory Services (“CSLS”)

Primary care and secondary referral specialist veterinary immunoassay laboratory
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Performance

® STRONG SALES PERFORMANCE
@ INCREASE IN MARKET SHARE

® IMPROVED OPERATING MARGIN

Milestones
® ANVS outperforms the market

up 12%

Adjusted operating
profit
£m

® Successful cold chain distribution of Blue Tongue vaccine
® Ganed customers In new distribution channels

Milestones

® |ntegrated Leeds Vetennary Laboratones (“LVL™)

® 23% Increase In revenue

® Allervet® allergy testing exceeds expectations

www.dechra.com
stock code DPH
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Dechra Pharmaceuticals PLC
Annual Report and Accounts tor the year ended 30 June 2008

Chairman’s Statement

| am pleased to report an excelient performance by the Group
during the penod We have achieved good growth in revenue and
profitability from our UK businesses, increased market share at
NS, significantly increased US revenues, achieved further
penstration of our products in Europe and launched new
products in the UK Furthermore, we have made an acquisition,
VelXX Holdings A/S (“VetXX™), which matenally increases our
pharmaceutical portfolo and provides a strong Eurcpean
Tootprint to market the enlarged product range and future
developed preducts The development of cur own branded
veternary pharmaceutical portfolio 1s progressing to schedule,
with the launch of a key product for the LS market, Vetory,
planned for January 2009

Financial Highlights
Group revenue mcreased 19 9% from £253 & million to
£304 4 million

Adusted operating profit ncreased by 38 0% to £19 1 mdlion
(2007 £13 9 milion} Adjusted profit before taxation rose 33 3% to
£16 9 mifion 2007 £12 6 milhon) Operating profit after deducting
rationalisation costs and amertisation of acquired intangbles was
£14 1 milion (2007 £33 8 milion) Profit before taxation on the
same basis was 11 7 milion (2007 £12 & million)

Adjusted basic earmnings per share was 20 81p, up 23 2% from
the 16 89p achieved in 2007 Earnings per share after
ratonalisation costs and amortisation of acqured intangibles was

“We have achieved good growth in revenue and profitability from our
UK businesses, increased market share at National Veterinary Services,
significantly increased US revenues, achieved further penetration of
our products in Europe and launched new products in the UK.”

08




Dechra Pharmaceuticals PLC
Annual Report and Accounts for the year ended 30 Juns 2008

14 20p (2007 16 86p}

Total cash investment in product devefopment was £3 7 millicn
(2007 £3 3 milion), of which £2 4 milien was charged to the
income statement (2007 £1 6 milion)

Cash flow continued to be strong with cash flow from operations
being 114% of operating profit As at 30 June 2008, the Group
had net barrowings of £27 0 million compared to net funds of

£1 0 milion at 3¢ June 2007, the Increase bemng the new
borrowings taken out to partially fund the acquisition of VetXX

Net debt 1o EBITDA on an adjusted basis was 1 3 tmes Interest
cover on adjusted operating profit was 8 4 times

Further detads are contained in the Business Review

Dividend

In ine with cur progressive dvidend policy and our confidenca in
the business, the Dwectors are recommending an increase in the
final dividend to 5 50p per share (2007 5 00p per share} This,
together with the intenm dividend of 2 75p per share {2007

2 50p per share) makes a total dwidend for the year ot 8 25p per
share {2007 7 50p per share), a 10% increase

The total dwvidend 1s covered 2 0 times by profit after taxabion but
after agding back amortisation of acquired intangibles

The final dwidend, wihuch s subject to Shareholder approval at
our Annual General Meeting 1o be held on Fniday 7 November
2008, will be pard on 12 December 2008 to Sharshelders on the

www dechra.com
steck code DPH

Register at 14 Novernber 2008

People

On behalf of the Board and all our Shareholders | would ke to
welcome all VetxX and other new employeses to the Group

| would also fike to thank alt employees for ther hard work,
dedicaticn and innovation i contnbuting to our successful year

Prospects

The Group s current trading 1s in line with the Board's
expectations International companion animal markets continue
to grow, our core businesses continug to parform well, our
acquisition, VetxXX, is meeting our expectatons, and our key
products continue to show good growth The business will be
further enhanced with new product introductons, particularly
the launch of Vetory! and Felmazale in the US in the second half
of the 2008 financial year We therefore reman confident in

our future

Michael Retimohd
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Dechra Pharmaceuticals PLC
Annual Report and Accounts tor the year endsd 30 June 2008

Directors’ Business Review

The Business and its Markets

Dechra Pharmaceuticals PLC (*Dechra”) operates under two
Dvisions, Pharmaceuticals and Services The Pharmaceuticals
Division operates intarnationally and 1s unigue in having its sole
area of specialisation in companion animal products The
Services Drasion serves UK vetennary practices in both the
companicn animal and livestock sectors

Following the acguisition of VetXX in January 2008 {which i1z
detaled later n thes review), the Group now employs 970 people
and operates out of 11 countnes

The vetennary market for comparson arumal products 1s
dominated by North Amenca, Waestern Europe and Japan Kay
dnvers within the companion amimal market are the increasing
medical and surgical capatiliies of veterinary surgeons,
increased life expectancy of pets and ultimately the consumer's
passion for therr animals

The North Amerncan, Western European and Japanese markets
are the most significant companion animal markets in the world,
with pet ownership in over 50% of households and with a fugh
level of spend per animal The tabls on the following page
provides detads of companion arumal poputations in the markets
in which Dechra currently has a sales and marketing operation

“Following the acquisition of VetXX in January 2008, the Group
now employs 970 people and operates out of 11 countries.”
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Number of
employees

As at 30 June
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Companlon Animal Populations In Dechra Territories

Dogs Cats Horses
Territory (milions) {millons) {milliens)
USA 75 82 10
France 8 10 1
UK and Ireland 8 84 1
Spain 55 4 06
Scandinavia 21 31 (0F+]
Netherands 2 4 04

Dechra currently markets products through partners and has
products in registration in several other important small animal
markets, the most significant of which are detaled balow

Companion Animal Populations in important
Non-Subsidiary Countries

Bogs Cats Horses
Termtory {milions) rmillions) {milkons)
Japan 125 12 01
Itaty 69 61 03
Canada 6 8 1
Germany 53 79 1
Australia 37 24 12

The UK veterinary market, which still represents the megonty of
Dechra’s overall sales, has consistently outperformed the Retal
Prices Index over the last ten years of market growth

Pharmaceutical Product Development
Strategy

The Group focuses on sohd organic growth within its
Pharmaceuticals and Services Dimvisions However, the key
strategic focus which is now delivering excellent growth and wall
provide significant revenuss in the future, 1s through the
development and acquisition of our own branded vetennary
pharmaceutical portfolio of both novel and generc products and
the licensing of these key products into international markets
Qur product development 1s focused entirely on prescription only
vetennary medicines for dogs, cats and horses, with our main
area of specialisation being within critical care, endocrnnology,
denmatology and ophthalmology Most of our projects utdise
existing pharmaceutical entities that are typically used within the
human market and therefore the majonty of preduct creation 1s
development and not research based

11
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Dechra Pharmaceuticals PLC
Annual Report and Accounts tor the year ended 30 June 2008

Directors’ Business Review

Legislation

There ars three pieces of legislation that the Directors believe
have bean mplemented to encourage development of
specialised vatarnary products nto markets that are small relative
to human pharmaceutical sales

® The “Cascade Legsslation™ The basic prnciple of this EU
legisiation 1s that the vetennary surgeon must prescnbe a
vetennary licensed product abeve any other aiternative
Tharefore, any products licensed specifically for animals must
pe used instead of a human ethical or genenc product,
irraspective of price,

® EUlaw gives a novel product ten years' protection from
genenc cormpetitors, respective of its patent status, and

e The US FDA (*Food and Drug Administration”) Center for
Veterinary Medicine prowvides five years’ protection from
genenc competitors for the first approval of a new
pharmaceutical, irespective of its patent status Subsequent
approvals receve three years' protection

Dechra considers this legislation to be favourable towards its
strategy and 1s essential n providing safe, efficacious proeducts
for armimal welfare

12

Key Strengths
The Errectors belisve that the Group has the exceptional skils
and expertise that are necessary for deliverng its strategy

® The recognition of opportunimes for specialised and niche
phamaceutcal products for the vetennary market achieved
through knowledge gained from the Group’s strong market
pastion,

e In-house formulation of products into preparations suitable
for the target species,

¢ International experience and proven track record of
regulatory and license delivery,

e Successful design and management of international chncal
field tnals,

¢ Industry leading vetennary and commercial personnel
throughout the Group, and

® Wa have assembled scientfic agvisory boards compnsing
Intermational key opinion leaders

Dechra has a proven track record of delivenng licensed producis

by working closely with regulatary authortties and by complying
with the highest standards Increased nvastmeant in product
development capabilities has been made throughout the year
being reported, and the Directors are planning for a further
ncrease in development spend an the new financial year
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Key Products and Specialisations
Dermatology -~ Total annuallsed sales £10.1 million
With the acguisition of the VetXX business Dechra has become a
leading vetennary supplier n dermataological treatments

Canaural was first icensed n 1975 and 1s still the leading first kne
treatment for otitis externa in the cat and dog in the UK
Canaural, which 1s now registered in 25 countnes and generates
annual revenues of £3 9 mdlion can also be used in conunction
with our leading ear cleaning product CleanAural which
generates a further ££1 3 milion of revenues annually

Fuciderm, hcensed in 1995, 1s the only licensed product for the
treatment of surface pyoderma n the dog, such as acute moist
dermatitis and intertrge It 1s a key product within our
dermatology range, selling into 23 countnes, generating annual
sales of £2 7 mifron

Malaseb was first bcensed in 1996 and 15 still the only UK
lcensed medicated shampoo for cats and dogs It 1s used to
treat skin diseases caused by malassezia and staphylococcal
infechions The current annual product sales are £1 8 million Its
anticipated that there 1s a significant growth opportumty for the
product as it has been submitted for registration in saveral new
European terntones

Endocnnology — Total annualised sales £9.2 million
Endocnne disorders are a key focus for the business with a
number of icensed preducts treating a range of chronic
diseases The two leading brands are Vistoryl and Felimazole

Viatoryi 1s a novel and patented product for the treatment of
Cushing's Dissase (excess cortiscd or hyperadrenocorticism) in
dogs It 1s marketed within the EU n 21 temitenes and 1s the only
recognised licensed efficacious vetennary product for the
treatment of Cushing's Disease around the world Launched in
the UK on a provisional marketing authonsation in September
2001, Vetoryl has since achieved full approval in the EU and has
consistently Increased market penstration |n the USA 1t 15 also
sold under an FDA waver scheme and through spectal import
schemes Into other termtones such as Canada and Australa
Global revenues for Vetory! In the twelve months were

£5 1 millien

Felimazole is the first vetennary icensed product for the treatment
of feline hyperthyroidism It competes in the world's markets
aganst human equivalents, howaver, the Cascade Legislation
{see Legistation) has supporied s growth Felmazole receved
marketng approval for the UK in 2002 and was approved in the
EU in 2005 Global revenues for Felmazole in the 12 months
were £3 9 million

www.dechra.com
stock code DPH

Equine Medicine — Total annualised sales £5.7 million
We have a wide range of 14 licensed products supponing the
equine veternanan The lead product with the highest sales 1s
Equipalazene

Equipaiazone was first lcensed in a sachet presentation in 1972
and subsequently in a paste and injection It 1s still the leading
non-steroidal anti-inflammatary drug {(NSAID) for the treatment of
musculoskelatal disorders, such as lameness due to acute and
chronk faminits, in the horse

Ophthalmology — Total annualised sales £2.95 million
Ophthalmology 15 a highly spacialised area of vetennary madicing
wherg we have a number of leading products including icensec
pharmaceuticals, unlicensed care products and mstrumenis

Fucithalmic Vet, Iicensed in 1893, 15 the only hcensed product
avalable for the treatment of conjunctivitis associated with
staphylococcal infections It 1s hughly effective because of its
unique sustaned release formulation that ensures prolonged
retention within the eye It 1s currently licensed in 21 countnes
worldwide and delivers sales of £2 5 millon
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Dechra Pharmaceuticals PLC
Annual Report and Accounts tor the year ended 30 June 2008

Directors’ Business Review

Criticat Care — Total annuallsed sales £2.0 million
Dechra has a wide range of products that support emergency
medicine including licensed pharmaceuticals, wound treatments,
consumables and instruments The leading range of products is
the Vetvex brand

The Vetvex range of infusion fluds are Iicensed tor the treatment
of dehydration They are widely used to meet normal fluid and
electrolyte requirements when fluids cannot be given orally, such
as dunng surgery The licenses were purchased from lvex Lid, a
subsidiary of Gambro BCT Inc, in 2005 Since this time, sales
have grown year on year and currently deliver revenue of

£1 7 million The products are only icensed for sale n the UK
and Ireland

Development Team

We have a highty skilled development team of 20 people located
in the United Kingdem, Denmark and the United States in the
year we have added two scientists to the pharmaceutical
development laboratory located at our manufacturing facihty in
Skipton, nvested in new equipment and have six new regulatory
staff through the agquisition of VetXX This tearmn has now been
fully integrated into Dechra We are currently in the process of
adding further skifed personnel nto this team as we continue to
identify and develop new products Dunng the year we acquired
and successfully implemented a new pharmacoviglance
monitoring and reporting database

14

Development Update

It 1s pleasing tc report that we have receved notification of
complanca for all parts of the Vetorny! USA application from
the FDA An administration process has now commenced
and the product will be launched at the North Amencan
Veternary Conference in Flonda in January 2009

e We continue to make satisfactory progress in our Vetond
applications for Japan, Canada and Austraha

o \Vetoryl has been approved in Swilzerland and 1s being
marketed by our partner, Vetermara

& The completed dossier for Fefmazole for the US market has

peen submitted and we have subsequently had notification of

approval of the CMC and safety sections We remain very
confident as to the progress of the efficacy section and
anticipate being N a positicn to receive approvai for this
product in the first half of the next catendar year

e Thal work for Fquidone® for the US market is almost
completed and has provided excellent results

o Ressarch into other potentially lucrative applications for
Eqiudone has continued at two US universities, intial tnat
results for one therapeutic mdication are very positive

e Ovupiant® has been approved and marketing commenced in
Germany, Spain, France, Ireland, ltaly and the Netherdands

® Prednidale 25, a new dosage form of an existing product,
has been approved and launched within the United Kingdom

e Intraepicaine®, one of our specialist equine products, has
been registered and marketed inte lreland

& Vitivex No 1 has been approved in Ireland and will be
marketed scon

o Atpam®, a UK branded genenc, has been approved in
partnership with the markating authonsation holders,
Eurovet, and has been launched in the UK

e Dossiers for two new significant genenc products have been
submitted for approval

tn addition to the above activities, the Group has recognised
other novel and genenc development opportunities which have
satisfied our internal assessment critena resuling in
commencement of development programmes
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Acquisition

VotXX

In Becember 2007 we announced the acquisition of Vet for
£65 2 mullon ncluding expenses The acquisition wag made on a
cash and deht-free basis and was funded by way of a new debt
faciiity and the placing and open offer of 11,624,544 new
ordinary shares raising ©22 7 mullion net of expenses

VetXX s a developer, producer and marketer of companion
animal vetennary products to vetennary professionals in ten
Eurcpean countries The acquisition has provided Dechra with a
strong European footprnt and has materially increased Dechra's
range of kcensed vetennary products It also provides Dechra
with a sales and distnbution network to market the enlarged
product range and future developed products to vetennary
practices and wholesalers within eight European countrigs in
addition to the UK and Ireland in which Dechra already operated

www.dechra.com
stock code DPH

Tha business has now been successfully integrated nto Dechra
and expected synergies have been rezlised by the full integration
of ther UK sales and marketing function into cur existing
operation and by the closure of ther administration head office n
Copenhagen The French subsidiary has already been rebranded
as Dechra with the remainder of the organisation beng
rebranded within the next six months Further information 1s
provided on the enlarged sales and marketing operation later in
this revew
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Directors’ Business Review

Pharmaceuticals Division

QOur Pharmaceuticals Division comprises Dechra Vetennary
Products Europe (“DVP EU"), Dechra Vetennary Products USA
{'DVP USA"), and Dales Pharmaceuticals

Dechra Veterinary Products EU

OVP EU, located in Shrewsbury, England and Uldum, Denmark,
employs 212 people The business markets and sells our own
branded, icensed vetennary pharmaceuticals within ten
European counines and manages the relationships with aur
worldwide marketing partners

Sales Personnel

France 16 Holland 4
UK 14 Norway 4
Span 8 Firdand 3
Denmark 5 Portugal 1
Sweden 4 Eire 1

The marketing departrment, which consists of over 20 people, 1s
coordinated fram the UK, however, all major temtones have ther
own local marketing expertise

In addition ta the pharmaceuticals cuthned earher in this report
which represent 53% of annualised drasional sales, the team also
markets the vetermary exclusive range of specialist diets Specific,
which represents 26% of annualised drnesional turnover and also
a range of unlicensed products branded as the Care range,
which represents 4%

16

“DVP EU, located in Shrewsbury, England and
Uldum, Denmark, employs 212 people. The
business markets and sells our own branded,
hcensed veterinary pharmacedticals within ten
European countries and manages the relatronships

with our worldwide marketing partners.”

# There are two rmamn pet diet product ranges which ara sold
exclusively thraugh vetennary practices, these being Specific
for dogs and Specific for cats Each range offers tallored life-
stage and therapeutc diets The therapeutic products
represent approximately 70% of diet sales and sesk to
address :ssues such as diabetes, arthntis, uninary, kicney,
Iiver and heart problems

® The Care range has two key products, CleanAwral and
Neutrale™ CleanAuralis a no sting ear cleaner for frequent
uss for ears producing excess wax Neuirale s a range of
speciahist shampoos for skin conditions In dogs

Additionally we have a number of marketing agreements with
Virbac Inc to market Thyroxyl wathin the UK and lreland, with
Eurovet to market Domidine®, Sedator® and Anpam in the UK
and Ireland, wath Bicpure to market Oxyglobn® within the EU and
with Peptech to market Ovuplant in the EU
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A number of our products are also marketed by partners
worlcwide Into important terntories including Germany Italy
Canada, Australia and Japan We have also started to develop
relationships and have inthial sales within Easten Europe

Since the acquisiion of YetXX we have transferred Equipalazone
Powdar from cur previous marketing partner into Dechra livery
and are successfully marketing the product through our
subsidiary in France and through a new partner in Garmany

Anumber of new and existing Dechra products will be launched
into our EU subsidianes throughout the next 12 months

DVP EU, as cuthned in the Financial Review, grew strongly
throughout the financial year Both the existing UK and export
businesses and the six months’ revenue from Vetd( contributed
o this performance

Foliowing the acquisiion of VetXX, a number of management
changes have been implemented Ed Torr, previously the Group's
Development Director and Main Board member, has been
appointed Managing Director of DVP EU  Cites Coley, previously
DVP UK Country Manager, 1s now Eurcpean Pharmaceutical

www.dechra com
stock code DPH

Sales and Export Director The remainder of the DVP EU
operating board compnses three of the retained key VetXX staff,
Carsten Jeppesen, Chigf of Logistics, Jergen Eker, Chisf
Financial Officer, and Roeland Meljers, Senior Vice-Prastdent who
has direct responsibility for the Spectfic det range We are also
pleased to have retained the VetXX Country Managers who form
the basis of the senicr management team Bob Parmenter, who
has over 40 years' veternary ncustry expenence and an
excellent track record, has been appointed as Managing Director
for the UK which 1s currently the fargest terntory and represents
30% of the Pharmaceutical Division's annualised sales

17
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Directors’ Business Review
Pharmaceuticals Division continued

Dechra Veterinary Products USA

This business, employing seven people, was establshed in 2005
and 1s located in Kansas City, USA, a city in which a significant
number of US animal health businesses are located The
business currently markets seven licensed vetennary ophthalmic,
otic and dermatological products, the supply and marketing
nghts of this range were acquired In May 2007 We have
successfully increased market share and sales of these products
throughout the year Dunng the year we have also secured two
new preducts through partrerships with Biopure to market
Oxyglobim, a companion animal blood substitute, and with
Orthogen to market Irap, an orthopaedic treatment for horses

The imrainent launch of Vietoryl and Felmazofe intc the US
market will significantly increase our US revenues, thersfore, we
are in the process of strengthening our operation A new Head of
Technical Services, Dr Dana Ferlig, a Sales and Marketing
Director, Doug Hubert, and an Equing Specialist, Bryan Toliver,
have already been appointed We are now in the process of
recruiling a sales team with a further eight appointments
antictpated pnor to the end of the calendar year The
adminustration and technical services dapartments will also be
strengthened Logistics and accounts are currently cutsourced
with estabiished partners

The US market remains strategically significant to Dechra, being
approximately ten tmes the size of our curent largest market,
the UK New products are under development and opportunities
are being reviewed to further strengthen our US portfolio

“The US market remains
strategically significant to
Dechra, being approximately
ten times the size of our
current largest market, the
UK. New products are under
development and
opportunities are being
reviewed to further
strengthen our US portfolo.”
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“We have received notification of compliance for
all parts of the Vetoryl USA application from the
FDA. An administration process has now
commenced and the product will be launched at
the North American Veterinary Conference in
Florida in January 2009.”
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Dales

Dalss, located in Skipton, England and employing 193 pecple, 1s
a fully Medicines and Healthcare Regulatory Agency (“MHRAT)
approved phammaceutical manufacturer with muiti-competence in
both scale and dose form  Dales manufactures the vast majonty of
our own branded Yicensed pharmaceutical products, which are
marketed through DVP, but also denves approxmately 50% of
revenues from third party toll manufacture, gredominantly for
human pharmaceutical comparies This 1s Dechra's anly
significant source of revenue not denved from the veternary
market

Dates has had an excellent year with increased production of our
own licensed products and from growth i third party sales Third

“Dales has had an excellent
year with increased
production of our own
licensed products and from
growth in third party sales.”

www.dechra com
stock code DPH

party business continues to be attracted from new and existing
customers The business has also continued to benefit from
greater efficiency and productivity as we budd upon the quality
systems implemented last year This had been enhanced by the
successful “go Ive" of a new IT platform, Oracle The
management team has been strengthened with the appomntment
of a new Quality Director, Andrew Parkinson, and a
Manufactunng Manager, Emest Ukachu

Pharmaceutcal manufacturing 1s also camed out at the VeiXX
Uldum, Denmark facility where Malaseh, the Care range and a
number of msnor products are currently manufactured Potential
synergies with Dales and improved capacity utihsation
opportuntias are being explored
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Directors’ Business Review

Services Division

Our Services Division compnses National Vetennary Serices,
NationWide Laboratones and Cambndgs Specialist Lahoratory
Services

NVS

NVS, located in Stoke-on-Trent, England, employing 473 people,
15 the UK market leader, as measured in terms of market share, in
the supply and distnbution of veteninary products tc vetennary
practices and other appraved outlets NVS competes with two
maor full ine competitors on the UK mainland, Centaur Serices
and Dunlop, bath of which are under Amencan ownership

NVS stocks a range of over 14,000 products including
pharmaceuticals, pet products, consumables and accessores
NVS has also developed a range of IT solutions for vetennary
practices which are branded Vietcom?® Vetcom's principal
objective 1$ 1o collect orders electrenically Approximately 83% of
NVS orders amve automaticalty with no human input required
This I1s considered to be a mz,cr advantage to our customers and
also contnbutes to our low operating costs as, with over 35,000
nvoiced nes per working day, significantly ncreased numbers of
people would be required to handle this busmess manually NVS
distnbutes te 1 800 customers dally utlising its own flest of vans
and HGVs The centralised inventory in Stoke-on-Trent 1s picked
and packed throughout the afterncon and evening and then
distributed overnight to trunking depots by HGVs on large
tralers Van drivers are then employed locally at these depots
whe distnbute the goods to the customers NVS operates cn a
Sunday untd Thursday shift which allows customers to place
orders up until 7 00 pm Monday to Thursday and any time over
the weekend up to 10 00 am on Sunday for a next working

day delivery

20

NVS services both companion animal and vestock practices and
agncultural merchants As with other dvisions within Dechra,
NVS benefits from the good year-on-year growth in the veternary
market which has seen growth of approximataly 10% in the year
{see The Business and its Markets)
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“NVS is the UK market leader, as measured in terms of market
share, in the supply and distnbution of veternnary products to
veterinary practices and other approved outlets.”

A strong sales performance from NVS, which has outperformed with whom ANVS has goed fong terrn refationships Whilst NVS
the market, can be attnbuted to the successful cold chain has been subject to significant fuel and utilly cost increases,
distnbution of Blue Tongue vaccine, volume growth from existing improved efficiency, solid control of discounts ofiered, good cost
practices and groups and by new business gains The market control and market share gains have all contnbuted to the

has seen further consobdation of vetennary practces by groups performance

www dechra.com
stock code DPH
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Directors’ Business Review
Services Division continued

“NWL operates out of three locations,
Poutton-le-Fylde, Leeds and Swanscombe,
and employs 80 people.”

22

Laboratories

NWL operates out of threa locations, Poulton-le-Fylde, Leeds
and Swanscombe, and employs 80 pecple As first referral
vatennary laboratones, they provide histology, pathology,
haematology, chemistry and microbiology services to vetennary
practices Whilst a certain amount of simple chermistry 1s
performed at vetennary practices, nearly all vetennary practices
will outsource more agdvanced analylical tests, often requinng
expert interpretation of results We consider NWL to offer the
highest level of service within this sector We were the first
vetennary laboratory to gain UKAS {United Kingdom
Accreditation Service) approval NWL also offers other services
such as Allgrvet, a pet and equine allargy tesiing prograsnme
Allervet revenuss have exceeded our expectations during the
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yaar

Leeds Veterinary Laboratores, which was acquired in Apri 2007,
has now been fully integrated into NWL We have invested n
LVLs premises In increasing laboratory capacity and also in new
equipment

Qverail, the labcratory revenues have seen a good Increase
however, the increased infrastructure costs have resutted in a

www.dechra.com
stock cade DPH

profit performance shghtly below last year

CSLS, located in Sawston, England, employs seven people It
operates as a first and second referral laboratory, with a key area
of expertise baing endocrinology The second referral work, 1 e
provding services for NWL and some of NWL's competitors, 1s
mannly derived from a key area of speciaiisation in radio-immuno
assays The business also provides precise assays which support
the dosage regirmes and patient monitoring of our key products,
Vetoryl Capsules and Felimazole Tablets CSLS has increased
sales and improved profitability during the year

23
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Directors’ Business Review

Key Performance Indicators

2008 2007
£'000 £'000
Revenue — pharmaceuiicals 54,302 26,648
— services 259,363 234,207
— nter-dmvision (9,294) {7 052)
Total revenue 304,371 253,803
Adjusted operating profit before product development cost 21,550 15,521
Product development cost (2,408) (1,845)
Adjusted operating profit 19,142 TS,B?G
._Adjustea oper};{ﬂr{émmarganm o T T o T - ) T B B T
— Before product development cost 71% 6 1%
- After product development cost 63% 55%
Cash conversion rate 114% 103%
Geanng (i} 27 3% (3 5%)
Return on capital employed (pre-tax) 23 3% 37 5%
Revenue per employee 342 340
Inventory days (i} 43 42
Recevabtes days (i) 39 40
Financilal Ratios
Adjusted interest cover 8 4 times 11 3 times
Effectve tax rate 28 9% 29 9%
Dvdend cover (before amertisation of acquired intangtbles) 2 0 times 2 2tmes

) Geanng s calculated by dwviding net borrowings by the sum of Equity Shareholders’ funds and net borrowings

i} Inventory aays are calculated by determining the number of days' purchases counting back, included in the year end inventory figure

fif} Recevables days ars caiculated by determining the number of days' revenus {adjusted for vatue added tax) counting back, ncluded n the yaar end

recavables figure

Review Of Operating Performance

Group Performance

The financial year was an exciting one for the Group Qur core
businesses produced robust growth and as outined eardier In thig
report the Group was significantly enhanced by the acquisition of
VerXX in January 2008

The following review focuses on adjusted figures (before VetXX
rationaksation costs and amortisation of acguired intangibles) as the
Drectors beleve that these give a clearer indication of underlying
performance

Group revenue increased by 19 9% to £304 4 milkon while adjusted
operating profit, at £19 1 mdlion, was ahead of last year by 38%

Adjusted pre-tax profit was £16 9 million, 33 3% up on lasi year

24

Pharmaceuticals Division

2008 2007
£°000 £'000
Revenus
Own branded
pharmaceuticals 32,136 16,599
Diets 9,915 -
Third party contract
manufactunng 8,677 6,232
Instruments consumables
and equipment 3,574 3,817
Total revenue 54,302 26,648
Adjusted operating profit 10,765 6,102
Adjusted operating margin 18 8% 22 9%
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Revenue from the Phanmaceuticals Division grew by 103 8% to
£54 3 milion, of which £19 0 milion was contnbuted by VetXX

Within own branded pharmaceuncals, our key products Vetaryd,
Felimazole and Equipaiazone continued to show forward momentum
Global revenue from Vietond was £5 1 mifion, 13 1% up on last year
whilst Felmazole grew by 15 6% to £3 9 milhon and Equipalazone
grew by 12 5% to £3 0 million

Of our other key products, the Vetivex range grew by 135% to £17
milhon whilst Canaural, Fuciderm and Fucrhalmic acquired with VetxX'
macde revenue contributions of £1 @ milion, £1 4 milhion and £1 4
milkon respectively in the perod since acgursition

Revenue from our US operation grew from £374,000 to £4 6 milllon

with a full yeat of marketing the Pharmaderm range of products

Revenus from instruments, consumables and equpment fell by 6 4%
to £3 6 rnillion  Thus reflects our decision to reduce the range of
products sold and focus on the kay brands

In the penad pror to acqusihon, the VetxXX Specrfic range had been
in long tarm decline However, In the six months since acquisition,
growth of 4 6% was achieved compared o the equvalent penod

last year

Revenue from third party contract manufactunng grew by 39 2% to
£8 7 million with ihe benefit of new contracts being realised

Product development expenditure charged 1o the income siatement
was £2 4 million, a 46 4% increase compared to last year A further
£1 3 mitlion of development expenditure was capitalised giving a total
cash spend for the year of £3 7 millon compared to £3 3 mulhon last
year In future penods a greater proportion of expenditure will ba
charged to the ncome statement rather than being capstalised

Adjusted operatng profit for the divsion increased by 76 4% from
£6 1 millon to £1C 8 milion, of which £2 7 million was contributed
by Vatxx

www dechra.com
stock code DPH

Services Division

2008 2007

£000 £'000
Revenue
Vetennary wholesaling 253,973 229,840
Laboratones 5,390 4367
Total revenue 258,363 234 207
Adjusted operating profit 10,693 9,525
Adjusted operating margmn 41% 4 1%

Cur veterinary wholasaling business NVS, grew revenue by 10 5%
compared to last year This was ahead of GB market growih as
measured by G of 10 0% Contnued cost eficiencies meant that
NVS Increased Its operating profit by 14 0%

Revenue from our Laboratones business grew by 23 4% over last
year, including a full year contributicn from LVL However, increased
Infrastructure costs meant that the operatng profit achieved was
shghtly below last vear's level

Unaflocated Central Costs

Unallocated central costs sincreased by £0 5 milkon 10 £2 3 nulion
This Increase was due to salanes and an increasa in the charge
relating 1o share-based paymenis

Return on Capital Employed

Retum on capital employed reduced from 37 5% to 23 3% This was
due to the acquisition of VetXX and the signiicant increase in the
asset base ansing tharefrom

Net Finance Expense

The adjusted net finance expense increased from £1 23 milkon to
£2 29 milkon This was a result of the increased borrowsing levels
taken on in January 2008 to partally finance the acquisiion of Vezxx

The adjusted net finance expensa was covered 8 4 tmes by adjusted
operatng profit (2007 11 3 times)

Taxation

The effective tax rate was 28 9%, slightly lower than the standard UK
rate for the year of 29 5% with the reduction in the UK corporation tax
rate from 30% to 28% being effective for three months of the financial
year Thg man item contnbuting ta this undercharge was profits from
our US subsidiary which were offset by trading losses brought

forward
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Directors’ Business Review

Earnings per Share and Dividend
Adjusted sarmngs per share increased by 23 2% to 20 81p

The Board 1s proposing a final dvidend of 5 50p per share which,
when added to the intenm dmdend of 2 75p per share already paid,
gves a lotal dwvdend for the year of 8 25p, a 10 0% increase over the
2007 figure of 7 50p This takes into account the new shares 1ssued
to partally fund the VelXX acquisiion

The total avidend s covered 2 O umes by profit after tax after adding
back amortisation of acquired wiangibles (2007 2 2 times)

Cash Flow

The Group achieved a cash conversion rate (defined as cash
generated from operalions as a percentage of operating profit) of
114 1% {2007 103 5%) If amorusation of acgured intangibles 1s
added hack to operatng profit, than the conversion rate was 94 2%
(2007 103 3%} Dunng the year, the Group made a £1 5 millien
working capital Investment in the US subsidiary and also increased
the inventory of Vetory! Capsules ahead of the US launch

The most significant cash outflow dunng the year was the acquisition
of VetxX The tolal amount paid {including expenses and repayment
of VetX(X’s exssting borrowings) was £65 2 mihon This was funded by
the 1ssue of 11,624,544 new ordinary shares raising £33 7 million net
of Issue costs and a new bank facility

Financial Position at the end of the Year

2008 2007

£'000 £'000
Non-current assets
Intangible assets 80,375 13,089
Property, plant and
equipment 8,224 5,739
Deferred tax assets 1,053 -
Total non-current assets 99,652 13,828
Working capital 17,284 13,264
Current tax kability (2,824) (2 464)
Deferred tax habilites (15,316) (147)
Net (berrowings)/cash (26,997) 1,027
Equity Shareholders’ funds 71,799 30,508
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Equity Shareholders’ funds have more than doubled compared to the
equivalent point last year This reflects the 1ssue of new eguity and
retained proht for the year

The magor addittons to ntangble assets and property plant and
squipment retated to the VetXX acoustion Of the £4 O milton
increase in working capital £©3 0 mition was due to VetXX Inventory
days were 43, shghtly behind the 42 days for last year Recevabile
days showed an improvement from 40 days to 39 days

The large increase 1 the deferred tax hability relates to the intangible
assets recognised on the acquisiion of VetxX

The ncreased borrowings taken on 1o partially fund the VatxXX
acquisiion meant that there were net borrowings at 30 Juns 2008 of
£27 0 million compared 10 net cash at 3¢ June 2007 of £1 Q million
As normal, due to the working capital cycle of the Group, net
horrowings will Increase at the next reporting date of 31 December
2008

Risks and Uncertalnties

Like every business, the Group faces nsks and uncertainties 0 both
its day-to-day operatons and the achievernent of its long term
strategc objectives The Group has well-established procedures for
identifying and controling nsk Significant nsks and precedures 1o
control thern are reviewed at Disional Board Mestings on a monthly
basis and by the Main Board on a quarterly basis

The man potential nsk areas ideniified by the Directors are as follows

Regulatory

Like the human pharmaceutical imdustry, the vetennary industry s
tightly regulated Qur major operational sites are required 1o be
licensed arther by the MHRA or the Home Otfice and our products by
the Vietennary Meadicines Drectorate ("VMD") and the equivalent
overseas agencies Inspections by these bodes are carmed out
reguiarly

All of our new pharmaceutical products are required to be approved
for sals by the relevant Regulatory Authonty in each termtory
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The man regulatory risks faced by the Group are

¢ Failng to operate our businesses n accordance with ther

lcenses resulting N disruplion to cperations,

e Potental reclassdication of major pharmaceutical products from

prescription onty to a lower category causing loss of revenue,

& Falure to satsfy the regulatery authonties on new product
submissions causing product launches to be delayed or aborted,

e Changes to laws or adverse reactions causing threat to existing

products

Competitor Products

The launching of competitor products aganst our key phatmaceutical
brands could have an impact on revenues One such competitor
product has been launched durng the last financial year

Corporate Veterinary Practices
The growth of corporate vetannary practices has been a feature of the
vetennary market over the last few years Most corporates currently

trade with NVS Thea nse of corporate practices provides opportunities
and risks to the Group

The opportunitias anss when a corporate groug acguires vetennary
practices not currently trading with NVS The nsks anse from the
potential Increased buying power of corporates causing pressure on
gross margin  Additionatly, a payment default could cause a matenal
imparment charge

www dechra.com
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General Market Conditions

The overall vetennary market has shown robust growth for many
yaars However, there have in the past been penods when the market
has suffered a sigrificant slowdown This can be caused by external
“shocks” such as BSE or general economic condiions Our past
experience has been that these slowdowns have been short term in
nature However, given the retatively high aperational geanng of AVS,
in particular any future market slowdown could have a matenal effect

on short term profitability

Althougn there 15 no evidence as yet that the current general
economic slowdown has significantly impacted the vetennary market,
such an impact cannot be ruled out if the economic dawnturn 1§

particulary severe

Sumrmary of Risks
The Group has ongoing and embedded procedures in place to
d, as far as possible, mitigate against the above nsk factors

lan Page
Chief Executive

Simon Evans
Growp Finance Director
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Board of Directors

Executive Directors

lan Page

Chief Executive

Aged 47 lan joined the Group's principal trading subsidiary NVS at its
formation in 1889 He was also part of the MBO:in 1997 In 1998 he was
apponted Managing Director at MvS He joined the Boarc in 1997 and
became Group Chief Executive in Novarmber 2001 1an has played a key
role in the development of the Group's growth strategy Pnor 10 joining the:
Cornpany, he gamned extensive knowledge and expenence through vanous
positions he held within the pharmacsutical and vetennary arena

Simon Evans BCom, AGA

Group Flnance Director

Aged 44, Simon qualifiad as a Chartered Accountant in 1888 and spent
seven years at KPMG He joined AVS in 1992 and was apponled Group
Finance Director n 1897 following the MBO He playesd a major role in the
management buy-out of the Group from Lioyds Chemists in 1997 and nts
subsequent listing on the London Stock Exchange in 2000

Ed Torr

Managing Director of Dochra Veterinary Products Europe
Aged 48 £d joined NVS as Sales Director in 1997 and was appointed
Managing Director of Arnolds anw Cales in 1988 He was appointed
Develppiment Director in 2003 and Managang Dvector of Dechra Veterinary
Products Europe i January 2008, following complstion of the acquisthon
of Vet Prior 10 Joining the Group  he worked wathin the arumal
healthcare sector for a numbear of companies Including 1C1, Wellcome and
Alla
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Non-Executive Directors

Laval Agri

Michael Redmond -

Non-Executive Chalrman

Aged 64, Michael joined the Group as a Nan-Executive Directar i Apri
2001 and was apponted Charman in July 2002 Hg has extensive
phamaceutcal industry expenenca having begun his career with Glaxo
and through serior posibons with Schenng Plough Comoration In 1991
he joined Fisons plc and in 1993 was appanted to the Beard as Managing
Director of the Group's Phanmaceuticals Dis.on Michael left Fisons in
1895 following s takeover by PR Michast is Charman of the
Nominaton Committee

Malcolm Diamond MBE *1»

Senlor Non-Executive Director

Aged 59 Malcolm joined the Board In August 2000 Ha s also a Non
Executive Director at the tnicorn AIM VCT 11 investment Fund  His other
Drrectorstups include Charman at CWO bimitec and My Marketing
Lmited |n agdition Maleolm adwises a number of private businesses on
thetr sirategic planning management development programmes and
marketng intatives Malcolm was premously Chief Exacutive at Thlast plc
arole e held for 18 years Maicolm 1s Charman of the Remuneration
Comenittee

Neil Warner BA, FCA, MCT *fe

Non-Executive Director

Aged 55, Ned joined the Board n May 2003 He 1s Finance Director at
Chiorde Group PLC, a postion he has held since 1987 Pror (o this, he
spent six years at Exel PLG (formerty Ocean Group PLC and acquired by
Deutsche Post in Dacember 2008) where he held a number of serior
posts n financial planning, treasury and contral He has also held semor
positions i Batfour Beatty PLC formerty BIGC Group pic) Alcoa and
PricewaterhouseCoopors Ned 1s Chairman of the Audit Committea

° Member of the Audit Comimittae
1 Member of the Rermuneration Committee
* Member of the Normination Commities
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Senior Management

Senior Management

Martin Riley

Managing Director, National Veterinary Services

Aged 44, Marlin was appointed Managing Director of Natonal Vietennary
Seruces n 2005 A graduate of the Welsh Agncultural College n
Aberystwyth Martin has extensive knowledge of the amimal healthcare and
veternary sectors Before jaining the Group  he previousty held several
senior posions over an 18 year period with the phamaceutical
manufacturer Menial Amimal Heakh

Mike Eldred BA MBA

Pregident, US Qperations, Dechra Veterinary Products

Aged 38, Mike was appointed in Novermnber 2004 to head up the Groups sales
and marketng drve n the Unitad States He has over 12 years’ professional
axperience in the US arwmnal health sector, hawng bald servor postions n
business development, sales and operations at Virbac Corporation and
niernatonal marketrng and operatonal positons 2t Fort Dodge Ammal Health
Mike began his career with Sanofi Ammal Health where he managed the
phamaceutical anct brological production planning actvities

Mike Annlce B3c (Hons), MRPhamm$

Managing Director, Dales Pharmaceuticals

Aged 48 Mike graduated from The Schaol of Pharmacy at Aston
Unversity in 1980 Prior to jaining Dales in 1890 as Site Managsr he
worked within the Hospital Pharmacy Serace Glaxo and SS8S International
{formenry Cupal Pharmaceuticals) He was appointed Techrical Director at
the time of the Group’s MBO Mike was appomited Managing Director at
Dates in March 2002

Dr Peter Graham BVMS PhD, CentvR, DipECVCP MRCVS
Managing Director of NationWide Laboratories

and Cambridge Specialist Laboratory Services

Aged 40 Pster was apponted Managng Drector of NationWide Laboratories
and Cambndge Specalist Laboratory Services n 2003 Peter graduated from
the Unmersity of Glasgew Vet Schodl in 1983, whete he remaned as Small
Animal House Physician and Research Scholar untd 1995 Dunng thus penod
he was awarded the RCVS Certdicate 0 Vetennary Radiclogy and a PhD on
the Epiderniology and Management of Canine Drabetss Melitus He

www dechra.com
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contnbuted to the Intid commartialisation of trochermistry and endocrnnology
lab services at the Urwversity of Glasgow Between 1995 and 2002, Petes was
Assistant Professor at the world's largest speciatist vetennary endocnnology
laboratory in Michigan State University, USA leading ¢ as Section Ghiat from
2000 He was awarded Diplomate of the European College of Vietennary
Clirecal Pathologrsts in 2002

Dr Susan Longhofer DVM, MS, DipACGVIM

Praduct Development and Regulatory Atfairs Director

Agad 50, Susan janed the Group n June 2005 She has 1B years’ ndustry
expenance In development and worldwide registration of armal health
phamaceuticals, having worked for muliinational corporations ncluding
Virnac Corporation Heska Corporation and Merck Research Laboratones
Her vetennary degres is from Texas ABM University end her MS s from the
University of Wisconsin Madison She was awarded Diplomate status n the
Arnencan Coliege of Vetennary Internal Medicine n 1992 She has held a
number of Academic and Professional Honours including membership on the
Board of Directors of the American Heartworm Soclety and the Executive
Counci of the Amencan Academy of Vatennary Phammacology and
Therapeutics

Barbara Johnson Chartered MCIPD

Group HR Director

Aged 47, Barbara joned the Group n Apnl 2008 She has 18 ysars’ human
MSOUICES Management expenence within the food and dnnk industry
covenng manufactrng setal wholesale and distnbution Barbara has
previously worked for Alled Dormecq ple, Geest plo and rmost recently
Nicholl Food Packaging Limited Pnor to joining private industry Barbara
sarved for 10 years in the Brtish Army

Company Secretary

Zoe Bamford LLS Hons)

Company Secretary and Solicitor

Aged 34 Zoe was apponted as Company Secretary in July 2007 She
qualitied as a solcitor n Aprit 2000 Pnor to joming the Graup she worked
at Eversheds LLP and Brammer plc
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Directors’ Report

The Directors present ther report and audited financial staterments for the year ended 30 June 2008

Principal Activity, Business Review and Future Developments

The Company acts as a holding company 1o all the Group s supsidianes The Group niseif develops markets and sells vetennary pharmaceuticals and
speciabist pet diets nto nternational companicn animat markets The Group also distnbutes vetennary products, mcluding phamaceuticals, speciest
pet diets and mstruments to vetennary practces within the United Kingdom Addtionally, the Company manufactures pharmacewucals tor the Group
ang for third parties and also provdes dizgnostic services to vetermary practices within the United Kingdorn

The Chatrman s Statement and the Directors’ Business Review on pages B to 27 prowde a review of the Group s business, likely future
developments and includes information m respect of

o Development and performance of the Group In the vear,

& Prncical nsks and uncertanties faced by the Group, and

@ Koy Performance Indicators used to measure the Group s performance

Datails of the Group s policy in refation 1o its employees, health, safety and environment are disclosed on pages 45 and 46, and details of the
Group's policies in relation to Corporate Governance are disclosed on pages 33 to 36

Share Capital

The authorsed share capial of the Company as at 30 June 2008 was £1,000 000 dwided into 100,000 000 ordinary shares of 1p each As at
the end of the financial year, B5 241,909 fully paid ordkinary shares were in 1ssue which included 813,666 ordinary shares issued during the year
n connection with the exercse of options undar the Company’s share option schermes Each share cames the nght to one vote on a poll at a
ganaral meeting of tha Company and are all hstad on the London Stock Exchange

The rights and obligations attaching to the Company's shares are contained within the Articles of Association (see following page). a copy of
which can be obtaned by writing to the Company Secratary There are no restnctions on transfer or imitations on the holding of shares in the
Company, nor are there any requirements to obtam prior approval in respect of any transters of the shares

Al the Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 17 October 2007, the Company was autharsed to purchase up to 5,280,370 of its
ordinary shares, represanting 10% of the issued share capital of tha Company at 30 June 2007 No shares were purchased under this policy
dunng the financial year A rasolution will be put to Shareholders at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting to renew this authonty for a further
pencd of cne year

Results and Dividends

The results for the year and financial positon at 30 June 2008 are shown i the consolidated ncome statement on page 50 and balance sheet on page
51 The Drrectors recornmend tha payrment of a final divdend of 5 50p per share which, f approved by Shareholders, wil be paid on 12 Decernber 2008
to Shareholders registered at 14 Novemiber 2008 An intenm dmdend of 2 750 per share was paid on 11 Apnl 2008, makng a total dvdend for the year
of 8 26p (2007 7 50p) The total dvdend payment 1s £5,368 000 (2007 £3,957,000)

Directors

The Constitution of the Board and of its Committees together with iographical notes on the D rectors, 15 shown on page 28 Detalls of
Drrectors’ attencance at Board and Comimittee meetings and a statement on Board Evatuation 1s set out in the Corporate Governance Report
on pages 33 to 36

Tha Company Articles of Association require one-third of the Board 1o retire by rotation at the Annual Generat Meeting and also if they have held
office for more than 36 months since appo nted or last elected Therefore lan Page and Nel Warner retire by rotation and being ehigible, offer
themselves {or re-election Further detal in respect of the proposed re-glections can be found in the enclosed Gireular to Shargholders

The interests of the Directors in the share capital of the Company are shown in the Remuneration Report on pages 38 10 44 Duning the year no
Director had a disclosable matenal mterest in any contract or arrangement with the Company or any of its subsidianes Information in retation te
the Directors’ remuneraticn ss disclosed in the Remuneration Report on pages 38 to 44

The Articles of Association state that a Director may be appointed by an ord nary resolution of the Shareholders or by the Directors, either to il
avacancy or 2s an addition to the existing Board but so that the totat number of Directors does not exceed the maximum number of Directors
allowsad pursuant to the Articles of Association The maximum number of Directors cumentfy alowed pursuant 1o the Articles of Association

1S ten

The Articles of Association also state that the Board of Directars 1 responisible for the management of the busmess of the Company and in dang so

may exercise all the powers of the Comparty subject 1o the provisians of relevant legistation and the Company § constiutional docurmentation The
powers of the Directors set out in the Articles of Association include those i relation 10 the 1ssue and buy-back of shares
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Articles of Assocliation
Details of a resclution 1o amend the Articles of Association are included i the Circular to Shareholders

A copy of the Articles of Assogiation detaling the proposed amendments will be available for inspection at Hawilt New Bridge Street, 6 Mare
London Place, bondon, SE1 2DA dunng normiat business hours from 19 Septernber until the date of the Annual General Mesting on 7
November 2008 A copy will also be available at the Annual General Meeting

Political and Charitable Contributions
Chzntable donations made dunng the year amounted te £2,04G {2007 £750) No political donations were mace during the year (2007 Nij

Research and Development

The Group has a structured research and developrant programme with the aim of identifying and bnnging to market new pharmaceutical
products investment i research and development is seen as key to further strengthen the Group s competitive posihon The expense on this
actmaty for the year ended 30 June 2008 was £2 408,000 (2007 £1,645,000) and a further £1,331,000 less £123,000 amertisation (2007
£1,680,000 less £52,000 amortisation) was capialised as development costs

Employees

The Group has a policy of offenng equal opportunities to employees at all levels in respect of conditions of wark Throughout the Group it s the
intention of the Directors 1o provde possibie employment opportunities and training for disabled peaple and employees who become disabled,
having due regard to aptitude and abiliies Further details can be found in the Social, Ethical and Envirenmental Responsibiliies Statement on
pages 45 and 45

Acquisitions

On 15 January 2008 the Group successiully compigted the acquisition of VietXX Holdings A/S for a total consideration of £65 2 million {including
expenses) VatxX Holdings A/S 1s based in Denmark and operates in nine other European countnes namely Norway, Finland, Sweden Hofland
Spam, Portugal, France, kreland and the UK More infarmatian in refation to the acquisition and its integration within the Group can be found in
the Business Review on pages 1G1o 23

Supphers

The Company does not follow any code of practice or standard regarding the payment of suppliers but seeks to agree the terms of payment
with suppliers prior 1o the placing of business and it 1S the Company’s policy to settle lakxiites by the due date At 30 June 2008, the Group had
an average of 73 days {2007 74 days) purchases cutstanding in creditars  The Company had an average of nil days {2067 nit days) purchases
outstanding in creditors

Significant Agreements

The Company has entered into a number of significant agreements which ordinanly would be terminable upon a change of control of the
Company, such as

— Banking faciities agreement, and

— Vanous distribution agreements

Substantial Shareholdirgs
In accordance with the Dhsclosure Rules and Transparency Rules of the Financial Services Authonty, as at 28 August 2008, the Company had been
notified of the following interests exceeding the 3% notiication threshold

% of

No of Sharas Shares Held

Schroder Investment Management 8,147,749 12 49

Legal & General Investment Management 5,053 820 775

Rathbone Unit Trust Management 4 664,60 715

BlackRack lnvestment Management (UG 3,815,060 585

Standard Life Investment Management 3,359,279 515

Insight Investment Managemant 3,244 427 497

Invesce Asset Management 2089080 320
www.dechra.com 31
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Directors’ Report

Audit Information

Each of the Directors who held office at the date of the approval of this Directors’ Report confirms that, so far as heis aware there 1S no relevant
audit information of which the Company's auditors are unaware and each Director has taken all the steps that he ought to have undertaken as a
Cirector to make himself aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the Company's auditors are aware of that information

Audhitors
A resolution to reappoint KPMG Audit Plc as auditors of the Company and to authonse the Diractors to datermine their remuneration will be
oroposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting

Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities In respect of the Annual Report and the Financial Statements
The statement of Directors’ Responsibilities in respect of the Annual Report and the Financial Statements can be found on page 47

Directors’ and Officers’ Liabllity

The Company maintains an appropnate level of Directors’ and Officers’ insurance whersby Directors are indemnified against kabilities to third
partles to the extent permifted by the Companies Act The Directors also benefited frorn quahfying third party indemnity prowsions in place
during the financial year ana at the date of this report A copy of the indemnity provisions will be avalable for inspection at the Annual General
Meeting

Annual General Meeting

The 2008 Annuat General Mesting of the Company will be held at 9 00 am on 7 Novermber 2008 In accordance with the Combined Code the
notice of the meeting together with the Annual Report and financial statements are posted to Shareholders at least 20 working days before the
Annual General Mesting The package sant to Shareholders includes a summary of the bhusinass to be covered at the Annual Genenal Mesting
A separate resolution 1s prepared for each substantive matter Where a vote 1s taken on a show of hands the level of proxes recerved for and
against the resaluticn and any zbstentions are disclosed at the meeting and will be made avalable as soon as reasonably practicable atter the
meeting on the Company wabsite at www dechra com

The notice of meeting, which includes the special business to be transacted at the Annuai General Meeting 15 Included within the Circular to
Shareholdars

By order of the Board

D b ot

Zoe Bamiord

Company Secretary

Dechra Pharmaceuticals PLC
2 September 2008
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Corporate Governance

The Board recognises its accountability to Shareholders and 1s commutted to maintairing high standards of carporate governance In the opinion
of the Directors, the Comp=ny has complied throughout the panod under review with Section 1 of the 2008 FRC Combined Code on Gorporate
Governance {the Code) in all aspects

Applicatian of the principles of the Cambined Code
Section 1 of the Combined Coda sets out the mamn and supporting panciples of good governance for compamies The fallowing report detals
how the Company has appled the pnnciptes of Section 1 of the Combined Cade to its actmibes

DIRECTORS

The Board

The Board 1s coliectively responsible for the success of the Company and provides entrepreneunal leadership withun an embedded framewark
which allows for the angoing assessment and management of nsk There is a formal schedule of mattars reserved to the Board These include
the approval of corporale polcies, strategy, plans and budgets, acquisitions and dispesals of companies or businesses, major INvestment and
financial decisions and major managsment or crganisational changes

At all Board meetings an agenda is estabkshed reflecting the Drrectors' responstbilities Thes compnses reports from the Chief Executive, Finance
Dwector and Opersting Company Directors, reports on the performance of the business, major iterns of strategic planning, investments and
significant polcy 1asues

The Board has formally delegated specific responsibilities to Board Committees including the Audit, Remuneration and Nomination
Committees The Board will also appoint commiitees to 2pprove specific processes ag deemed necessary

The Board 1s scheduled to mest eleven times per annum with additional megtings called If necessary, including two meetings where the fulf year
and half year results are dealt with

Altendance at meetings dunng the year to 30 June 2008 was as follows

Board Audit Remureration Nomination
Name {11 meetings) (3 meetings) {5 meetings} {1 mestng)
M Redmond 1 na 5 1
MM Dramond 11 3 5 1
NW Warner ' 10 3 5 1
1D Page 11 na na n/a
SD Evans 1 na n/a n/a
ETW Torr 1 n/a n/a n/a

Note n/a denotes that the Director 1s not a member of this committea, but may attend by invitation

The Chairman regutarly holds meetings with the Non-Executive Directors without the Executive Directors being present Led by the Senior
Indapendent Director, the Non-Executive Diractors meet without the Charman present, at least annually, to appraise the Chairman's
performance

Should Directors have any concerns which cannot be rasoived about the running of the Company or a proposed action, they have the nght to
ensure this 1s recorded in the minutes Further, on resignation, shoutd a Non-Executive Director have any concerns, the Charman would invte hin
to provide a wriiten statement for circulation to the Board

The Company mantans an appropnate level of Directors’ and Officers’ insurance in raspect of lega! action against Dwectors

Chairman and Chief Executive

Thers 15 a clear dvision of respansinikties between the Chairman and Chief Executive Dunng the year the Board reviewad and approved new
Terms of Reference N respect of the Charman and the Chief Executive The Chairman 1s responsible for the leadership and effective working of
the Board and to ensure that aach Director, in particular the Non-Executive Directors, are able to make an effective contnbution to the Board
The Chief Executive is responsible for the management of the Company, implamenting palicies and strategies determined by the Board

The Chairman, at the time of his appointment, did meet and continuas to meet the independence cntena set ot in the Code His appointment was
ngorously reviewed oy the Board last year and they considered that he continues 1o fulfil hus role to the highest standard, prowding appropnate
support and direction to the Company and its Executves

Board Balance and Independence

The Board consists of the Non-Executive Chairman two other Non-Exacutive Directors and three Executive Diractors (including the Chief
Executive) Taking into account 1he prowsions of the Code, the Board has determined that each of the Non-Executive Directors 1s independent
and free from any relations:ips which could compromise thes independent judgement  Further, the Beard consiciers it is of suficient size for the
discharge of its duties and that the balance of skills and expertisa 13 appropnate for the requirements of the business The dstails of the Board of
Directors are shown on page 28 and in the Directors’ Report on page 30
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Corporate Governance

The Board considsrs MM Diamond to be the Senior Independent Director and he 1s available to Shareholders if they have concerns which
contact through the normal channels have falled 1o resoive or for which such contact 1s Inappropnate

The Board considers that all the Non-Executive Directors are ndependent of management and free of any business or cther relationship which
could matenally intarfere with or compromise the exercise of their independent judgement

Appointments to the Board

The Board has an established Nomination Commitiee to lead the process for Board appointments and to makae recommendations to the Board
The Nomination Gommittee compnses M Redmaond (Charman), MM Dramond, and NW Warner The Chairman will not char the Committee
mestng when it 1s dealing with the appaintment of a successor 1o the Charman

The Nomination Gomrmitlee norr'*nally meets once a year and Its terms of reference are avalable on the Gompany website at www dechra com

The terms of reference set out the Namination Committee's role and the authonty delegated to it by the Board They include the following
responsibiites

To oversee the plans for management succession
To recommend appointments to the Board,
To evaluate the effectveness of the Non-Exaecutve Directors,

L L B B J

To consider the structure, sze and compasition of the Board generally
There have been no appontments 1o the Board duning the year to 3G June 2008

Other significant commitments of the Chairnan and the Nen-Executive Directors were disciosed to the Board before appaintment and the
Board 1s notfied of any sulbsequent changes None of the Executive Directors hoks a Non-Executive Directorship

The letters of appointment of the Non-Executive Directors will continue 1o be available for nspection at the Company's registered office Both the
letters of appointment of the Non-Executive Directors and the Service Contracts of the Executrve Directors will be on display at the forthcoming
Annual General Mesling

Information and Professional Development

The Directors are suppled ina tmely manner with all relevant documentation and financial nformation to assist them i the discharge of their
duties This includes infermation on the Company's operational and financial performance At least one Board meeting per year 1s held at one of
the Group's operational sites to enable the Drectors to upaate and mantan ther knowledge and famikanty with the Group’s operations

All newly apponted Directors receve an induction programme to tha Company including corporate governance traning and background 1o the
Company All Directors are encouraged to keep up to date on all matters relevant 1o the Group and attend brisfings and seminars as
appropriate

Each Director 1s entitled on request to receive information 1o enable him to make informed judgements and adequately dscharge hus duties In
addition, all Diectors have access 10 the advice and senices of the Company Secratary and sentor managers generally, and may take
ndependent professional advice at the Cornpany's expense in cornection with therr duties The Gompany Secretary 1s responsible to the Board
for ensuring thal Board procedures ara followed and that apphcable rules and regulations are cornplied with Both the appointment and removal
of the Company Secretary s a matter for the Board as a whole

The Board has an approved procedure for all Directors to take indapaendent protessional advice at tha Company's expense

Performance Evaluation

The Board has developed a formal process of raviewing its own effectiveness and the sffectiveness of the Board Commuitess This i1s based on a
combination of wntten reviews by indmdual Directors, discussion with the Charman and review by the Board as a whole As part of this process
the Board considers the performance of ndmdual Drectors This process has been undertaken dunng the year

Re-eloction

On appointment the Directors are required to seak election at the first Annual General Meeting followang appointment One-third of the Board
are required to retire from office by raiation at the Annual General Meeting subiect to &ll Directors having submitted themsebves for re-election
every three years At the forthcoming Annual General Meeung 1D Page and NW Warner retire by ratation in accordance with the Articles of
Association The Board strongly supports their re-slection

REMUNERATION

Datals of Drrectors' remuneration are set out in the Directors’ Remuneration Report at pages 38 to 44 This detaills the Company’s compliance
with the Code's requirements wiath regard to remuneration matters The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are avallable on the
Compary website at www dfechra com
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ACCOUNTARBILITY AND AUDIT

Financial Reporting
The Board seeks to present a balanced and undarstandable assessment of the Group’s position and prospects through the Chairrnan s
Statement, the Directors’ Business Review and the Direclors’ Report

The respective responsibiliies of the Directors and the auditors n connection with the Financiai Statements are explained in the Staremen of
Dwectors' Responsihilites and the Auditors’ Repert on pages 47 and 48 respactively

{nternal Control

The Directors are responsible for mamntaning the Group's system of nternal control, and for reviewing its effectiveness The systerm of internal
control aims 1o safeguard the Company's assets, ensure that proper accounting records are mantained, ensure comphance with statutory and
regulatory requirements and ensure the effectiveness and efficiency of eperations including the assessment and management of nsk The
systemn of internal control 1§ desighed to manage rathar than eliminate nsk of tfadlvs to achieve business opjectives and can only provide
reascnable and not absclute assurance, particularly against matenal misstatement or loss

The Group has a wel-astablished, ongaing and embedded framework of internal financial and aperational contral for identifying, evaluating and
managing the nsks faced by the Group This framework has baen in place throughout the year under review, and has continued up to the date
of approval of the Annual Report

In complying with the Internal con'rot requirements of the Gombined Code, the Directors have taken guidance from the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wates publication “Internal Control Guidance for Cirectors on the Combined Code” (the Turnbull Guidance) As a
result, the Board prepares and updates a quarterly thorough review of relevant nsk areas and systems of internat control The review 1s
structured by business area and key nsk strategy and 1s based upon a summary of Information prepared and reviewed by divisional
managarnent on an ongoing basis The cument review was prepared 1o 30 June 2008

The Group’s key systems of control mglude

Business Plans

Business plans provide a framework from which annual budgets and forecasts are agreed with each business unit Including financial and
strategic targets aganst which busmess performance s momitored The plans are reviewed by Executive management, and then by the Board
for uttrate approval Actual performance during the year 1s monitored manthly agamst budget, forecast and previous year Full year forecasts
are updated at regular intervals during the year based on trended histoncal data and reakstic forecasts

Investment Approval

The Group has clear requirements for the approval and contral of expenditure Strategic Investment decisions mvohang beth capital and revenue
expendiure are subyect to formal detaled appraisal and review accerding to approval levels set by the Board Operating expenditure 1s
controlled within each business with approval tevels for such expenditure determined by the individual businesses

Management Structure
Executive management are responsible for the identification, evaluation and management of the significant neks applicable tc ther business
areas The nisks are assessed on a pencdic basis and may be associated with a vanety of internal and external sources

The Company and its business units cperate control procedures designed to ensure complete and accurate accounting of financial ransactions
and to mit the Inss of assets due to fraud Measures taken include physical controls segregation of duties in key areas and internal reviews
and checks

Kay functions such as tax, treasury, nsurance legal and personnel are controlled centrally

Audit Commitiee and Auditors

information relating to the Audit Committee 18 sat out in the Audit Committes Report on page 37 This details the Company's compliance with
the Combined Code's requirements in respact of auoit matters Tha terms of reterence of the Audit Committee are avallable on the Company
website at www dechra com

Responsibility for momitonng the Group's system of internal control rests with the Board [ 15 assisted by the Audit Committee, which reviews the
interm and annual reporis provided to Shareholders, the audit process and the systems of internal control and nsk management, the latter by
way of consideration of the Board's updated progress report and action plan regarding internal controls

Whilst the Board recogrises this does nol constitute an internal audit function, 1t believes that due to the size of the Group this review provides
sufficient comfort as 1o the controls n place The Audit Committee rewiews the requirement for an internal audit functicn annualty

The Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the Group's internal control systems for the penod from 1 July 2007 10 the date of approval of the
financial statements which has included gquartery business nsk reviews and quarterty internal control reporing

The Board reviews the operation and effectiveness of its controt assessrment on a regular basis

The external auditars are engaged to express an opinion of the Gompany's Annual Report 2nd Accounts They independently and objectively
revisw management's reporting of the Group's consokdated results and inancial position In additon they review the systems of internal control
and the data contamed in the Annual Report and Accounts to the level necessary for expressing theyr audit opinton
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Corporate Governance continued

RELATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

Dialogue with Institutional Shareholders

Relationships with Shareholders recenve high prionty and a rolling programrne of meetings between institutional Shareholders and Executive
Directors is heid throughout the year These meetings are in addition to the annual and intenm results presentalions and the Annual General
Meeting and seek to foster mutual understanding of the Company’s and Shareholders’ objectives Such mestings are conducted so as to
ensure protection of share pnce sensitive information that has not already been made generally avalable to the Company’s Shareholders Similar
guidelines also apply o communications between the Company and parties such as financial analysts, brokers and the prass The Company
also organises site visits on a penodic bagsis

Constructive use of the Annual General Meeting
All members of the Board usually attend the Annual General Meeting The Charrmen of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Commitiee and
Nomination Committee will normally be avalabie to answer Shareholders’ questions at that meeting

Notice of the meeting, together with the Annual Report and financial statements, 15 posted to Shareholders not less than 20 working days pnar
to the date of the Annual General Mesting The information sent to Shareholders includes a summary of the business to be covered at the
Annuat General Megting, where a separate resolution 1s prepared for each substantive matter When a vote 15 taken on a show of hands, the
level of proxies receved for and agamnst the resolution and any abstentions are disclosed at the meeting and will be made available as soon as
practicable after the meeting on the Company website at www dechra com

At the Annual General Meeting there s an opporturyty, following the formal business, for Inforral communications between investors and
Directors

Going Congern

After consideration of budgets and other financial Information, the Directors are satisfisd that the Group 15 10 a sound financial position with
adequate resources to continue in aperation for the foreseeable future For this reason, the Group's financial statements have been prepared on
the basis that the Group 1s 2 going concermn
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Audit Committee Report

Membership
The members of the Audit Commitiee {the Committee) are currently

NW Warner {Chairman of the Committes)
MM Diamond (Servor Independent Director)

The Board considers that NW Warner has recent and relevant financial experience gained through his pesition as Finance Director of Chlonide
Group PLC, as required by the Combined Coda on Corporate Governance

The Company Secrelary acts as secretary to the Committee

Responsibilities
The main role and responsibiities of the Cornmitiee are set out In the written 1erms of reference which are available on the Company website at
www dechra com The main responsibilities are

& Tomanitor the Integety of the financial statements of the Company reviewing the annual and half year reports in detail to ensure they
present a balanced assessment of the Company s position and prospects which 1s understandable to Shareholders and potertual investors

® Toreview the effectiveness of the Company’s Internal controls and nsk management systems as described on pages 35 and 36 and, in
conjunction with the auditors, consider the accounting policies adopted by the Company

® Toreview the Company's whistle-blowing arrangements

® Tooversee the relationship with the external auditors The Commuttee makes recommendations to the Board on the appointment of the
externat auditors approves thewr remuneration monitors ther independence and objectivity, and mantors the effectiveness of the audit
process and sets the policy for non-audit work

e Tomake recommendations to the Board on the requirement for an internal audit function

in the performance of is duties the Committee had access to the senaces of the external auditors and 1s at kberty to obtan cutside professional
advice as necessary Further, the external auditors have direct access fo the Commitiee Chairman owtside the formal Committes meetings

The Committes monitors and reviews the effectiveness of internal control activities Given the systems of internal control discussed on page 35
and due to the present size of the Group, the Committee currently believes that an internal audit function 1s not reguirec

Meetings

The Gomimittes miet three times dunng the year, tmed o conaide with the financiat and reporting tmetable of the Cornparny, namely July,
August and February Members' attendance at the meetings held during the year can be found on page 33

At the meeting in July the Commuttee considered and agreed with the external auditors the approach and overall scope of the audit to be
commenced in respect of tha 2007 year end The Committee also camed out a formal review of iIts own effectiveness led by the Committes
Chairman

A further Commuttes mesting was held in August which was pnmarnly concerned with a review of the draft financial statements and draft
prelminary staterment pnor 1o ther submission 1o the Board The Committee also considered, amongst other matters, a review of internal
controls, auditor effectiveness and amendmients to the Company's Whistls-Blowing Policy, a copy of which can be found on the Company
website at www dechra com

At the meeung In Febyruary, In addition to routine matters the Committee also considered the half year results and draft half year announcement
The external auditors attend meetings of the Committee other than when thewr appointment or performance 1s being revewed The Chief
Executive, Charman Group Finance Director and other serior finance stalf attend as appropnate

The perfarmance, cost and independence of the external auditors is revewed annually by the Committee, together with a review of the level of
service prowided by the external auditors to the Group

The Committee has discussions at least gnce a year with the auditors without the management being present

The scape of the year's audit 18 discussed in advance by the Commitiee and audit fees are reviewed and approved by the Committee Professional
rules require rotation of the Sioup Audit Engagement Director every five years and this took place dunng the 2005/2006 financial year

The annual appoiitment of the auditors by our Shareholders at the Annual General Mesting is a fundamerttal safeguard but, beyond this controls are n
place 1o ensura that additional work performed by the audnors ts appropnate and subject to proper review as discussed below

Auditor Independance

With respect to non-audit assignments undertaken by the external auditors, the Company has developed a policy to ensure that the provision of
such services does not imparr ther independence or chiectivity When considenng the use of external auditors to undertake non-audit work, the
Chief Executive and Group Finance Director do at all times give consideration to the prowvisions of the Smith Report with regard 1o the
preservation of independence

The Chief Executive and the Group Finance Director have authonty 1o commission the external auditors to undertake non-audit work where there s
a specrfic project with a cost not exceeding £25,000 and total non-audit fees m any year do not exceed £80,000 This work has to be reporied 1o
the Audit Committee at the mesting where the Annual Report 1s considered If the cost Is expected to exceed the established levels then the prior
approval of the Audit Committes 1s required before the work 1s commissioned In all cases, other potential provders are adequately considered
Dunng the current year, the external audtors were commisswoned to carry out extensive due dilgence, working capital and reporting accountant
work in respect of the VetXX acquisiion The external auditors were considered most appropnate to perform this work given both their
knowledge of the existing business and the requirement to report on the existing as well as the entarged Group The fees pad to the external
audchtors for thig work were in excess of the irmits above, and pnor Board approval was therefore obtained

The external auditors annually confirm therr policies on ensunng audit ndependence and provide the Committes with a report on thair own audit
qualty procedures

Effectiveness Review

Dunng the year, the Committee reviewed its gwn effectiveness through a process led by the Committee Chaimman The results of the rewiew
were advised 1o the Committee and the Board

Based on the Committee’s review of the performance of the external auditors and on the planning and execution of the annual audt, the Committee has
recommended to the Board that a resolution to reappoirnt KPMG Audit Plc be proposed at the forthcorming Annual General Mesting

A

NW Warner
Chairman — Audit Commitiee
2 September 2008
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Directors’ Remuncration Report

The Report is presentad in accordance with the relavant provisions of the Combined Code and the Directors’ Remuneration Repart Regulations
2002 {the Regulations) The Report i1s dwided into two sections unaudited and audited information, in accordance with the Regulations The
audited information commences on page 43

The Board 1s responsible overall for the Group s remuneration policy and the setting of the Non-Executive Directors' fees, although the task of
determining and monttoring the remuneration packages of the Executive Directors and agreeing the Chairran’s feg level has been delegated to
the Gommittes

This Remuneration Report will be submitted at the 2008 Annual General Meeting for the approval of the Shareholders

The Remuneration Committee

The Committee consists exclusively of ndspendent Non-Executive Directors and presantly cormmpnses MM Dramond, M Redmond and

NW Warrer The Committee 1s chaired by MM (xamond and met five times dunng the year The Chief Executive attended all meetings in order to
assist on matiers concerning remuneration of other senor Executives within the Group, however, the Chiet Executve was not present dunng the
part of the meetings where his own remuneration was discussed The attendance record of the Committae members 1s detaled within the
Comporate Gevernance Report on page 33 The Cornrnittea may seek any infarmation 1t requiras from any employee or Director and ali
employees and Directors are required to co-oparate with any request mada by the Committee Z Bamford {Company Sacretary} also provdad
infermation to the Committee during the year

During the year the Commuitee also receved independent Executive remunsration adwvice (excluding adwvice in respect of pensions) from
remuneration consultants, Hewtt Mew Bndge Street (HNBS) The level of adwice receved is discussed in further detail within this Report

The Commutiee has its own terms of reference, which are approved by the Board These were reviewed during the year to ensure comphance
with the Combined Code Copies can be obtaned from the Company Secretary ar via the Company website at www dechra com MM
Diamong and Z Bamford are avalable to Shareholders 1o distuss remuneraucn policy

Role of the Committee

The Cornmittes 1s responsible for deterrnining on behalf of the Board the framework of remuneration for the Executive Directors and for
ensunng and reviewing the ongoing apprapnateness and relevance of the remuneration polcy When setting the Executive Directors’
remuneration packages the Committee always considers {i remuneratcn packages payable to Executives employed in comparable companies
and {i) pay Increases within the Group more generally The Committee also moritors rernuneration practica amongst other senior Exacutives and
sets the Charman's fea level

Remuneration Policy for Executive Directors
Dechra's policy on Executive Direclors’ remuneration has been further developed by the Committee dunng the year The resultant policy is to
prowvide Directors remuneration packages that

®  aliract, retan and meentvise Exacutives of the calibre required to ensure that the Group 1s managed successfully to the benefit of
Sharsholders,

e provide appropriate alignment betweaen Dechra's strategic goals Shareholder returns and Executive seward

® have a competitve mix of base salary and short and long-term mcentives with a significant proportion of the package detarmined by
stretching targets inked to Dechra's performance,

e are consistent with corporate governance best practice guidedines so long as the Committee believes that comphance with such guideiines
15 1n the best interests of Sharehalders

Remuneration Review
Every two ysars the Committee obtains an independent review of its Executive Directors’ remuneration packages 1o assess whether they are
consistent with the Company’s remuneration policy Existing remunerabon arrangements compnsed

& Salary lan Page — £300 600 Simon Evans — £175 000, Ed Torr — £160,000

Pension worth 14% of salary

Sundry benefits i kind, inciucing fully expensed car and private medical insurance

Annuat Bonus worlh up to 0% of salary based on profit targets and personal objectives

Annua share awards under the Executive Incentive Plan (EIP) worth up to 50% of salary based on Total Shareholder Return (TSR) relative to
cther FTSE Small Cap companes

Bunng 2008 HNBS carred out the latest independent review tor the Committee and thewr primary conclusions were that

& the value of the Executive Directors' existing remuneration packages was significantty below market levels both comparad 1o direct peers
(being a selection of companies drawn from the Pharmaceuticals/8iotechnology Health Care Equipment and Services Sectors) and also
compared to companias drawn from all sectors of a similar market capitalisation and turnover,

® existing remuneration arrangements were skewed significantly more towards fixed pay rather than performance-related pay than 13
standard,

® the relatve smphcity of the existing incentive structure (namely an annual bonus and a single long-term schemne} was valued by Executives,

e the exsting use of a TSR perfarmance target o determine the vesting of EIP awards was felt to be approprate, partculary so as to provide
algnment with Shareholder interests,

e although the current Executive Directors have considerable shareholdings, the absence of a formal share awnership guideline was noted as
being out of step with current best practice
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In ight of the review, the Crmrmitiee proposed a number of alterations to the remuneration structure whrch were discussed wath the Company s
top ten Shareholders as well as The Association of Bntish Instrers (ABI) and Research Recommendations and Electronic Vieting (RREV] The
revised remuneration structure, which results in a relatively balanced spiit between the fixed and performance-related elements of the ongoing
remuneration arrangements 1s outlined in the following sections

The revised structure does nvolve a significant increase N potential pay rewards for the Executive Directors The Committee falt this was
required and appropnate for a number of reasons

¢ The Group has contnued 10 grow rapidly with the result that the value of Executive packages 15 significantly behind the market Addrionally
indsadual Executive roles have bacame larger as a result of the increased complaxity and geography of the Group as it evolves into an
international business The Comrmittee (s very keen to retan what it regards as a highly marketable Executive team that has been key 1o
recent growth and remains central to the future praspects of the Group Accordingly, whilst not obsessed with chasing the market the
Committea needs to ensure that packages are suitably competitive to retain thesa Executives This has necessitated significant adjustments
80 as to hnng them more into Ing with mid-market levels

@ The largest percentage pay increase 1s attnbutable to ETW Torr and reflects the significant expansion of his role since the recent acquistion
of VetxXX when he became the Managing Director of VetXX (now known as DVP EU)

® Approximately two-thirds of the increase in the potental value of the remuneration packages 1s periormance-related so will anly be
achievable if Dechra continues to perform strongly Performance targets have also besn made more stretching for the annual bonus and &
lower proportion of share awards will vest in future for median TSR performance

In summary, the Committee bekeves that the proposals will enabile the Company to provide a remuneration package that is competitive
challenging and, by rewarding Executives for significant financial and share price out-parformance, aligned with the interests of iis Sharsholdars

Base Salary
The Commultee has agreed tha! so as to remam market competitive, base salanes should be increased with effect from 1 July 2008 to
ID Page — £350,000, SD Evans — £220,000 and ETW Torr — £210,000

Pensions
The Company operates a Group Staksholder personal pension scheme which has been sffective since 1 July 2005 The Company will contnue
to contnbute 14% of salary on behalf of the Executive Directors

Benehts in Kind
The Executive Directors receve other benetits, Including the use of a fully expensed car medical cover and Wfe assurance scheme

Annual Bonus
The Executive Bonus Scheme rewards Executive Dyectors for achieving operating efficiencies and profitable growth n the relevant year by
reference to challenging but achievable operational targets determinad at the beginming of the financial year

Executve bonuses for the year endedg 30 June 2009 are 10 be calculated as {oflows

& Annual cash bonus potential will be increased from 60% of salary to 100% of salary

@ Asinthe current bonus schems, up to 10% of satary can be earned based an the achievement of personal objectives The personal
objectives of the Chief Executive will be set by the Chairman, and those of the other Executive Directors will be set by the Chief Exacutive
This slemant of the bonus is payable at the sole discretion of the Remuneration Committee

¢ Upto 90% of salary [compared to 50% of salary in the curent bonus scheme) can be earned based on Group profit targets set at the
beginning of the financial yaar {with paymants as outined n the chart below)

Aonws camed (% of sakary)

80 93 1 100 110 115
% of prets arget

The Increase in annual benus potantial 1s part of the overall package of measures that the Commiitee beteves 1s required n order to prowda the
Directors with an appioprately compstiive and incentrvising remuneration package

However, as the chart llustrates 1o counterbalance the increase in bonus potentiad, the revised scheme reguires a tougher out-performance of
target’ {110% rather than 105% i the existing scheme) I order for the maximum bonus to be payable As a result, there is only a imited
Increase In bonus payable for achieving target performance The Committee caonsiders that this should ensure that incentives at the higher end
of the range are payahle only for demonsirably supenor Group performance
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Directors’ Remuneration Report continued

Long-Term Incentives

No further grants can be awarded 1o Executive Directors under the EIP which was granted approval by Shareholders at the Annuai General Meeting
on 23 October 2003 and expires n 2008 Sharehoider appraval will therefore be sought at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting, to be held on

7 November 2008, for a new long-term share schemse (2008 LTIF)

As with the EIP, the 2008 LTIP wll seek to provide a clear link hatween the remuneration of the Executve Directors and the creation of value tor

Shareholders by rewarding the Executive Directars for the Company's performance in terms of relative TSR

The 2008 LTIP, subject to Shareholder approval, will allow the Executive Direciors and selected senior Execuives of the Company to receve a
condrional award of performance shares worth up to 150% of base salary (200% of salary 1n exceptional crcumstances) although initially no awards

waorth more than 100% of salary will ba granted
Vesting of performance shares wi normally occur provided that

{a} the parhicipant is stil employed by the Group at the end of the threa year vesting period, ana

1) 1o the extent that the pre-set performance targets have been satsfied over the three year performance penod which will run from the start of
the financial year within which the award 1s granted Performance targets for the proposed grant dunng the financial year ending 30 June 2009

will be determined by

{1) An underpin’ condition based on the Company's adjusted diluted sarmings per share performance — no awards wit vest if the Company

adjusted diluted earnings per share has not grown by at least RP1 + 3% per annum over the performance penod

{2} The Company's TSR perfoermance — assuming that the underpin 1s achieved, vesting of the awards wilt be determined by the Company's
TSR performance compared to the other constituents of the FTSE Small Cap sector at tha start of the performance penod The TSR wil
be calculated by companng average performance over three months prior to the start and end of the performance penod Vesting wilf be

on the following basis

TS8R Performance

Vesting Percentage

Betow Medlan

Median

Between Median and Upper Quartile
Upper Quartle

0%
25%

Pro-rata vesting based on the Company’s ranking in the comparator group

100%

Further detalls of the 2008 LTIP are prowided in the enclosed Circular to Shareholders for the 2008 Annual General Meeting and a resolution wall be put to
Shareholders at that meeting to approve the 2008 LTIP Subject to Sharehcider approval, the intial awards under this scheme will be made ounng 2008

The Company alsa operates an Approved Share Ogtion Scheme, an Unapproved Share Option Scheme together with a Savings Related Share
Options Scheme (SAYE) Executive Directors are entitled to participate in the SAYE schemne but are not entifed to participate in the Approved Share

Option Schema or the Unapproved Share Option Scheme by reason of therr participation in the 2008 LTIP

Share Ownership Guideline

To ba conwistent with pest practice, a formal share ownership gudeline will be introduced for Exscutive Directors requinng them to retain at feast half of
any future share awards vesting as shares (after paying any tax due on the shares) unil they have a holding of Dechra shares worth at least 100% of

ther base salary Currently, all of the Executive Dyectors' shareholdings equate to over 100% of therr base salary

Contracts of Services

Fach Executve Director has a service contract with the Company which contains detaills regarding remuneration restrictions and disciphnary matters
Executive Directors are appointed on contracts terminable by the Company on not more than 12 months' notice and by the Director on & months’

notice

Non-Executive Directors have a service contract for an inhal 12 month period which 15 thereafter terminated by esther party grong 12 months notice

Detals of Directars service contracts and notice pencds are set out below

Notce Penod
Name Commencement date Dwector Company
M Redmond 25 Apnl 2001 12 months 12 months
ID Page 23 August 2000 & months 12 months
8D Evans 23 August 2000 6 months 12 months
ETW Torr 23 August 2000 6 months 12 months
MM Diamend 23 August 2000 12 months 12 months
NW Warner 2 May 2003 12 months 12 months

There are no expiry dates applicable 10 either Executive ar Non-Executive Directors’ service contracts
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The Company may, 1n its absclute discreton at any time after wniten notice has been given by ether party, lawfully terminate the serace contract by
payng to the Director an amount equal 1o his salary antitiernent for the unexpired panod of notice together with an amount representing the farr value of
any other benefits te which the Direttor 1s contractually entitied for the unexpired penod of notice (subect in aither case to a deduction at source of
Income tax and National Insurance contributions)

In the event that the service contract 1s terrinated before the end of any financial year the Director shall not ba entitled 1o any bonus in respact of that
financial year

Non-Executive Direciors' cornpensation 1s confined to 12 months' remuneration

Indmidual Drrectors’ sligibility for the various elements of compensation 1s set out below

Name Salary Bonus Benefits
M Redmond 12 months n/a n/a
iD Page 12 rmonths il 12 months
SD Evans 12 months ik 12 months
ETW Torr 12 months it 12 months
MM Diamond 12 months n/a n/a
NW Warner 12 months n/a n/a

Where applicable, payment of this compensation would be in full and final settlement of all clams other than In respsct of share options or awards and
pension arrangements In ap appropriate case the Directors would have regard to the departing Director's duty to mitigate loss  except in the event of
dismissal following a change of contral of the Company

Other than as descrbed above, thera are no express provisions within the Crrectors' sarnce contracts for the payrnent of compensation or iquidated
damages on terrmination of employment

No compensation payments wers made to Executive or Non-Executive Directors dunng the year

Non-Executlve Directors
The Board aims to recruit and retan Non-Executive Directors of a high calibre with the requisite sxpenence required 1o achieve success for the

Cornpany and its Sharehclders

The feas of the Chairman are deterrmined by the Committee and the fees of the Nan-Executive Directors are determined by the Board following a
recommendation from both the Chief Executive and the Charman [t should be noted that neither the Chaimman nor the Non-Executive Directors take
part 11 the deterrmination of therr own remuneration

Non-Executive Direciors are paid a basic fes with additional fees paid for the chainng of Committess Following a review by HNBS dunng tha year,

which benchmarked the current Non-Exacutive Director fee levels aganst the same companies used for benchmarking the Executive Dirsctors
remuneration packages, it was agreed that fee levals should be increased from 1 July 2008 The annual fee level for 2008/09 15 as follows

Fee
Office £°600
Chayman 80
Non-Executive Director A

Servor Mon-Executwe addiional fee
Remuneration Commitise Charmanship additonal fee 5
Audit Committee Charmanship additional fee

Non-Executive Directors are not ebgible to participate in any of the Company’s share schemes, ncentive schemes or pension schemes
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Directors’ Remuneration Report continued

Directors’ Shareholdings
Tne beneficial interests of the Directors in affice and therr families in the share capital of Dechra Pharmaceuticals PLC as at 30 June 2008 were as
follows

Ordinary Shares Orchinary Shares
Shareholdings 2008 2007
M Redmond 41,475 35 000
ID Page 759,332 662 819
SD Evans 806,370 749,131
ETW Torr 426,796 390,934
MM Diamond 6,100 5,000
NW Warner 2,691 2 206

There have been no changes in the heldings of the Drectors between 30 June and 26 August 2008

Total Shareholder Return

The graph below shows the Total Shareholder Return performance of the Company over tha past five years compared with the Total Sharegholder
Return over tha same period for the FTSE Small Cap Total Return Index. The FTSE Small Cap Index 1s considered to be an appropriate index as the
Company 1s a consttuent of that index
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Effectivencss Review
During the year, the Committee reviewsd its effectiveness through a process led by the Committes Charman The findings were reported to the
Committee and the Board
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Audited information
The auditors are required to report on the mformation contained in the remainder of this report

Summary of Remuneration

Salanes Other Total Total
& Fees Bonuses Benefits 2008 2007
£:000 £'000 £'000 2000 £°000
Executive Directors

ID Page (Chisf Executive) 300 180 69 549 389
50 Evans 175 105 47 327 256
ETW Torr 160 98 37 293 233

Non-Executive Directors
M Redmond (Chairman) 80 - — 60 52
MM Tramond 31 - — kil 29
NW Warner 29 o — 29 27
755 381 163 1,289 986

Exscutive bonuses for the year ended 30 Juna 2008 (as reflected in the tabie above} were determined as follows

e Profit performance — 10% of salary payable upon the achievament of 85% of Group profit target nsing to 50% of salary payable upon the
achievement of 105% of Group profit target Actual performance reflected 115% of the profit target resuting in & payment worth 50% of salary

& Personal ohjectives — up to an additional 10% of salary was payabile to Exacutive Dirsctors upon the achievernent of personal chisctives Actual
performance resulted in payments worth 10% of salary

Executive Incentive Plan
Awards made under the Executive Incentive Plan are as follows

Numbper Number
of shares Granted Exercised of shares Share Pnce at  Share Price at
Award at 30 June during dunng at 30 June Performance  date of award date of exercise
date 2007 the year the year 2008 penod pence pence
ID Page 2004 43 589 — 48,588) - 2004=-2007 1595 350
2005 34 861 - - 34,861 2005-2008 251 -
2006 47 412 - - 47,412 2006-2009 25075 —
2008 - 37,975 - 37,975 2007-2010 386 -
130,862 37,975 {48,588) 120,248
SD Evans 2004 33,096 - (33,006) — 2004-2007 1585 350
2005 23,904 - - 23,904 2005-2008 251 -
2006 30,263 - - 30,263 2006-2009 25075 -
2008 - 22152 - 22,152 2007-2010 386 -
87,263 22152 {33,0886) 76,319
ETW Torr 2004 31,348 - (31,348) — 20042007 15685 350
2005 22,808 - - 22,808 2005-2008 251 -
2006 28,245 - - 28,245 2006-2009 25075 -
2008 - 20,253 - 20,253 2007-2010 386 —
82,501 20253 (31,348} 71,406

Awards under the EIP vest based on Dechra's TSR performance ovar a three year performance penod starting on 1 July pror to date of grant relative to
the FTSE Small Cap Totaf Return Index with 30% of awards vesting for median performance nsing te 100% for upper quariile performance No awards
vest unless the Committee is satisfied with the underlying financial performance of the Company over the performance perniod

During the financial vear awards granted In 2004 became exercisable Independent verfication by HNBS showed that the Comgany's TSR perfarmance
for the thiea year penod to 30 June 2007 was in the top quartile of the FTSE Small Cap Total Return Index The Cormmttee also determined that the
underlying financia) parformance of the Company over the performance penod had been satsfactory The full award was therefore exarcisable

Independent verification has also recently been sought from HNBS in respect of the satisfaction of the performance targsls for awards which vested as at
30 June 2008 It has been confirmed to the Committes that the Gompany’s TSR performance for the three year penod 1o 30 June 2008 was agan in the
top quartile of the FTSE Small Cap Total Return Index  Subject to the Commuttee confirming that the undertying financial performance of the Company

has besn satisfactory throughout the performance penod, the awards will be capable of exercise far a 90 day penod commencing on 2 September 2008

The aggregate gan made by the Executive Directors an share options exercised dunng 2008 was £5890,000 The aggregate gain made by the
Executve Directors on share options exercised duning 2007 was £694,000
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Directors’ Remuneration Report continued

SAYE Scheme
Diractors' entitlaments under the SAYE Scheme are as follows
Market pnce At At
at date Exercise 30 June 30 June
Award of grant price Exercise 2007 Exercised Granted Lapsed 2008
date pence pence dates mrmber numbar number numbar number
ID Page 2 Apnl 2003 48 3@ Jung 2008 42,115 142,115 - - —
SD Evans 15 October 2004 198 158  Jan 2008 7,641 (7.641) - - —_
ETW Torr 15 Qctober 2004 198 158 Jan 2008 3056 (3,056) - - _
18 October 2005 255 204 Dec 2008 2,750 = - — 2,750
55,562 52,.812) - - 2,750
Share Price

The middle market pnce for the Company's shares on 20 June 2008 was 420p and the range of pnces dunng the year was 306p to 462 75p

Penslion Entitlement

All Executive Directors were members of the Dechra Pharmaceutical PLC Group Stakeholder personal pension scheme throughout the year
Contnbutions made by Dechra Pharmaceuticals PLC on behalf of the Executive Directors dunng the year are based on a percentage of pensionable
salary and were pad as follows

Contnbutions Contnbutions

2008 2007

Age £000 £000

I Page 47 42 31
SD Evans 44 25 20
ETW Torr 48 22 18
89 69

By ordef of the Hpard

Malcolm Diamond
Charman — Remuneration Committes
2 September 2008
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Social, Ethical and Environmental Responsibilities

A responsible approach io our stakeholders and the wider community is seen by the Board to be fundamental to the Group The conduct of the
Group towards social, smaronmental, ethical and health and safety issues 15 recognised to have an impact on owr reputation and the
implermentation of policies and systems continues

The Board takes ultimate responsibiity for Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) and continues to be committed to developing and
implementing appropnate policies o create and maintain long-term value for Shareholders Sound business ethics help toe minimise sk enswee
legal compliance and enhance Company efficiancy The nesd to review and rnanage rnsks 10 the short and lang-term value of the Cornpany
ansing from GSR 1s recognised by the Board and it considers that 1t has recenved adequate information to review these nsks and has not
identified any ngks to the business that could affact its future value

Environmental Policy

The Group recognises the importance of good environmental controls It 1s the Group s policy to comply with and exceed environmental
lagislation currently In place, adept responsible environmental practices and be committed to mirimising the impact of its operations on the
environment

The Group 1s a registerad member of a compliance schema in respect of the Waste Packaging Obligations Reguiations and, i addition, all of
the National Vetennary Services depots recycle waste cardboard back to UK paper mills and waste pofythens is also recycled back to UK
recycling agents In particular Dales Pharmaceuticals has achieved a 47% reduction in its landfill waste as a direct result of mcreased recyciing
actvilies

Adleet of low CO, emission diesel vehicles 1s mantaned, these vehicles are replaced every three ysars via leasing agreements In addition, a
number of LPG powerad vehicles are baing used in and around the London area

Our manufacturing unit, Dales Pharmaceuticals, continues to comply with, and exceed effluent discharge standards nlo local water supplies
this being monitored by Yorkshire Water Authonty Standard operating procedures are in place to ensure that contaminated wasta 1S disposed of
under strict controls Exhaust arr 1s fully fittered from the manufactunng unit before discharge

Dales Pharmaceuticals 1s now actively working towards achieving its 1SC 140001 status A gap analysis has recently been carried out which has
highlighted the procedures to be drafted Funding has been obtaned form the Manufactunng Advisory Service who are assisting Dales
Pharmaceuttcals in obtaining the standarg and it 1s hoped that the status wilt be achieved within the next financial year

Dales Pharmaceuticals has prewiously worked closely with the Carbon Trust in order to review 11s respective energy consumption and a number
ot areas dentfied where improvements can be made As a result of the Carbon Trust audit of Dales Pharmaceuticats the manufacturing urut has
(amongst other things)

& Installed low anergy use (high trequency) highting In all new or refurtushed areas cf the sie

o Replaced and tuned the man burner unit in the factory steam bailer to effect maximum efficiency of the gas burn, and

& Changed the grade of ol used n the ol fred heater unit cortained in one of the bulldings on site This new grade of ail 1s significantly more
energy efficient

The Garbon Trust has 1ecently wisited the Distnbution Unit AVS, in order to carry out an energy consurmption audit and the results are awaited m
respect of this [t 1s envisaged that similar audits wilt be carned out at the remaining UK operating units within the next financiat year

Dechira Pharmaceuticals PLC has been involved in the Corporate Membership Scheme for the Statfordshire Wildlfe Trust (lhe Trust) throughout
the financial year The money provided by the Company has assisted the Tnustin funding s core operating costs and assisted in helping
support community activities organised by the Trust, In particular, a guided walk at Parrotts Drumble {situated behind the Group's Distnbution
unit, NVS) that attracted over 100 participanis

The Group continues to review its environmental controls and encourage its own staff, supphers and customers to achieve similar standards

ETW Torr 1s the nominated Drector respensible for environmental policies

Business Ethics

The Board expects all of the Group's business actmties to be conducted in accordance with figh standards of ethical canduct and full
compliance with all applicabla national and international legislztion This Includes, In particular, the prowvision of a safe worleng emaronmant
including health and safety awareness, mantenance cf far and competitive empioyment practices, opposition to any bnbery or corrupt business
practices, treating suppliers on a far basis o buld long-term relationships to our mutual benefit, and beng responsive to our customers' neads
and providing a high standard of customer care

A Whistle-Blowing Policy 55 in place whereby employees may repont, in confidence any suspected wrongdongs vathin the business where they
feel unable to giscuss any such sssue directly wath local managernent The policy was reviewed and updated dunng the year by the Audit
Committee This policy 1s avalable to all employees wia staff handbooks and the Company website at www dechra com

Open and honest communication is positvely encouraged between employees and management throughout the business
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Social, Ethical and Environmental Responsibilities continued

Health and Safety Policy

The Group attaches great importance to the heaith and safety of its employees and the publc The management are responsible and committed
to the maintenance, monitonng and promoting of a pokcy of Health and Satety at work to ensure the care and wall-being of s employees and
on-site visitors All of iis sites ara registered with the Brtish Safety Council

Each unit within the Group has an aciiva Haalth and Safety Cornmilles compnsing representatives from both managernent and ernployees The
workiorce nominates employee representatives These commiitees meet on a regular basis to carry out a review of nsk assessments and
standard operating procedures as well as Investigating any concemns raised by indvdual employees Each site has the requisite number of
employeas traned m Health and Safety legislation

A full health and safety report is presented at Dmsional Board Meetings on a regular basis in the prasence of Executive Directors These reports
arg summansed for subseguent reviaw by the Board

A transport nsk reviaw committea has been estabiished to assess risks related to the vehicle fleet and establish control procedures This
includes a guarterly hlcence chcz of all indnaduals who are able te drive Company vehicles, an investigation nte all accidents and a disciplinary
procedure for speeding offences This committee meets four tmes a year and issues raised by this committee are ncluded at Health and Safety
meetings

8D Evans i1s the nominated Director responsible for Health and Safety policies

Employees

It 15 the Group's policy to encourage employee involvement as the Direclors consider that this 1s essential for the successiul running of the
pusnass The Group keeps employees nformed of performance developments and progress by way of regular tearn bnafing sessions and
notices Tha manufactunng site, Dales Pharmaceuticals, 1s registered with "Investors in People” and operates a Works Council

Dales Pharmaceuticals also takes on a number of apprentices each year via the Madem Apprenticeship Scheme  Such employees are assisted
it achieving National Vocatonal Qualifications as part of ther apprenticeship, usually work-based but also involvng literacy and nurmeracy
maodules Dunng the year Claire Hamson, one of the apprentices employed at the unit, was put forward by her Traming Officer from the North
Lancs Traming Group for the Learming and Skills Council National Apprenticeship Award 2008 Clare went on to win the award

It 1s the Company's policy to prowvide equal recrutment and ather opportunities for all empioyees, regardless of age, sex, religion, race or
disability The Group gives full consideration to applications from disabled people, where they adequately fulfil the requiremants of the role

Where existing employees become disabled 111s the Group’s policy whenever practcable 1o provide continung employment under the
Company's terms and condiions and 1o provide training and career development whenaver gppropnate

The Group has encouragsd employees Lo share in tha growth of the Company through eligbiity to participate in the SAYE Scherme

National apprentice of the year award

Dalas smplayee Clare Harrison receiving the national apprentice of the year award
from Mike Annice




Dechra Pharmaceuticals PLC
Annual Beport and Accounts for tha year ended 30 June 2008

Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities in respect
of the Annual Report and the Financial Statements

The Directars are responsible for prepanng the Annual Report and the Group and Parent Company financal statements In accordance with
applicabie law and regulations

Gampany law requires the Directors to prepare Group and Parent Company financial statements for each financial year Under that law they are
required to prepare the Group financial statements in accordance with IFRSs as adopred by the EU and have elected to prepare the Parent
Company financial statements in accordance with UK Accounting Standards and applicable law (UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice)

The Group financial statements are required by law and IFRSs as adopted ty the EU to present tary the financial posiiion and the perfermance
of the Group, the Companies Act 1985 provides in relation to such financial statements that references in the relevart part of that Act to financial
statements giving a true and far view are references 1o their achieving a farr presentation

The Parent Company financial statements are required by law to give a true and farr view of the state of affars of the Parent Gompany
tn prepanng each of the Group ana Parent Company financiat statements, the Directars are required to

select sutable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,

make judgements and estirnates that are reasonabile and prudent,

for the Group financial statements, state whether they have been prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU,

for the Parent Company financial statements  state whether apphcable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any
matenal departures disclosed and explaned in the Parent Company financial statements and

& propare the financial statements on the going concern basis undess it 18 inapproprate to presume that the Group and the Parent Campany
will continue in business

The Drectors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records that disclose with reasonable accuracy al any tme the financial position of
the Parent Company and enable them to ensure that its financial statements comply with the Companies Act 1985 They have generaf
responsiniity for taking such steps as are reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of the Group and to prevent and detect fraud and
other sregulanties Under applicable law and regulations, the Directors are also responsible for prepanng a Directors Report, Directors
Rermuneration Repaort and Corporate Governance Statement that comply with that law and those regulations

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial nformation included on the Company's website
Legislalion in the UK gaverning the preparation and dgseminatran of financial statements may differ from legisiation in other junsdictions

www.dechra com
stock code DPH
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Independent Auditors’ Report

Wae have audited the Group and Parent Gompany financial statements (the “financial staterments”) of Dechra Pharmaceuticals PLC for the year ended
30 June 2008 which compnse the Consohdated Income Statement, the Gonsolidated and Parent Company Balance Sheets, the Gonsolidated
Statement of Cash Flows, the Cansolidated Staternent of Changes in Shareholders Egquity and the related notes These financal staternents have
been prepared under the accounting policies set out therein We have alsa audited the information in the Directors' Remuneration Report that 1s
descnbed as having besn audrted

This report is made solely 1o the Company's members, as a body, In accordance with section 235 of the Companies Act 1985 Our audit work
has been undertaken so that we might stats to the Company's members those matters we are required to state to them i an auditor s report
and for no other purpose To the fullest extent parmitted by law we do not accept or assume responsibdty to anyone other than the Company
and the Company s members as a body for our audrt work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed

Respective Responsibilities of Directors and Audltors

The Directors' responsibilities for prepanng the Annual Report and the Group financal statements in accordance with applicable lew and
International Financial Reporting Standards (FRSs) as adopted by the EU, and for preparig the Parent Company financial statements and the
Directors’ Remuneration Report in accordance with applicable law and UK Accounting Standards (UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice)
are set out In the Staternent of Directors Responstblities on page 47

Qur responsibiity 15 to audit the financial statemeants and the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited in accardance with
relavant tegal and regulatory requirements and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland)

Wa repori (¢ you our opinion as to whether the financial statements give a true and fair view and whether the financial statements and the part of
the Directors Remuneration Repart to be audited have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985 and as regards
the Group financial statements Arucle 4 of the IAS Regulation We also report 10 you whather in our opinton the information given in the
Directors’ Report 1s conststent wath the financial statements The information gven in the Directars’ Report includes that specific information
presentad in the Directors’ Business Rewview that 1s cross-referenced from the Business Review and Future Developments section of the
Dwrectors’ Report in addiion we report to you (f, in our opimion, the Company has not kept proper accounting records, if we have not recenved
all the information and explanations we require for our audt, or if nformation specied by law regarding Directors remuneration and other
transactions 1s not disclosed

We review whather the Corporate Govarnance Staternent reflects the Company s compliance with the nine provisions of the 2006 Combined
Code specified for our review by the Listing Rules of the Financial Services Authonty, and we report If it does not We are not required to
consider whether the Board's statements on intemnal control cover all nsks and controls, or form an opinion on the effectiveness af the Group's
corporate governance procedures or its nisk and control procedures

Wa read the other information contained n the Annual Report and consider whether it 1s consistent wath the audited financial statements We
consider the implications for cur report If we become aware of any apparent misstatements or matenal inconsistencies with the financial
statements Our responsibiiiies do not extend to any other inforrnation

Basls of Audlt Opinlon

We conducted our audt n accordance with nternational Standards on Auditing (UK and freland) issued by the Audting Practices Board An audit
ncludas examination, on a test basis, of evdence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements and the part of the Directors’
Remuneration Repori to be audited 1t also ncludes an assessment of the sgnificant estimates and udgements made by the Diectors i the preparation
of the financial staternents and of whether the accounting policies are appropnate to the Group's and Company's circumstances consistently appled
and adequately disclosed

Wa planned and performed our audit $o as to obtain all the Information and explanations which we considered necessary in order to promde us
with sufficient evidence 10 give reasonable assurance that the financiaf statements and the part of the Directors Remuneration Report to be

audited are free from matenal rmisstaterment, whether caused by fraud or other rregularity or errer In torming our opinion we alsa evaluated the
overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the financial statements and the part of the Directors' Remuneration Report to be audited

Opinlon
In cur opimon

& the Group financial statemsnts give a true and far view, In accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU, of the state of the Group's affarrs
as at 30 June 2008 and of its profit for the yaar then ended,

& the Group financial statements have been propenly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985 and Aruicle 4 of the IAS Regulation,

® the Parent Company financial statements give a true and fair view, n accordance with UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, of the
state of the Parent Company s affars as at 30 June 2008,

® the Parent Company financial statements and the part of the Directors' Remuneration Report 10 be audited have been properly prepared in
accordance with tho Companles Act 1985 and

& theinformation given In the Directors’ Report s consistent wath the fmancial statements

WwfPree Doatoe P\

KPMG Audit Plc

Chartered Accountants

Registered Auditor

2 Cornwall Street

Birmingham

B3 2DL

2 Septermber 2008
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Dechra Pharmaceuticals PLC

Annual Report and Accounts tar the year anded 30 June 2008

Consolidated Income Statement

For the year ended 30 June 2008

2008 2007
Amortisation Amortisation
of acquired of acqurred
intangibles and ntangbles and

rationalisation

rationalisation

Adjusted  costs (note 5) Total Adjusted costs (note 5) Total

Nete £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Revenue 2 304,374 — 304,371 253,803 - 253,803
Cost of sales (250,771) - (250,771) {216,952) - {216,952)
Gross profit 53,600 - 53,600 36,851 - 36,851
Distnbution costs (13,360) -— (13,360) {(10,850) - 10,850)
Administrative expenses (21,098) {5,071) {26,169} {12,125) 27) {12,152)
Operating profit 2 19,142 {5,071) 14,071 13 876 2n 13,849
Finance income 3 1,973 —_ 1,873 1,044 - 1,044
Finance expense ) 4 (4,262) on {4,339) (2,272) - 2,274
Profit betore taxation 6 16,853 {5,148) 11,705 12,646 {27) 12619
Incomae tax expense 8 (4,668) 1,281 (3,387) 3,780) 8 3772
Profit for the year attnbutable to
equity holders of the parent 12,185 (3,867) 8,318 8,866 19 8,847
Earnings per share
Basic 10 14 20p 16 86p
Diluted 10 14 08p 16 B2p
Dhvidend per share (Intenm paid
and final proposed for the year) 9 8 25p 7 50p
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

At 30 June 2008

2008 2007

Note £'000 £'000
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Intangible assets 11 80,375 13,089
Praperty, plant and eguipment 12 B,224 5,739
Defarrad tax asssts 14 1,053 -
Total non-current assets 99,652 18 828
Current assels
Inventones 15 32,435 25,732
Trade and other recewvables 16 47,445 36,173
Cash and cash equivalsnts 17 22,19 17,222
Total current assets 102,099 79,127
Total assets 2M,751 a7,955
LIABILITIES
Current habilihes
Bormowings 20 (21,218) (4 528)
Trade and other payables i8 (62,596} (48 641)
Current tax habilities 19 (2,824} (2 464)
Total current habilities (86,638) (55,634}
Non-current liabtlities
Barrowings 20 {27,908) (11,686)
Deferred tax habilties 14 {15,316) {147}
Total non-current habilhes {43,314) 11 813)
Total babilities (129,952) {B7 447)
Net assets 1,789 30 508
EQUITY
Issued share capital 22 652 528
Share pramium account 62,166 28,041
Hedging reserve 281 {71y
Foreign currency transiaton reserve 1,608 -
Merger reserve 1,770 1770
Retanea earnings e 5,322 240
Total equity attributabie to equity hdlders of the parent 71,799 30,508

The financial statements\were approved b)\ e Board of Directors on 2 Septernber 2008 and are Signed on its behalf by

kan Page Director

. ST
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Dechra Pharmaceuticals PLC
Annual Repart and Accounts 1or the year ended 30 June 2008

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity

For the year ended 30 June 2008

Foreign
Issued Share currency
share premium Hedging translation Merger Retained

captal account reserve reserve reserve earnings Total
Year ended 30 June 2007 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
At 1 July 2006 519 27,693 (71) - 1,720 {5 948) 23,915
Profit for the penod beng total
recognised Incoma and expense
for the penod - - - — - 8,847 8847 |
Dividends pard - - - - (3,595 (3,595) |
Share-based payments including 1
cumrent and deferred tax - - - - - 934 934
Shares 1ssued 9 348 - - 50 - 407
At 30 June 2007 528 28 041 (71) - 1,770 240 30,508
Year ended 30 June 2008
At 1 July 2007 528 28,041 1) - 1,770 240 30 508
Profit for the penod — - - - - 8,318 8,318
Far value gains on dernvative
financial nstruments - - 352 - - - 352
Exchange differences on translation
of foreign operations - - - 1,608 - - 1,608
Total recognised mcome and
expense for the penod - — 352 1,608 - 8,318 10,278
Dwvidends paid — - - - -— (4,420) {4,420
Share-based payments including
current and deferred tax - - - - - 1,184 1,184
Shares issued 124 35,636 - - - - 35,780
Share 1ssue expenses - {1,511} - - —_ - (1,511}
At 30 June 2008 852 62,166 28 1,608 1,770 5,322 71,799

Hedging Reserve
The hedging reserve represents the cumulative fair value gains of losses on dervative financial instruments for which hedge accounting has been
apphed

Foreign Currency Transiation Reserve
The toreign currency translation reserve contains exchangs differences on the translation of subsidianes with a functional currency other than sterling

Merger Reserve
The merger reserve represents the oxcess of far value over nominat value of shares issued In censideratian for the acgquistion of subsidianes where
statutory merger relef has been applied in the financiat statements of the Parent Comparny
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 30 June 2008

2008 2007
Note £'000 £'000
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit tor the penod 8,318 8,847
Adjustments for
Depraciation 1,291 984
Amortsation 3,230 137
Loss/{gain) on sale of property plant and equipment 15 7)
Finance mcome {1,973) (1044
Finance axpense 4,339 2,274
Equrty-settled share-based payment expenses 603 479
Income tax expense 3,387 3,772
Operating cash flow before changes in working capital 19,210 15,442
Increase i Inventones {3,912) 3,737)
Increase n trade ana other recenatles (3,070) (248)
Increase n trade and other payables 3,825 2,871
Cash generated from operations 16,053 14,328
Interest paid {4,450) (2,228)
Ihcome taxes paid {3,041) (2,895)
Net cash from operating activilies 8,562 9,205
Cash flows from investing actmities
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 5 23
Interest recetved 1,648 1,058
Acquisihon of subsichanas 27 {65,151) 717}
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (694) {823y
Capitalised development expenciture (1,331) {t,6B0)
Purchase of other intangible nor-current assets {92} (2,845)
Net cash from investing activities (65,615) (4,983)
Cash flows from financing actwities
Proceeds from the issue of share capitat 35,747 357
Share 1s50e expenses (1,511) —
New borrowings 50,200 -
Expenses of rassing new borrowings {751) -
Repayment of borrowings (17,185) {3 481)
Dmdends paid (4,420 {3,595)
Net cash from financing activities 62,080 6,719)
Net increasa/{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 5,027 (2,497)
Cash and cash equivalents at start of periog 17,222 19,719
Exchange differences on cash and cash equvalents {30 -
Cash and cash equivalents at end of penod 22,219 17 222
www.dechra.com 53
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows continued

Reconciliation of net cash flow to movement th net borrowings
For the year ended 30 June 2008

2008 2007

Note £'000 £'000

Net increase/(decrease} in cash and cash equivalents §,027 (2,497}
Repayment of borrowings 17,185 3,481
New borrowings {50,200} —

Borrowings assurned on acquisition of subsidianes 27 — {55}
New finance leases (319) {956)

Other non-cash changes 283 {25}
Movement in net cash/(borrowings) In the period (28,024) {52)
MNet cash at start of penod 1,027 1079
Net (borrowings)/cash at end of period 24 (26,997} 1,027




Dechra Pharmaceuticats PLG
Annual Report and Accounts for the year ended 30 June 2008

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1. Accounting Policles

Dechra Pharmaceuticals PLC 15 a Company domiciled in the United Kingdom  The consoliGated financial statements of the Group for the year

ended 30 June 2008 compnse the Company and its substdianes

{a) Statement of Compliance
The Consolidiated Financial Statements have been prepared and approved oy the Directors in accardance with International Financial
Reporting Slandards as adopied by the European Union The Company has elected Lo prepare its Parent Company financial statements
In accordance with UK GAAP and thay are separately prasented on pages 91 to 99
The accounting policies set cut below have unless otherwisa stated, besn applied consistently to all periods presenied n thase Group
fimancial statements
The Group s significant accounting pohcies are listed below

(b} Basis of Preparation
The financial staterments are presented n Sterfing, roundad to the nearest thousand They are prepared on the historical cost basis
except for dervalive fmancral instruments and cash-settled share basad transactions that are stated at fair vatue
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRSS requires management to maka judgements, estmalas and assumptions
that affect the apphcahon of policies and reported amounts of assels and lablies income and expenses The eshimates and associated
assumphions are based on histoncal expenence and varnous other factors that are believed to be reasonabla under the crcumstances
the results of which form the basis of making the jJudgements about carrying valuss of agsets and kabiltes that are not readily apparent
from other sources Actual results may differ from these estimates
Ihe estmates and underlying assumptions are raviswed on an ongoing basis Ravisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the
peonod in which the estmate is revised if the revision affects only that penod, or in the penod of the rewsion and tuture periods If the
revision affects both current and future periods Judgements mads by Directors in the application of accounting policies that have a
significant effect on the Financial Statements and estimates with a signiicant risk of matenal adustment In the next year are discussed
In note 28
Durng the perniod, the Company adopted the following accounting statements
— IFRS 7 Financial Instruments  Oisclosures and the related amendment to 1AS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements —

Capital E.sclosures
— IFRIC 7 Applying the Restatement Approach under |AS 29 Financial Reporting i Hypernilationary Economies
~— IFRIC B Scope of IFRS 2
— IFRIC 9 Reassassment of Embedded Dertvatves
— IFRIC 10 Interm Financial Reporting and impairmeant
— IFRIC 11 Group and [reasury Share Transactions
These have resulted In additional disclosures, but have hag no impact on reported profit or net assels
At the date of authensation of thase financial statemants, the following Standards/revisions to Standards and Interpretations which hava
not been appled in thess financial statements were I sssue but not vet effective
—~ [FRS 2 Shars-hased Payments {revisad 2008}
— IFRS 3 Business Combinations {revised 2008)
— IFRS & Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Oparations frevised 2008)
— IFRS 8 Operating Segments
— IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements {rewsed 2007/2008)
— |AS 16 Property Plant and Equipment (rewised 2008)
— |AS 19 Employee Beneflits {revised 2008}
— 1AS 23 Borrowing Gosts (revised 2008)
— IAS 27 Consoldated and Separate Financial Statements (revised 2008)
— IAS 28 Investments n Associates (revised 2008)
— |AS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures (revised 2008)
— lAS 32 Francial Instruments  Prasentation frevised 2008)
— 1AS 36 Imparment of Assets [revised 2008)
— |AS 38 Intangible Assets (revised 2008)
— IAS 39 Financial Instruments Recognition and Measurerment (rewised 2008)
— IFRIC 12 Service Concession Arrangements
— IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes
— IFRIC 1« The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset Minwmum Funding Requiremants and ther Inferaction
The Directors anticipate that the adopticn of these Standards/revisions to Standards and Interpretations in future penods will have no
material impact on the financial statements of the Group except for additional segmant disclosure when IFRS 8 comes into effect for
peniods commencing on or after 1 January 2009 and the financial staterment presentation changes under 1AS 1 (revised 2007/2008)
which also comes inte eftact for perods beginning on or atter 1 January 2009
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Dechra Pharmaceuticals PLC
Annual Report and Accounts tor the year ended 30 June 2008

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

1.

Accounting Pollcles continued

(o)

{d)

(e)

Basts of Consolidation

{# Subsidlaries
Subsidhdries are enliies conlrolled by the Company Control exists when the Company has the power, drectly ar indirectly, to
govern the financsal and operating policies of an entity so as to obtan benefits from its activites  The financial statements of
subsidiaries are included in the Consolidated Financial Statements from the date that control commences until the date that control
ceases

(i) Transactions Eliminated on Consolidation
Intra-Grron batances and any unrealised gains ang losses or income and expenses ansing from intra-Group transactions are
alrminated n preparing the Consoldated Financial Statements

Business Combinations

The acquisiion of subsiiaries 15 accounted tor using the purchase method The cost of the acquisiion 1s measured at the aggregate of the far
values at the date of completion of assats gven kabhities incusred or assumed and equity mstruments 1ssued by the Gompany in exchangse
far control of the acquires, plus any costs diractly attnbutahle to the business combinaton The acquires's indentifiabile assets, labdnes and
contingent labies that meet the conditons for recogniion under IFRS3 are recognised at ther far value at the acquisiion date

Foreign Currency Translation

[0} Functional Currency
hems included n the financial statements of each of the Group's entities are measurad using the cumency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operales {the funchonal currency)

{n}  Foretgn Currency Translation
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevaiing at the dates of the
transaction Foreign exchange gans and losses resulting from the settlemant of such transachons and from the translation of
monetary assats and habdites denominated n foreign currencies are recogrised i the income statement

(i} Foreign Operations
The results and financial position of all the Group entities that have a functional curency diferent from the funcuonal currency of the
Parent Company are translaled into sterling as follows

@ assets and habilties are translated at the closing rate at the reporting date,
(i income and expensas are ranslated at 1the average rate for the pered being reported

On consaolidation exchange differances ansing {rom the transtation of tha net investment i foresgn entities are taken to
Shareholders' equity, beeng recognised in the fareign currency transiation reserve

Goodwill and far valus adjustrments ansing on the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and kabiiities of the foreign
entity and translated at the closing rate On drsposal of a forexgn entily accumulated exchange differences are recognised In the
income statement i the same pencd n which the gain or loss on disposal s recogrised

There a-3 ~o (Group entities operating in a hypennflationary economy

Financial Assets and Liabilities

Financlal assets

The Group classffies its financial assets nto the following categonies held for trading tinancial assets loans and recevables held-1o-
matunty nvestments and avallable-tor-sale financial assets The classification depends on the purpese for which the assets are held

Managemaent determunes the classdication of 43 financlal assets at nitial recognition n accordance with IAS 39 FAnancial Instruments
Recognition and Measurement and re-evaluates this designation at every reporting date for financia! assets other than those held at far
value through the ncome statement

Held for trading financial assets |
This category has two sub-categories financial assets held for trading and those designated at far value through the Income statemant
at nception A financial asset 1s classified n this category f acquired principally for the purpose ot selkng in the short term or 1f 8o
designated by management Denvatves that do not qualfy for hedge accounting are alsa categorised as held tor trading

Axvailable-for-sale financial assets

Avalable-for-sale financial assets are non-dervative financial assets that are either designated inthis category or not classified in any of
tha other categenies They are mehuded in non-currend assets unless management intends to dispose of the yvestment within 12 months
of tha reporting date

Held for trading financlal assets are recogrised and subsequently carmed at fair value Avalable-for-sale financial assels are recognised
and subsequently carried at far value plus any directly attrbitable ransaction costs Loans and recevables and held-to-matunty
nvestments are camed at amortised cost using the effective interest method Financial assets not cammed at far value through the income
statement are iniially recogrused at far value plus transaction casts

Financial assets are deracognisad when the nghts to recerve cash flows from the assets have expired or have been transferred and the Group
has transferred substantrally all nsks and rewards of ownership Gains and losses {both realised and unrealised) ansing from changes in the
vake of financtal assets held at far value through the mcome statement are ncluded in the income statement n the penod n which they anse
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1.

Accounting Policies continued

(g}

Unrealised gains and losses ansing from changes in the far value of non-monetary secunties classified as avalable-for-sale are
recognised in equity When secunties classified as avallable-tor-sale are sold or impared, the accumulated far value adjustments are
included in the Income staternent as gains and losses from investment securities

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there 1s objective awmdencs that a financial agset or a Group of financial assels Is
mpaved in the case of equity secunties classified as avaiable-for-sale, a significant or prolonged decline In the lar value of the securtty
belovs its cost 1s considered m determining whathar the secunties are mmparred If any such evidence exists for avalable-for-sale financial
assets, the cumulative loss, measured as tha difterance hetween the acguisition cost and the current far value, less any imparment foss
on that financial asset previously recognised In the income staternent 1s ramoved from equity and recognised In the Income statement
Imparmant fosses recognised on these INstrumants are not reversed through the income statement if the far value of the instrument
ncreases in a later penod

Drertvative financial instruments

The Group uses derivative financial INstruments to manage its exposure 1o farelgn exchange and nterest rate nsks in accordance with its
troasury policy, the Group does not hold or issue dervative financial instruments for speculative purposes However, dervatives that do
not qualily for hedge accounting are accounted for as trading nstruments

Derwvatives are intially recogrised at far value on the date a dervalive contract 1s entered nto and ars remaasured to far vahe at each
reporting date

Hedging

Cash flow hedges

Changes in the far value of denvative financtal Instruments designated as cash flow hedges are recognised directly in equity to the extent
that the hedge I1s effective To the extent that the hedge 1s neffective, changes in fair value are recogrisad in profit or 10ss

If the hedging instrument no longer meels the critena for hedge accounting expires or I1s sold, terminated or exercised, then hedge
accounting 1s discontinued prospectively The cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in equity remains there until the forecast
transaction occurs When the hedged item 1s a non-financial asset, the amount recognised n equity 1s transferred 10 the carmyng armount
of the asset when it 1s recogrised In other cases, the amount recognised in equity 1s fransferred to profit or loss in the same penod that
the hedged tem affects profit or loss

Hedges of net investment in forexgn operations

Foreign currency differences ansing on the retranslation of a financial iability designated as a hedge of a net investment in a foreign
operation are recogn sed in the Foreign Currency Translation Reserve within equity to the extent that the hedge is effectve To the extent
that the hedge is ineffective such differences are recogrused in profit or loss When the hedged part of a net investment 1s disposed of,
the associated cumnulative amount In equity 1s transferrad to protit or loss as an adgustment to the profit or loss an disposal

Receivables

Recelvables ara non-dervative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted n an active market They arise
when the Group provides money goods or services directly to a third party with no intention of trading tha recevable They are included
In current assets, except for those with matunties greater than one year after the balance sheet date (these are classified as non-current
assels) Recevables are included in frade and other recevabiles in the balance sheet

Recenvables are recognised inially at far value and subsequently measured at amortised cost Amortised cost 1s determined using the
effective interest method less an allowance for impaiment An allowancs for impalrment of recevables s established when there s
objective evidence that the Group will not be able to coflact all amounts due according to the onginal terms of the recevables The
amount of the allowance 1s the diference between the asset s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
{discounted at the effective nterest ratel The allowance 1s initially recogrused in the iIncoma statement

Trade and Other Payables
Trads and other payables are nitially recognised at far value and subsequently at amortised cost

Borrowings

Borrowings are recogrused nmially at far value nat of directly attributable transaction costs incurred Borrowings are subsequantly stated
at amortised cost Any difference between the proceeds [net of transachon costs) and the redempton value s recognised i the income
statement over the penod of the borrowings using the effective Interest method

Borrowings are classified as current labiliies unless the Group has an uncanditional nght to defer settlement of the liabthity for at least
12 months after the reporting date

Property, Plant and Equipment

{} Owmed Assets
tterns of property, olant and equipment are stated al cost less accumulated depraciation {see below) and impairrment losses (see
accountng poticy k)

{ti} Leased Assets
Leases under the terms of which the Group assumes suhstantially all the nsks and rewards of ownership are classffied as finance
leases Assets acqured by finance leases ara stated at an amourtt equal to the lower of tharr far value and the presant value of the
mirimum leasa payments at inception of the lease, less accumuiated depreciaton and mpaimment losses
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

1. Accounting Policies continued

{in)

)]

Subsequent Costs

The Group recognises in the carrying amount of an item of property plant and eguipment the cost of replacing part of such an item
when that cosl 1s incurred 1f 1l 1s probable that the future economic benefts embodied with the item will Now 1o the Group and Lhe
cost of the tem can be measured rebably All other costs are recognised in the ncome statement as an expense as Incurred

Depraciation

Depreciation is ¢charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lves of each part of an tem of
property, plant and equipment Land 1s not depreciated Assets In the course of construction are not depreciated until the date the
assats become avallable for use The estimated usetul lives are as follows

@&  ireehold buloings 25 yaars

[ short teasehold buidings penod of lease
[ plant and fixtures 3-10 years

®  motor vehicles 4 yaarg

The res dual value, Il not Insigrifit.ant 1s reassessed anryally

) Intangible Assets

(i)

{1y

{it)

{iv)

]

{vi)

Goodwill

All busingss combinations are accounted Tor by applying the purchase method Goecdwil represents amounts ansing on acquisticn of
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures In respect of business acquisitions that hava occurred since 1 July 2004 goodwall
represents the diference batween the cost of the acquisition and the far value of the assets, liabities and contingent llabilities
acqured

In respect of acquisitions pror to this date, goodwall 15 included on the basis of Its deemed cost, which represents the amount
recorded under previous GAAP The classification and accounting freatment of business combinations that occurred prior to 1 July
2004 wers net reconsidered in preparing the Group s opening IFRS balance sheet at 1 July 2002

Goodwill s stated at cost less any accumulated mparment losses Goodwll 1s not amortised but 1s allocated to cash generating
units and 1s tested annually for mparment

Research and Development Costs
Expenditure on research actmibies, undertaken with the prospect of ga ming new scientfic or fechnical knowledge and
unoierstanding 15 recognised n the incoma staternent as an expense s incurrad

The Group is also engaged in development activity with 2 view 0 bringing new pharmaceutical products 10 market Internally
generated costs of develocpment are capitalised in the balance sheet unless those costs cannot be measured reliably or it 1s not
prokable that future cconomic benefits will flow o the Croup, iIn which case the rolevant costs are expensed to the income
staterment as incurred Due to the stnct regulatory process nvolved, there is inherent uncertainty as to the technical feasibility of
development projects often until regulatory approval Is achueved, with the possibility of falure even at a late stage The Group
considers that thus uncertainty means that the critena for capitahsation are not mat unless it 1s highly probable that requlatory
approval will be achieved and the project 1s commercially viable

Whara development costs are capitalised the expenditure mcludes the cost of matenals, direct labvour and an appropnate
proportion aof overheads

Capitalsed development expenditure 15 stated at cost less accumutated amortisation and mparment losses

Acquired Intangible Assets
Intangible assets recognised as a result of a business combination are stated at far value at the date of acouisition less
accumulated amortisat:on and imparment losses

Other Intangible Assets
Other mtanglble assets that are acquired by the Group are stated at cost less accumutated amortisation and imparment losses
Expenditure on internally generated goodwill and other intangblas s recognised in the Income statement as an expensa 1S ncurred

Subsequent Expenditure
Subsequent expenditure on capitalised mtangible assets s capitalised only when it Increases the future economic benefis
embodcied in the specific asset to which it relaies All other expenditure 1s expensed as incumred

Amortisation

Amortsation s charged to the income statement on a straight-ng basis over the estimated usefut kives of Intangible assets unless
such Ives are ndefinte Goodwall and ntangible assets with an ndefinite useful Ife are systernatically tesled for enpasrment at each
balance shect dats Other intangble assets are amortisad trom the date that they are avalable for use The estimated usstul lives ars
as follows

®  sofware S years

[ ] capriaised development costs 510 years

[ ] acqgured ntangidlas 1015 years

®  patent nghts Period of patent

®  marketing authonisations Indsfinite life

® product nghts Period of product nghts
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1.

Accounting Policies continued

it

0

(k)

(m)

Inventories
Inventones are stated at the lower of cost and net realisatle value Net realisable value 15 the estmated sellng pace in the ordinary course
of business, less the estimated costs of complation and selling expensas

The cost ot Inventories is based on the first-in, first-out principle and Includes expendtture incurred in acquinng the inventores and
bringing them to their existing location and condition In the case of manufactured inventones and work In progress, cost includes an
Appropriate share of overneads based on normal operatng capacity

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and ¢ash equivalents compnise cash balances and call daposits Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group s cash management are included as a component of cash and cash equivalents for the purposs of the
statement of cash flows

impairment
The carrying amounts of the Group s assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets, are reviewed at each balance shest date 1o
determine whether there I1s any indication of imparment #f any such indication exists, the asset's recoverable amount 15 eshmated

Tha recoverabile amount of assets Is the graater of ther nat seling price and valus in use In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to thar present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and tha nsks specific to the asset For an asset that does not generate largely independent cash inflows, the recoverable
amount 1s cetermined for the cash-genarating unit to which the asset belongs

For goodwill, assets that have an indefinite usefid lde and ntangble assets that are nol yet avalable for use, the recaverable amount 1s
estimated at each balance sheet date and when thera 1s an indication that the asset 1s iImpaired

Anmpawment loss Is recognised whenever the carmying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount
Imparment logses are recogrised in the income statement

Imparment losses recognised in respect of cash-generating units are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwall
allocated t0 the cash-generating units {group of urits), and then to reduce the carrying amount of the other assets N the units (group of
units} on a pro rata basis

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed

In respect of olher assets, an mparment loss 1s reversed if there has been a change i the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount

An imparment loss is reversed only 10 the extent that the asset s carrying amount does not exceed the camying amount that would have
been determined, net of deprectation or amortisation, § no imparment loss had been recogrised

Dividends
Dividends are recognised i the periad in which they are approved by the Company's Shareholders or, in the case of an intenm dwvdend
when the divdend s pad

Employee Benefits

0} Pensions
The Company operates a Group stakeholder personal pension scheme for certan employees Obligations for contributions are
recogrused as an expense in tha ncoma statement as mcurred

{it  Share-Based Payment Transactions
The Group operates a number of equity-settied share-based payment prograrmmes that allow employees 1o acguire shares of the
Campany The Group also operates a Long Term Incentive Plan for Directors and senor Executvas

The fay vakie of shares or options granted 1 recogrised as an employee expense on a straight ine basig n the ncome statement
with a corresponding movement in equity The fair valua 1s maasured at grant date anc spread cver the period during which the
employees become unconditicnally entitled to the shares or options (the vesting penod) The far value ¢f the shares or options
granted 1s measured using & valuation model taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the shares or options were
granted The amount recognised as an expense N the ncome staterment 1s adjusted to taka into account an estimate of the
number of shares or oplions that are expacted to vest together with an adjustment to reflect the number of shares or options that
actually do vast except where forfeiture 15 only due to market-based conditions not heing achieved

The tar values of grants under the Long Term Incentve Plan have been determined using the Monte Carlo simulation model

The tar values of options granted under all other share option schemes have been detemrminad using the Black-Schotes option
pricng model

National Insurance contnbutions payable by the Company on the intringic value of share-based payments at tha date of exercise
are ireated as cash-settled awards and revalued to markel price at each balance sheet date
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

1. Accounting Policies continued

(n)

{0

P

la

{r}

60

Revenue

[0)] Goods Sold
For poth Pharmaceuticals and Services, revenue from the sale of goods Is recognised n the income statement when the significant
nsks and rewards of ownershin have besn fransterred to the buyer This s normally when the buyer takes delivery of the goods
Appropnate provision 1S macle, based on past axperence, for the possible return ot goods and discounts given to customers

n) Services Provided
Revenue i1s recogrised when the contractual service has been provided 1o the customer

(b)) Royalty and Milestone Payments
Milestone payments receved from the granting of distribution and marketing nghts for products are recogrused in the ncome
statement over the periog in wivch the Company fulfils the longer of all of its obligations and the penod Tor which rights are granted
relating to such payments

Expenses

m Operating Loase Payments
Payments made under oparating leases ars recognised in the income statamanit on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease
Lease incentives receved are recognised i the Incoma statement evenly over the penad of the lease, as an integral part of the total
lease expensa

{il Finance Lease Payments
Minimum lease payments are apportioned between the finance charge and the reduction of the outstanding lability

(i} Met Financing Costs
Net financing costs comprnise interest payable on borrowings, interest recevable on funds Invested and gans and losses on
hedging instruments that are recogrisad Ih the ncome statement {see accounting policy f)

Interest ncome 1s recognised i the income statement as it accrues The interest expense component of inance lease paymenis Is
recognised In the :ncome statement usng the effective INterest rate method

Income Tax
Income tax on the profit or loss for the year compnses current and deferred fax Income tax 1s recogrised In the Incoma statement except
to the extent that it relates to tems recognised drectly in equity, in which case it 1s recognised in equrty

Cumrent tax 1s the expacted tax payable on the taxeble income for the year using tax rates enacied or substantvely enacted at the
balance sheet date, and any adjusiment to tax payable n respect of previous years

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet hability method and reprasents the tax payable or recoverable on most temporary
differences which anse between the carrying amounts of assets and liabiities for financlal reporting purpases and the amounts used for
taxation purposes (the tax base) Temporary differences are not provided on goodwill that 1s not deductible for tax purposes the initia
recognition of assets or labilitles that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit and do not anse from a business combination and
differences relating to invesiments in subsidianes to the extent that they will prabably not reverse in the toreseeable future The amount of
deferred tax provided 1s based on the expected manner of realisation or settlernent of the carrying amount of assets and lliabilities using
tax rates expected to apply n tha penod i which the llability 1s setiled or the asset 1s realised and 15 based upon tax rates enacted or
substantively ¢ ucled at the balance sheet date

A deferred tax asset 15 recogmised only to the extent that it s probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the asset
can e utdised Deterred tax assets are reduced to the extent that it s not probable that the related tax benefit will be realised against
future 1axable profits The carrying amounts of deferred tax assels are reviewead at each balance sheet date

Current and deferred tax credts recewed in respect of share-based payments are recognised in the Income Statement to the extent that
they do not exceed the standard rate of taxation on the income Staternent charge for share-based payments Credits in excess of the
standard rate of 1axation are recognised directly in eguity

Segment Reporting

A segment 15 a distingushable component of the Group that 1s engaged either in providing proaducts oF sericas [bLsiness segment), or I
providing products or services within a particular econom:ic environment {geographical segment}, which is subject to nsks and rewards
that are differant from those of other segments

Operating Profit and Qperating Cash Flow
Operating profit and operating cash flow is stated bafore investment income and finance Gosts
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2. Segmental Analysis

The Group’s primary reporting segment 1s busmness dmsions which correspond with the way the oparating businesses are organised and
managed within the Group and its secondary segment 15 geographical ongin

Segment results assets and habdites compnse those tems directly attnbutable to parhicular segments as well as items which can reasconably
he allocated to those segments Inter-segment transactions are entered into applying normal commercial terms that would be availlable to
third parties

Unallccated iterns compnse manly corporate assets, expenses koans and borrowings logether with the eliminaton of inter-segrmerit
fransactons

The composition of the segments I1s detaled in tha Drectors’ Business Review sechion of this Annual Report

The fallowing table analyses revenue and operating profit accordingly

Businass Segment
Phamaceuticals Services Unallocated Total

2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Revenue
External customers 45,187 19,736 259,184 234,067 —_ - 304,371 253 803
Inter-segment 9,115 6,912 179 140 {9,294) (7 G52) —_— —
Total revenue 54,302 26,648 259,363 234,207 (9,294) (7,052) 304,371 253,803
Adjusted operating profit 10,765 6,102 10,693 9,525 (2,3186) (1,751) 19,142 13,876
Amortisation of acguired intangibles
and rationahsation costs (5,035) {21) {36} {8) _— - (5,071} (27}
Operating profit 5,730 6,081 10,657 9,519 (2,316) (1751) 14,071 13,849
Finance income 1,973 1044
Finance expenss {4,339) (2274)
Profit bafore taxation 11,705 12,619
income tax expense {3,387) 3,772}
Profit for the year 8,318 8,847
Assets
Intangible assets 86,468 4,382 3,907 3,707 - — 90,375 13,089
Property, plant and equiprnent 6,401 3,624 1,823 2,115 s - 8,224 5,739
Other assets 35,140 15,071 80,706 70,090 650 156 116,496 85317
Cash offsst _— - - - {13,344) 6,190} (13,344) {6,190}
Total assets 128,009 28,077 86,436 75912 (12,694) (6,034) 2Mm,751 97,955
Luabiities
Barrowings (506} (586} {1.418) (1.489) (60,638)  (20310) {62,560) (22,385)
Other habilities (14,123) {5,452} (47,343} {42,571) (19,270) {3,229) (80,736) (51,252)
Cash offset —_ — . — 13,344 8,180 13,344 56,180
Total habities (14,629} {6,038) {48,761} {44,060} (66,562)  (17,348) {129,952) {B7,447)
Net assets/(labilities) 113,380 22,039 37,675 31,852 (79,256) (23 383) 71,799 30 508
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

2. Segmental Analysis contnued
Other Segment ltems
Capatal expenditure

— intangble assels 77,238 4 611 295 1,348 —_ - 77,533 5,059
— property, plant and equipmeant 3,448 549 232 585 —-_ - 3,680 1,144
Total capstal expendciture 80,686 5,180 h27 1,943 — - 81,213 7,103
Share-based payments charge —_ - —_ - 758 596 759 586
Depreciation and amortisation 3,922 568 599 552 — - 4,521 1,121
Geographical Segment
The following table shows revenue based on the geographical location of customers
2008 2007
£°000 £'000
UK 277,463 247,920
Rest of Europe 20,460 4,246
usA 5,266 1,121
Rest of world 1,182 516
304,371 253.803

The table below gives additional information in respect of segment revenue and segment operating profit, based on the geographical location of
tha business unit supplying the goods or services Segment assets and captal expenditure are based on the geographical locatien of the assets
and expenditure Activities In the UK comprise all operating segments Overseas operations comprise pharmmaceuticals only

UK usa Denmark Unallocated Total
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
£000 £000 £'000 000 £'000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Ravenue by geographucal ongin 280,847 253429 4,566 374 18,958 -_ — — 304,371 253,803
Adjustad opearating profit by
geographical ongn 18,857 15,825 450 (198 2,651 —  (2,318) (1,751) 19,142 13,876
Total assets 118,409 102,533 2,275 1456 93,769 — {12,694) (6034) 204,751 97,955
Capital expenditure
— ntangihle assets 3,584 5959 —_ — 73,948 - —_ — 77533 5,959
-~ propeity, plant and equpment 787 1,141 17 3 2,876 - —_ - 3,680 1,144
Total capital expenditure 4,37 7100 17 3 76,825 - — - 81,213 7,103
3. Finance Income
2008 2007
Recognised in profit or loss £'000 £°600
Finance income ansing from
— Cash and cash equivalents 1,631 1.018
~— Dervatives at fair value through profit or loss 325 -
— Loans and recaivables 17 28
1,873 1,044

62
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3. Finance Income continued
Finance income arising from dervatives at farr value through profit or loss relates to far value gains on forward foreign currency contracts

2008 2007
Recognised directly in equty £'000 £'000
Foreign currency translation differences for foreign operations 2,415 —
Net loss on hedge of net investment in foreign eperations (807 -
Recognised in freeign cumency translation reserve 1,608 —

2008 2007

£000 £ 000
Fair value gains on interest rate fipor and cetling 446 -
Income tax expensa on above 125) -
Arnount recycled to income statermant a -
Recognised i hedging reserve 352 -
Total recognisad in equity 1,960 —

4. Finance Expense

2008 2007

£'000 £.000
Finance expense ansing from
— Financial babulities at amortisad cost 4,281 2,228
— Denvatves at far value through profit or loss 58 48

4,338 2,274

Finance expansa ansing trom dertvatives at fair value through profit or loss relates to far value losses on foreign currency options and interest
rate floor and cellings

8. Adjusted Operating Profit and Profit before Taxation
Adjusted operating profit is calculated as follows

2008 2007
Qperating profit £'000 £'000
Operating profit 14,071 13,849
Amortisation of Intangibte assets acquired as a result of business comibnations 2,976 27
Ratonahsation costs ansing tollowing the acquisiion of VeXx Holdings A/S 2,096 -
Adpusted operating profit 19,142 13,878
Adjusted profit before taxation 1s calculated as follows
2008 2007
Profit befors taxation E°000 £'000
Profit batora taxaton 11,705 12,619
Amortisation of iIntangible assets acquired as a result of business combinations 2,975 27
Rationalisation costs ansing followng the acquisition of VetXX Holdings A/S 2,096 -
Wiite-off of unamortised arrangemsant fees on borrowings rafinanced as a resuit
of the acquisition of VatXX Holdings A/S 77 —
Adjusted profit before taxation 1€,853 12,646
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

6. Profit bofore Taxation
The following 1tlems have been included in arving at profit before taxation

2008 2007
£'000 £'000
Cost of Inventones recognised as an expense 247,801 214,802
Impairment of inventones included in above figure 548 446
Depreciation of progerty, ptart and equipment
— owned assets 1,065 806
— under finance leases 226 178
Amorhsation of ntangible assets 3,230 137
Loss/(profit) on disposal of property, plant and equipment 15 {7
Impairment ¢f recevables 788 1,183
Operating lease rentals payabfe 2,719 2,124
Research and deve'sgment expenditure as incured 2,408 1,645
Auditors’ remuneration 278 260
Analysis of total fees paid to the guditors
Audit of these financial statements 30 25
Auacit of financial statements of subsidianes pursuant to legislation 139 78
Other services pursuant to legislation 17 8
Other services relating to taxation 92 749
278 260

In acdition, payments made to the auditors of £964,000 (2007 £15 000) relating to corporate finance transactions have been capiialised as
part ot the acqusition cost of VetXX Holdings A/S
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7. Employees
The average numbers of staff employed by the Group dunng the year, which includes Directors, were

2008 2007
Number Number
Manutacturing 203 147
Distnbution 411 3580
Administration 275 210
889 747
The costs incurmed in respect of these employees were

2008 2007
£'000 £'000
Wages and salanes 19,766 13,292
Seclal secunty costs 1,848 1,358
Other pension costs 813 403
Share-based paymants charge (see note 23) 759 596
23,187 16,350

Related party transactions — the remuneration of key management was as follows
2008 2007
£°'000 £000
Wages and salanes {including benefits in kind) 1,750 1,489
Social secunty casts 224 192
Other pensior: costs 138 111
Share-hased payments charge 510 439
2,622 2241

Key management compnses Executive Diractors, the Product Development and Regulatory Affairs Director and the Divisional Managing

Dwectors

Details of the remuneration, shareholdings, share options and penston contriputions of the Executive Directors are included in the Directors’

Remuneration Report on pages 33 to 44

Tha Group operatas a staksholder perscnal pension schame for certain employeas The Group contnbuted betwesen 4% and 14% of

pensionable salanes which amounted te £813,000 (2007 £403,000)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

8. Income Tax Expense

2008 2007

£'000 £'000
Current tax  — charge for current year 3,687 3,361

— adj.a* nent In respect of prior years (29) {69}
Total current tax sxpense 3,658 3,282
Deferred tax — grigination and reversal of temporary differences {300} 409
= adjustment in raspect of prior years 29 71

Total deferred tax expense {271) 480
Total Income tax expense i the Income statement 3,387 3772
Of the current tax expense of £3,658,000, an amount of £14,000 (2007 £nif) was 0 respect of foreign terntornes
The tax on the Group’s profit before tax differs from the standard rate of UK corporation tax of 28% (2007 30%) The differences are
explained below

2008 2007

£000 £ 000
Profit before taxation 11,705 12,619
Tax at 28% (2007 309) 3,277 3,786
Effect of
— depreciation On assets not eligibie for tax allowances 15 47
— disallowable expenses 45 41
— uthsation of overseas losses {137) 58
— ovear-recovery of deferred tax on share-basad payments — {46)
-~ research and development tax credits —_ (80)
— differences on overseas tax rates (5) -
— reduction in tax rate used to calculate deferved tax liability 16 (56)
— adjustments in respect of pnor years - 2
— adustments due to changes in tax rate 176 —
Total iIncome tax expense 3,387 3772

Addtional current tax credits of £266,000 {2007 £454,000) and a deferred tax charge of £265,000 (2007 credit of £1,000) have been

recognised directly In equity

The corporation tax rate applicabie to the Company changed from 30% to 28% with effect from 1 Aprif 2008
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Dividends
2008 2007
£000 £'000
Final dnadend paidt in respect of pnor year but not recognised as a fability n
that year 5 00p per share (2007 4 33p} 2,640 2,278
Interim dividend paid 2 78p per share (2007 2 50p) 1,780 1,317
Total divdend 7 75p per share (2007 € 83p) recognised as distnbutions to squity holders in the pericd 4,420 3,595
Proposed final dvdend for the year anded 30 June 2008 5 50p per shara (2007 5 00p) 3,588 2,640
Total dvidend paid and proposed for the year ended 30 June 2008 8 25p per shara (2007 7 50p) 5,368 3957

In accordance with IAS 10 Events Atter the Balance Sheet Dats’, the proposad tinal dividend for the year ended 30 June 2008 has not
been accrued for in these financial statements It will be shown as a deduction from equity in the financial statements for the vear ending

30 June 2009

The proposed fina! dvdend for the year ended 30 Juns 2007 ts shown as a deduction from aquity in {he year ended 30 June 2008

10. Earnings per Share
Earmings per ordinary share have been caiculated by dmding the prott attnbutable 1o equity holders of the parent after taxaton for each financiat
penod hy the weightad average number of ordinary shares in issue dunng the period
2008 2007
Pence Pence
Bastic earnings ber share
— Adjusted basic 20 81 16 89
— Basic 14 20 16 86
Diluted garmings per share
- Adjusted diuted 2064 16 66
— Diluted 4 09 16 62
The calculations of basic and diuted earnings per share are based upon
£'000 £ 000
Earrungs for adiustad hasic and adjusted diuted earnings per share calculations 12,185 B,BB6
£arrings for basic and diuted earmnings per share figures 8,318 8,847
No No
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for basic earnings per shara 58,560,097 52,482 659
Impact of share options 464,486 737,011
Waighted average number of ordinary shares for diuted eamings per share 58,024,583 53,219,670
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

11. Intangibie Assets

Deveiop- Marketing
ment Patent Product authon- Acquired
Goodwili  Software costs nghts nghis satiens  mtangibles Total

Cost £'000 £00¢ £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
At 1 July 2008 4383 717 826 789 278 822 - 7817
Additions 467 591 1,680 257 - 31 2033 5,939
Disposals - — - - {278) - - (2738)
At 30 June 2007 and 1 July 2007 4,852 1,308 2,506 1046 - 253 2,933 13,498
Additions - 411 1,331 1879 - - - 3,621
Acquisition through business combinations 14,397 jeF:) 261 -_ - — 59,160 73,912
Disposals — - - - - - - -
Foreign exchange adustrmants 595 3 10 - - - 2375 2,983
At 30 June 2008 18,844 1,816 4,108 2,925 — 853 64,468 54,014
Amortisatian
At 1 July 2006 - 91 81 — 18 - - 290
Charge for the year - 58 52 - - - 27 137
Disposals - - - — (18) - - {18)
At 30 June 2007 and 1 July 2007 - 149 233 — - - 27 409
Chargs lor the year - 132 123 — - - 2975 3,230
Disposals — - - — - - - -
At 30 June 2008 — 281 356 — —_ — 3,002 3,639
Net book value
At 30 June 2008 18,844 1,535 3,752 2,925 — 853 61,466 90,375
At 30 June 2007 and 1 July 2007 4,852 1,159 2273 1,046 - 853 2,906 13089
At 1 July 2006 4,385 626 645 789 260 822 - 7,527

2008 2007

£'000 £'000
Gentracted capital commitments e 200
Software assets in the course of construction included above 935 1,158

Goodwill is allocated across cash-generating units and consequently a consistent approach in assessing the camying value of this armmount is
taken Key assumptions made in this respact are given :n note 13 The addition in the year arose from the acquistion of Vet’Xor Hokhngs A/S
{see nota 27}
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11. Intangible Assets contnued

Development costs are internalty gengrated All other additions (o intangible assets were acquired outside the Group and have been measured
at cost or far valug at the ume of acquisiion

The amorbisation charge 1s recognised within administratve expenses In the Income statement

Dunng the year ended 30 June 2003 the Group enterad inio an agreement with Bioenvision, a Company based in the USA, to acquire the
exclusive marketing and development nghts of Tnlostane for animal health applications in the USA and Canada Trilostane 1§ the active
ingredient in the Group s branded product Velory!Capsules Ths first stage payment of £789,000 ncluding legal costs was made n 2003 and
has peen capialised as a patent nght Depending upon certan milastoneas being acheved, the Group is committed to making two further
payments The second stage payment of US$750 000 bacomes payable on the submuission of a New Animal Drug Application to the US Food
and Drug Acministration ('FDA") and tha final payment of US$3,000 000 hecomes payable on the FDA granting a marketing authonsation for
VetorylCapsules These amounts are accrued for in these financtal statements Once a marketing authorisation has been granted and the
patent nght can be apphed commercrally the patent nghts will begin lo be amortised

£822 0 of the marketing authonsations relate to the Vetivex range of products The Vetvex marketing authonsations are regarded as having
Indefinite useful economic ives and have not besn amortised Ownership of the marketing authonsations rests with the Group in perpetuity
There are not believed i be any legal, regutatory or contractual provisions that hmit ther useful Iives  Vietvex 15 an established range of products
which are relatively simple in nature and there are a imited number of players in the market Accordingly, the Directors believe that it s
appropnate that the marketing authonsations are treated as having indefinite lives for accounting purposes

Acqured ntangibles compnse

—  Marketing authonsations, brands and trademarks of products recogrused on the acquis-tion of VetxX Holdings A/S

—  Customer relationshups recogrused on the acquisition ot Leeds Vetennary Laboratores Lirwted

—  Trademarks and brands recognised on the acqusition of Pharmaderm Animal Health
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

12. Property, Plant and Equipment

Freehold Short
land and leasehold Motor Plant and
buldings buldings vehicles fixturas Total
£°000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £°000
Cost
At 1 July 2008 13 2,601 433 7,500 10,547
Additions - 27 - 1,079 1106
Accuisiions through Eusiness combinations - - - 38 33
Disposals — — - {33 3%
At 30 June 2007 and 1 July 2007 13 2,628 433 8,584 11,658
Additions - 144 - 678 822
Acquisition through business combinations 2072 - — 786 2 858
Disposals - - (2) (1 524) (1,526)
Foreign exchange adjustments 84 - - 32 116
At 30 June 2008 2,169 2,772 431 8,556 13,928
Depreciation
At 1 July 2006 - 550 433 3,969 4,952
Charge for the year - 147 — B37 984
Disposals — —_ - {17} (17}
At 30 June 2007 and 1 July 2007 - 697 433 4 789 5919
Charge for the yaar 61 154 - 1076 1291
Disposals — - 2 1,504) {1,506}
At 30 June 2008 61 851 431 4,361 5,704
Net book value
At 30 June 2008 2,108 1,921 _— 4,195 8,224
At 30 June 2007 and 1 July 2007 13 1,931 — 3,795 5,739
At 3 July 2006 13 2,051 - 3,531 5,595
Net book value of s2<ets held under finance leases
At 30 June 2008 — B4 —— 838 1,022
At 30 Jung 2007 and 1 July 2007 - 70 - 1,172 1,242
At 1 July 2006 - 77 — 1,028 1108
2008 2007
£'000 £'000
Assets in the course of construction included above 200 370
Contracted capital commiiments az7 61
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13. Impairment Reviews
Goodwill indefinite life assets and ntangible assets not yet avallable for use are tested tor impairment annuzlly, or more frequently If there are
Indicatrons that amounts might be impaired The impanment test Involves determining the recoverable amounts of the relevant cash-generating
unit, which corresponds to the mgher of the far value less costs to self or its value In use Value in use calculations have been pertormed using
the methods and assumptions detailed below

(2)

Goodwill

The carmying amount of goodwill shown in note 11 compnses £2 621,000 (2007 £2,621,000) relating to the acguisition of North Western
Laboratones Limited and Leeds Vetennary Laboratones Limited, £2 231,000 {2007 £2,231 000} relating 1o the acquisition of Anghan
Pharma pic and £14 397,000 (2007 £ni) n respect of the acquisiticn of VetXX Holdngs A/S For the purpose of annual mpairment
reviews the goodwill relating to North Wastern Laboratones and Leeds Vetennary Laboratanas Limited has been allocated 1o the
Laboratones cash-generating unit, the goodwlt refating to Anghan Pharma plc has been allocated to the Dales Pharmaceutcals cash-
generating unit and the goodwil relating to VetXX Holdings A/S has been allocated to the VetXX cash-generating unit The recoverable
amount of all units 1s based on value In use caloufations The value in use of each of these cash-generating units has been determined by
discounting projected future cash flows by a pre-tax discount rate of 8 93%, being the Diractors’ estimate of the weighted average cost
of capial of the Company

Projected future cash flows have been derved from the annual buaget for the year ending 30 June 2009 extrapolated apphying a growth
rate of 5% ~3r annum up to year five and no growth In revenues beyend year five The strang market posiion of each busness justifies
considenng a penod in excess of five years

in all cases, 1he value in use s significantly igher than the carmyng amount and no mpairment provisicn 1s therefore required

(b) indefinite Life Assets
The Directors consider that the Vetivex marketing authorsations with a carmying amount of £822 000 have an indefinite ite Ther value in
use has been determined by discounting projected future cash flows by a pre-tax discount rate of 9 93%, being tha Direciors' estimate of
the weighted average cost of capital of the Gompany Projected future cash Hows have been denved from the annual budgst for the year
ending 30 June 2009 applying a growth rate of 5% per annum up to year five and no growth in revenues beyond year five
The value in use 15 significantly higher than the carrying amount and no imparrment provision 1s therefore requirad
{c} Intangible Assets not yet available for use
[0)] Vetory!
The Group 1s developing an intangible asset in respect of authonsation to market our product Vatory! Capsules In the USA This
intangible asset will only be avallable for use once marketing authonsation 1s racenvad from the FDA
The camyng amount in respect of this Intangible asset 1s as follows
2008 2007
£'000 £'000
Payment to acquire patent nghts to Trilostane (the active ingredient of Vetond Capsidas) 789 789
Subseguent development costs 1,869 1,263
Further Bicenvision milestone paymenis 1,879 -
4,537 2,052
Value in use has been detenmined by discounting the projected cash flows by a pre-tax discount rate of 14 3% The higher
discount rate reflects the uncertainty of the timing aof future cash flows Projected cash flows have been detenmined from a detaied
markeling plan covenng a five year penod from product launch extrapolated forward Na growth in revenues 1s assurnad after the
fith year following launch The marketing plan uses data on the market size and market penetration taking into account our
expenence in Jaunching Vetoryl Capsules in other tamiories
Based upon the above calculation, the value in use 1s significantly higher than the carrying amount and no Impairment provision
15 requred
() Fehmazole
The Group 1s developing an intangible asset i raspect of authonsation to market our product Fefimazole Tablets in the USA This
ntangible asset will only be available for use once market authonsation 1s receved from the FDA At 30 June 2008, the camyng
value of this intangible asset (included within development costs) was £697,000 (2007 £344,000)
Value in use has been determined by discounting the projected cash flows by a pre-tax discount rate of 14 93% The hughar
dhscount rate reflects the uncertainty of the timing of future cash flows Projected cash flows have been determined from a detaled
marketing plan covening a five year penod from product launch extrapolated forward No growth in revenues 1s assumed after the
fifth year following faunch Tha marksting plan uses data on the market sze and market panatration taking 1Nto account our
experience In launching Felimazote Tablets in other tesmones
Based upon the above calcutation, the value in use 1s significantly higher than the camying amount and no iImparment provision
IS required
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

14,

T2

Deferred Taxes
{a} Recogmsed deferred 1ax assets and liabihties
Deferred tax assets and kabilites are attnbutable to the following

Assets Liabilties Net
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
£'000 £ 000 £'000 £'000 £000 £'000
intangble assets — - {15,872 {740) (15,872) 740)
Property, plant and squipment — - (423} {325) (423) (325)
nventories 53 — {72) - (1%} -
Recewvables — 30 {2494) — {294) 30
Cash and cash equivalents — - — - —_ -
Borrowings — - —_ — —_ -
Payables 248 32 —_ - 248 32
Current tax hiabdities e - —_ - —_ -
Trading losses 1,309 - —_ - 1,300 -
Share-based payments 788 856 — - 788 856
2,398 918 (16,661) {1,085} (14,253 (147
Shown as
2008 2007
£000 2000
Deferred tax assals 1,053 -
Deterred tax latulities (15,316) (147}
{14,263) {147)
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset to the extent that there 1s a legally enforceanle nght to offset curent tax assets aganst current
tax habyhbes
{b) Unrecognised deferred tax assets
2008 2007
£'000 £'300
Tax lasses —_ 166
Overseas tax losses brought forward at 1 July 2007 have been utilised dunng the current financial year
{c) Movement in temporary differehces dunng the year
Balance at Recognised Recogrised Balance at
1 July 2006 Acquistions In INCorne Ineguly 30 June 2007
£'000 £'000 £000 £'000 £'000
Intangible assats {193) (113 {434} — {740}
Property, plant and equipment {311) - (14} — {328}
Inventoriaes — - — - —
Receivables 08 - {68) - 30
Cash and cash equivalents — - - - —
Barrowings —_ - -— - —
Payables 38 - (6} - 32
Current tax liabilities — a— — - -
Sharg-based payments 813 — 42 1 858
445 (113} {480) 1 (147)
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14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

Deterred Taxes continued 9
Foreign =
Balance at Recogrised Recogrised e«change Balance at ?
1 July 2007 Acquisitions nincome in equity adusiments 30 June 2008 @
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000 (DD
Intangible assets (740} (14,863) 331 - {600} (15,872) %
Property, plant and equipment {325} (138) 44 - {6} (423)
Inventones - 56 {71) - {4 19
Recewvablas 30 (84) 112 (125) 2 (294)
Cash and cash eguivalents — — — - - _—
Borrowings - — — - - —_—
Payables 32 201 7 - 8 248
Current tax kabilties — - - — - —_
Trading losses - 1,257 - — 52 1,309
Share-based payments 856 - 72 (140) - 788 o
(147) (13,569) 271 {2685) 553) (14,263) ?U
[u]
=t
Q
Inventories g
2008 2007 3
£:000 £'000 a2
Raw matenals and consumables 3,860 2,250
Work In progress 36 208
Finished gocds and goods tor resale 28,259 23274
32,435 25,732
Trade and Other Recelvables —
. 2008 2007
£:000 £:000 o
Trade recenvables 43,741 34,029 ‘é)
Other recevables 1,896 1,368 g
Prepayments and accrued income 1,808 776 %
47,445 36173 &
O
@
Cash and Cash Equivalents
2008 2007
£000 £000
Cash at bark and m hand 4,657 1,468
Short-term deposits 17,562 15,754
22,219 17 222
The short-term deposits are repayable on demand
o
=
Trade and Other Payables (_j)>
2008 2007 o]
£'000 £'000 e
Trade payables 50,177 44,019 =
Qther payables 5412 605
Other taxation and soctal secunty 3,894 1978
Accruals and deferred income 3,113 2,039
62,596 45 641
73
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

19. Current Tax Liabilltles

2008 2007
£'000 £'000
Corporation tax payable 2,824 2,464
20. Borrowings
2008 2007
£'000 £'000
Current habilitres

Bank loans and overdrafts 20,618 4,000
Finance lease oblgations 602 528
i 21,213 4,529

Non-gurrent abiities
Bank loans 27,500 10,200
Finance lease obligations 1,507 1546
Amrangement fees nettad off (1,009) (a0
27,998 11 666
Total harrowings 49,216 16,195

The Group's borrowing facilities compnse a term loan of £32 § milion repayable in equal instalments of £2 5 milkon each 30 June and
31 December, a £15 mullion revohang credit facility commutted untik 31 December 2012, an overdratt facility of £10 milkon renewable on 1 July

2009 and vanous finance lease atiligations

At the year end the Group had the following unutihsed borrowing faciities

2008 2007

£000 £'000

Revolving credit facility — 5006
Bank overdraft facility 10,000 4000
10,000 9 0G0

The term loan, revolving credit and overdraft facilities are secured by a fixed and floating charge en the assets of the Group Interest 1s charged
at 1 25% over LIBOR for the term loan, 1% over LBOR for the revohng cradit facility and 1% above base rate for the overdratt facility

The matunty of the bank loans and overdrafts s as follows

2008 2007
£'000 £000

Payable
Within one year 20,616 4,000
Between one and two years 5,000 5,000
Between two and hve years 15,000 5,200
Due afier five yaars 7,500 -
48,116 14 200

The minimum lease payments and the present value of minimum lease payments payable under finance lease obligations are

Minmum Leass Payments

Present Value of
Minimum Lease Payments

2008 2007 2008 2007

£'000 £'000 £000 £'000
Within one year 786 704 602 529
Between one and two years 631 623 517 511
Between two and five years 1,116 1,153 990 1,035
Total minimium lease payments 2,533 2,480 2,109 2,075
Future finance charges (424) (405) — -
Prasent value of fease obligations 2,109 2,075 2,109 2,075

Further Information on the interest profile of borowings 15 shown in note 21
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2.

Financial Instruments and Related Disclosures
The Group’s financial instruments compnse cash deposits, bank loans and overdrafts, finance lease obligations, denvatives used for hedging
purpcses and trade recevables and payables

Treasury Policy
The Group reporis in sterling and pays dwvidends out of sterling profits The role of the Group's treasury activhes 1S to manage and rnonitor the
Group’s external and internal funding requirements and financial nsks n support of the Group § corporate actvities

Treasury activities are governed by pohoies and procedures appraved by the Board of Directors

The Group uses a vanety of financial nstruments, including dervatives, to finance its operations and t¢ manage market risks from these
operations Denvatves, principally compnsing forward fareign currency contracts, foreign currency options and interest rate floors and cetings
are used to hedge against changes in foraign currencies and interest rates

The Group does not hold or issue denvative financial instruments for speculatve purposes and the Group’s treasury policies specifically prohibit
such actvity All transactions in financial nstruments are undertaken to manage the nsks ansing from underlying business actvitigs not for
speculation

Capital Managemeant

The capitat structure of the Group consists of net borrowings and Shareholders equity At 30 June 2008 net bomowings were £27 0 mihon
whilst sharehaldars equity was £71 8 milon Net borrowngs have increased compared to the equralent pont last year as new borrowings were
taken on to par* 2 finance the acquisition of Ve Holdings A/S

The Group manages s caprial struciure to mantain a prudent balance hatween debt and equity that aliows sutfictent headroom to finance the
Group’s product development prograrmme and appropriate acquisiions

The Group operates globally pnmarly through subsidiary cormpanies established in the markets m which the Group trades The Group's
operating subsicdianes are generally cash generative and none are subject to externally imposed capital requrrements

Operating cash flow 1s used to fund investment in the development of new products as well as to make the routine outflows of capital
expendiure tax dwidends and repayment of matunng debt

The Group s policy 1s to maintain borrowing facilties centrally which are then used to finance the Group's operating subsidianes ether by way of
equity nvestments or loans

Fmancial Risk Management
The Group has exposure to the following nsks from s use of financial Instruments

— hquigity sk
- markel nsk
— crecht nsk

This note presents information about the Group's exposure ta each of the abave nsks, and the Group's objectives, policies and processes for
measunng and managing risk

Liquidrty nsk
biqudity nsk is the nsk that the Group will not have sufficiant funds to meet habilities as they fall due Cash forecasts identifying the liquidity
requirements of the Group are produced quarterly These are reviewed to ensure sufficient financial headroom exists for at least a 12 month

penod
The Group manages its funding requirements through the following nes of credit

— £32 5 milkon term loan

— £15 million revolving credit facility
— £10 millon worlang capital facility
— vanous finance leases

The Group's undrawn borrowing facilites at 30 June 2008 are detaled in note 20
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21.

76

Financlal Instruments and Related Disclosures conunued

Market rnisk

Market ngk 1s the nsk that changes m market pnces, such as foreign exchange rates or interest 1ates, will affect the Group's ncome or the value
of 1is holchng of financial mstruments

Interest rate nsk management
The majonty of the Group's borrowings bear interest at floating rates inked 1o base rate or LIBOR and are consequently exposed to cash flow
intergst rate nsk

The Group had haedged interast rate risk on its term loan by means of an interest rate floor and ceiling arrangement whareby the Group's
exposure 1o fluctuations in LIBOR 1s imited to a minmum rate of 4 40% and a maamum rate of 5 70% The amount of the term loan outstanding
at 30 June 2008 was £32 5 mdhon The hedge 15 in place until 31 December 2010 and the amount hedged matches the repayment profle of

the loan

Foreign exchangs risk management
Foraign currency transacuon exposure ansing on normal trade flows 1s not hedged The Group matches receipts and payments in the relevant
foreign currencies as far as possible To this end, bank accounts are maintained for all the major currencias b which the Group trades

Where foreign subsidianes have angoing funding requirements in the local currency, then forward ceniracts are used
The Group also hedges selectively expected currency cash flows outside nommal trading actvities, poncipally using foreign currency options

The Group hedges 1ts net investment i major overseas subsidianes by denominating an appropnate amournt of borrowings in the iocal currency
to match the net assets of the subsidiary However, translational exposurs in converting the income statements of {oreign subsiclianes into the
Groun's presentational curency of sterding 1s not hedged Bamowings that are denominated in foreign currencies that match investments in
overseas Group assets are treated as hedges against the relevant assets

Credit risk
Credit nsk s the nsk of financial loss to the Group f a customer or counterparty to a financial nstrument fails to meet its Gontractual obligations

The Groug considers s maximum credi nsk 1o be £67 380 000 which is the total camyng value of the Group's financial assets
Cash is only deposited with highly rated banks

The Group offers trade cradit to customers in the normal course of business Trade and bank references are obtamed pnor to extending credit
The financial statements of corporate custormers arg monitorad an a reguiar basis

The pnncipal customers of the Services dvision are UK vetennary practices The customer base 1s diverse and, with the exception of the largest
corperate accounts, the failure of a single customer would not have 2 matenal adverse mpact en the Group's financeal rasults

The pnncipal customers of the Pharmaceuticals dvision are European and US wholesalers The falure of a large wholesaler could have a matenal
adverse impact on the Group's hnancial results

The largest customer of the Group accounted for approximately 7 5% of gross trade recewvables at 30 June 2008

Recervables are wntten off aganst the impairment prowvision when management consicers the debt to be no longer recoverable
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Financlal Instruments and Related Disclosures continued

Fair value of financial assets and labilities

The following table presents the camying amounts and the far values of the Group's financial assets and habiites at 30 June 2008 and

30 June 2007

The following assumptions were used to estmate the fair values

®  Cash and cash equivalents — approximates to the carying amount

@&  Forward exchangs contracts — based on market pnce and exchangs rates at the balance sheet date

®  Curency options and interest rate floor and celing — bhasad upon the amount that the Group would receve or pay o terminate the
instrument at the balance sheel date, being the market prce of the instrument

®  Recewables and payables — approximates to the carnang amount

®  Finance lease abligations — based upon discounted gash flows using discaunt rates based upon the Group’s cost of borrowing at the

balance sheet date

Analys:s of Financial Instruments

The financial Instruments of the Group are analysed as follows

www.dechra.com
stock code DPH

2008 2007
Canying Fair Carrying Fair
value value value value
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 22,219 22,219 17,222 17,222
Held for trading financal assets
= denvatives designated as hedges 446 448 - -
— other denvatives 689 689 25 25
1,135 1,135 25 25
Loans and recevaoles
— trade receivables 43,741 43,741 34,029 34,029
— other receivabies within the scope of IAS 39 285 285 - -
44,026 44,026 34,029 34,029
Other financial assets _ —_ - -
Total financial assets 67,380 67,380 51,276 51,276
Financial habilites
Bank loans and overdrafts {47,107) {47,107} {14 120) {14 120)
Finance lease Yabilities (2,108) 2,177 {2,075) {2,168}
Trade payables (50,177) (50,177) (44,019) {44,019)
Total financial liabilties (99,393} (99,461) (60,214} (80,307)
Net financial assets and kabihties (32,013} (32,081) {8,938) (9,031)
77

$$BUISNE IO

BOUBULLIOLSL INO)

30UBLISAQCE) IND)

SUNODOY IND




Dechra Phammaceuticals PLC

Annual Report and Accounts tor the year endad 30 June 2008

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

21,

78

Financial Instruments and Related Disclosures continued

Credit risk — Overdue financial assets

The following table shows financial assets which are overdue and for which no impairment provision has been made

2008 2007
£'000 £'000
Cverdue by
Up to one manth 2,590 1,541
Between one and two months 930 535
Between two and three months 431 319
Over three months 1,452 2,676
5,403 5,071
The movement in the iImpairmant provision was as follows
2008 2007
£000 £'000
At 1 July 2007 3,177 2,033
Impairment provision recognised 846 1,183
Imparment provision utlised {2,440) {39)
At 30 June 2008 1,583 3,177

Liquidity risk ~ Contracted cash flows of financial labilities
The following 1able shows the cash flow commitments of the Group In respect of financiat kabilities excluding denvatives at 30 June 2008 and

30 June 2007 Where interest 15 at floating rates, the future interest payments have been estimated using current interest rates

Bank Loans
and Finance Trade
overdrafts Leases Payables Total
At 30 June 2008 £'000 £000 £'000 £'000
Carrying value 47,107 (2 109} 150,177) {99,393)
Amrangement fees netted off (1.009) - - (1,009
Future interest {8,283} (424) — (8,707}
Total committed czch flow {56,399) (2,533) {50,177} (109,109)
Payable
Within 6 months (19,369) (432) {50,168) {69,969)
Between 6 months and 1 year {3,582) (354) @ (3,948)
Between 1 and 2 years 6,802) (633) - {7,524}
Between 2 and 3 years (6.532) (442) — (6,.974)
Between 3 and 4 years 6,172) (413) — {6,585}
Between 4 and 5 years {5,812) (259) - 6.071)
Qver 5 years {8,040) - - {8,040
{56,399} (2,.533) (50,177} {109,109}

Of the bank loans and overdrafts of £19 369 000 payable within six months, £15,000,000 1s available to be drawn down agan




Dechra Pharmaceuticals PLC
Annual Report and Accounts for the vear ended 30 June 2008

21. Financial Instruments and Related Disclasures contnued

Bank Leans
and Finance Trade
overdrafls Leases Payables Total
At 30 June 2007 £'000 £'000 £ 000 £'000
Carrying value {14 120) (2075} {44,019) (60,214)
Arrangement fees natted oft {80} - - (&0}
Futura interest {1,001} (405) — (2,308)
Total commitied cash flow (16 101} (2,480) (44 018) {62 600)
Payahle
Within 8 months (2,518) {400} {44,010) (46,928)
Betwsaen 6 months and 1 vear (2,445) (303} 9) (2,757}
Between 1 and 2 years (5 653) (623) - 6,276)
Between 2 and 3 years (S 485) (544) - 6,029)
Between 3 and 4 years - 357) - (357)
Between 4 and 5 years — (253) - (253}
Over 5 yaars - - - -
{16 101) (2,480) (44 019 (B2,800
The contractuat undiscounted cash flows I respect of denvative financial nstrurments ars as follows
2008 2007
Receivables Payables Recewvables Payables
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Due
Withint 6 months 2,308 1,978 - —
Between 6 months and 1 year 2,23 1,985 - —
Between t and 2 years 2,231 2,072 - -
6,768 6,005 - -

Aé 30 June 2008, the Group had entered inta forward exchange contracts 1o buy DKKG3 million (£6,623 millon transtated at the ¢losing
exchange rate) and self £8,005 milkon The far value gain ansing dunng the year of £325,000 I1s recogrised within finance income {see note 3}

The Group has a contractual nght to receve £75,000 under its interest rate floor and ceding arrangement covenng the period from 1 July to

31 December 2008

There are no contractual cash flows ansing from foreign currency oplions as the Group has the nght, but not the obligation to purchase foreign

currency

With the exception of the above disclosed, there are no other assets that have been mpared dunng the year
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

21. Financial Instruments and Related Disclosures coniinued
Foreign currency exposure
The stering equivalents of financial assats and llabilihes denommated in foreign currencias at 30 June 2008 and 30 Juna 2007 were

Danish us
kroner Euros doflars Other
At 30 June 2008 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Fenancial assets
Trade recevables 1,490 2,789 709 761
Other recavables - 84 -— -
Cash balances 3182 3,328 596 388
Dervatives - - - -
Cther financial assets - - - -
4,672 5,201 1,305 1,149
Financial liatulities
Bank loans and overdrafts {20,791) - — —
Finance leases - (1,286) - -
Trade payables (2,430} {581) {141) 73)
Dervatives - - - —
(23,221 (1,867 (141 (73)
Net balance sheet exposure {18,549) 4,334 1,164 1,076
Danish us
kraner Evuros dollars Other
At 30 June 2007 £'000 £'000 £000 £'000
Financial assets
Trade recevables - 827 257 -
Other recarables - 42 - -
Cash balances - 292 27 -
Dervatives — - - -
Other financial assets - - — -
— 1,161 284 -
Financial liabihties
Bank loans and overdralts - - — -
Finance leases - - - -
Trade payablas — (51) 1251) -
Denvatves = - — =
Other financial habilihes - @1 {1251) —
Net balance sheet exposure —_ 1,070 (967) -—

80
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21. Financlal Instruments and Related Disclosures continued
Senstivity Analysis
interest rate nisk
A 1% increase in interest rates compared o those rulng at 30 June 2008 would reduce Group profit before taxation by £156,000

Foreign currency nisk
The Group has significant cash flows and net financial assets and liabiibes in Darish kroner US dollars and euros

The following table shows the impact on the Group s proht befors taxanon and net assets of 2 10% appreciation of sterting aganst each of
these currencies

Profit before Net

taxation assets

£ 000 £:000

Darush kroner (529) (3031

US dollars 23) {193)

Euros (1,231) {1231

Hedges

Cash flow hedges

The Group has entered into an Interest rate floor and ¢eiling on the term loan of £32 5 milion and designated it a cash flow hedge The risk
being hedged in the variability of cash flows ansing from movements in interest rates No inefiectiveness 1s assumed on the hedge

The hedge 15 in place until 31 Decernber 2010 The amcunts recognised in equity are recycled to the ncame staternent to offset gans and
losses in the period n which the cash flow ocours

The amount recogmsed m eguity In the year ended 30 June 2008 was £446,000 less related incoms tax of £125,000 {2007 Eni) £44,000 less
neome tax of £13,000 was recycled to the income statement (2007 £ni)

Net investment hedges

Borrowangs in Danish kroner taken out at the time of the acawsition of WX Holdings A/S have been designated as a net nvestment hedge n
respect of the foreign currency transtation nsk ansing on the Group's net Investment In YatoX Moldings A/S No ineffectiveness is assumed on
the hedge
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Share Capital ,
Ordinary shares of 1py each

2008 2007
£000 No £'000 No
Authonsad 1,000 100,008,000 750 75,000 000
Allotted, called up and fully paid at start of year 528 52,803,695 519 51,915 002
Naw shares issued 124 12,438,210 9 888,697
Allotted called up and fully paid at end of year 852 65,241,909 528 52,803,699

On 8 January 2008 11,624 544 new ordinary shares were 1ssued by way of a Placing and Open Offer at 2 price of 303p per share to partally
financa the acquisiion of VetxXX Holdings A/S Tha gross proceeds raised were £35 2 milion

During the year, 813,666 new ordinary shares of 1p (2007 873,889 new ordinary shares of 1p) were 1ssued following the exercise of options
under the Executive Incentive Plan and the Approved, Unapproved and SAYE Share Options Schemes The consideration receved was
£537,000 {2007 £357,000) In the year ended 30 June 2007, 14,808 new ordinary shares of 1p were issued In part consideration for the
acquisition of Leads Vaternary Laboratories Limited {see note 27) The market value of thasa new ordinary shares of 1p at the date of 1ssus was
£50 000 and this armount was credited 10 merger reserve The holders of ordinary shares are entifled to recewve dvidends as declared or
approved at General Mestings from time 10 tirme and are enutled te one vote per share at such meetings ot the Company

Share-based Payments
Dunng the year, the Company operated the Unapproved Share Option Scheme, the Approved Share Option Scheme, the Executive Incentive
Plan and the Save As You Earn ("SAYE") Shara Opuan Scheme s described balow

Unapproved and Approved Share Option Schemes

Under thesa Schemes, options are granted to cerlain Executives and emplayees of the Group (excluding Executive Directors) to purchase

shares in the Company at a pnce fixed at the average market value over tha three days prior to the date of grant Far the options ic vest, there

must be an increase In earnings per share of at least 12% above the growth n the UK Retal Prices Index (RPI) over a three year penod Once ;
vested, options must be exercised within 10 years of the date of grant

Executive Incentive Plan
Under this plan Executive Dreciors and selected senior Executives are awarded shares in the Company subysct to a Total Sharsholder Return
{*TSR") targst

The TSR target measures the Company's TSR performance aganst the FTSE Small Cap Index over a three year measurement perigd
(commencing at the beginning of the financial year in which the awards are made) 100% of the shares vest if the Company achievas an upper
quartile performance 30% of the shares vest at medsan performance and awards vast on a straight-lne basis for performance in between No
shares vest If parformance 1s balow median

In addition, awards will onty vest if, in the opimion of the Rermunaration Committee, the perfarmance of the Company has been satisfactory

SAYE Option Scheme

Thig Scheme is open to all UK employees Participants save a fixed amount of up to £250 per month for either three, five or seven years and
are then able 10 use thase savings to buy shares in the Company at a pnce fixed at a 20% discount to the market value at the start of the
saving penad The SAYE options must ordinanly be exercised wathin six months of the complet:on of the relevant savings penod The exercise
of these options 1s not subjact 1o any performance critena
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23. Share-based Payments continued

Outstanding awards and the movement dunng the year are shown below

‘Year ended 30 June 2008

Exercise At At
price 1 July 30 June
Exsrcise  per share 2007 Exercised Granted Lapsea 2008
period Pence Number Number Number Number Number
Unapproved Share Option Scheme
14 September 2000 2003-2010 120 51 500 {42 500) - {2.000) 7,000
22 Apnl 2002 20052012 1535 38 500 (22,000) - - 16,500
1% Apnl 2003 2006-2013 585 35,500 (27 000) - - 8,500
19 March 2007 20102017 239 26,139 — - - 26,139
2 Apnt 2008 2011-2018 366 - —_ 45,842 {10,000} 35,842
151,629 {91,500} 45,842 {12 00Q) 93,981
Approved Share Option Scheme
2 Apnl 2004 2007-2014 1345 67,000 (32,000) — — 35,000
3 December 2004 2007-2014 180 30,000 (3,333) - - 26,667
5 Apni 2005 2008-2015 2025 162,000 (88,500) - {8,000) 65,500
15 March 2006 2609-2016 252 162 000 - - (11,000) 151,000
18 March 2007 2010-2017 289 161.861 - - 11,000} 150,861
2 Apnt 2008 2011-2018 366 - - 83,158 - 83,158
582,861 (123,833) B3 158 {30 000} 512,186
Executive Incentive Plan
9 October 2004 2007-2008 - 182,525  {182,525) - - -
3 October 2008 2008-2009 - 205,141 o - - 205,141
14 September 2006 2008-2010 - 216,128 - - — 216,128
29 February 2008 2011-2012 — - - 152,472 - 152,472
603,794  (182,525) 152,472 - 573,741
SAYE Option Scheme
9 Apnl 2002 2005-2007 129 470 470 - - _
3 Apnl 2003 2006-2008 39 367,237  {362,184) - (5,053) —
15 Cctober 2004 2007-2009 124 127,447 {51,493) — - 75,854
18 Octcber 2005 2008-2010 204 79136 (1,350) — (1 806} 75,980
12 October 2006 2005-2013 195 74 137,133 {311} - 6,349) 130,473
17 October 2007 2010-2014 280 - - 164 959 (7,099) 157,860
711,423  [415808) 164,959 (20,307) 440,267
Total 2,040,717  (813,666) 446,431 (62,307) 1,620,175
Weighted average exercise pnce 115 0p 65 4p 209 2p 2450p 156 8p
83
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

23. Share-based Payments continued

Year ended 30 June 2007
Exetcise At At
pnce 1 July 30 June
Exercise  per share 2006  Exercised Granted Lapsed 2007
period Pence Number Number Number Number Number
Unapproved Share Option Scheme
14 September 2000 2003-2010 120 131,000 {72,500) — - 51,500
22 Apnt 2002 2005-2012 1535 87,500 (49,000} - - 35500
11 Apnl 2003 2006-2013 58 5 82,500 {41,000} - (8,000) 35,500
19 March 2007 2010-2017 289 - - 26139 - 26,139
301,000 (168,500) 26,138 BOooy 151,639
Approved Share Option Scheme
2 Apnif 2004 2007-2014 134 5 123 000 (54,000) — {2,000} 67,000
3 December 2004 2007-2014 180 30 000 - - - 30,000
5 Apnl 2005 2008-2015 202 5 171,000 - - Q000 162,000
15 March 2006 2009-2016 252 175,000 - - (13 000) 162,000
19 March 2007 2010-2017 289 - - 161,861 — 161,861

449,000 {54,000) 161,861 {24,000) 5B2,B61

Executive Incentive Plan

5 December 2003 2006-2007 - 505000 (505 000) - - -
9 October 2004 2007-2008 - 182,525 - - — 182,525
3 October 2005 2008--2009 - 205,141 - - — 205,141
14 September 2006 2008-2010 - - - 216,128 - 216128
892,666 (505,000 216128 - 603 794
SAYE Option Scheme
26 Apnl 2001 2004-2008 158 28,188 (18,578) — 9610 -
9 Apnl 2002 2005-2007 129 12,570 (11 544) - {556} 470
3 Apnl 2003 20062008 39 4963393 (115 267) - (13,889) 367,237
15 October 2004 2007-2009 124 129,127 — - (1,680) 127,447
18 October 2005 2008-2010 204 98,330 - - {19,194) 79136
12 October 2006 2009-2013 19574 - - 163,545 (16,412) 137,133
764,608 (145388 153,545 [631,341) 711423
Total 2,457,274  (873,889) 557,673 (91,341) 2,049,717
Waighted average exercise pnce 799p 40 Bp 151 3p 166 3p 115 0p

For options exercised during the year, the waighted average market pnce at the date of exercise was 409p (2007 264p) The weighted average
remaining contractual ves of options outstanding at the balance sheet date was four years (2007 four years}
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23. Share-based Payments continued

As gllowed by the ransitional provistons of IFRS 1 and IFRS 2, ncluded above are aptions over shares that hava not been recognised in
accordance with IFRS 2 as the options wera grantad before 7 November 2002

The far values for shares granted under the Unapproved, Approved and SAYE Option Schemes have been calcutated using the Black-Scholes

option prong model The fair values of shares awarded under the Executive Incentive Plan have been calculated using a Monte Garlo
simutation mode! which takes into account the market-based performance conditions attaching to those shares

The assumptions used n calcutating far value are as follows

Executive Incentive Flan
Date of grant

Number of shares awarded
Share pnce at date of grant
Exercise pnce

Expected life

Rigk-free rate

Volatidlity

Dividend yield

Fair value per shae

Unapproved and Approved Share Option Schemes

Date of grant

Number of shares awarded
Share price at date of giant
Exercise pnce

Expectad Iife

Risk-free rate

Volatiity

Dradend yeld

Fair value per share

Save as You Earn Option Scheme
Date of grant

Number of shares awardsd
Share price al date of grant
Exercise pnce

Expected life

— three year schemea

— five year schema

— seven year schema
Risk-free rate

~ three year scheme

— five year scheme

~— seven year scheme
Volatiity

Dnidend yield

Far valus per share

— three year scheme

— fiva year scheme

— seven year schema

Expected volatity was determined by calculating the histoncal valatiity of the Group's share price over its entire rading history

2/4/08 19/3/07
129,000 188,000
367p 2890
366p 289p

& years 5 years
4 08% 4 98%
36% 36%

2 04% 2 36%
116p 92p

17/10/07
164,959
357 5p
280p

325 years
5 25 yaars
7 25 years

507%
504%
8 02%

36%
209%

130p
147p
158p

29/2/08
152,472
386p
Nil

3 years
4 20%
36%
194%
258p

15/3/06
177,000
252p
252p

5 years
4 32%
36%
215%
79p

12/10/06
153,645
257 25p
185 74p

3 25 years
5 25 years
7 25 years

4 85%
475%
4 65%

36%
243%

Q4dp
104p
110p

14/9/06
216,128
250 75p
Nil

3 yaars
470%
36%

2 49%
162p

5/4/05
181,000
212p
202 5p
5 years
461%
36%

2 40%
69p

18/10/05
111078
255p
204p

3 25 years
525 years
n/a

4 25%
431%
n/a
36%
204%

a28p
i01p
nfa

3/10/05
205,141
251p
NiE

3 years
421%
36%
207%
169p

3/12/04
30 000
179 32p
180p

S years
4 53%
36%
261%
54p

15/10/04
144,147
160p
124p

3 25 years
5 25 years
na

4 56%
4 64%
n/a
36%
292%

55p
Bip
n/a

9/10/04
210739
1684p

Nil

3 years
4 69%
36%
295%
1056p

2/4/04
147,000
136p
134 5p
Syears
4 76%
36%
319%
40p

3/4/03
1,034,938
S54p

39p

325 years
5 25 years
n/a

378%
414%
nfa
36%

7 83%

14p
14p
n/a

National Insurance contributions are payable by the Company in respect of some of the share-based payments These contrbutions are
payable on the date of exercise based on the mtrinsic value of the share-based payrments and are therefore treated as cash-setiled awards
The Group had an accrual at 30 June 2008 of £229,000 (2007 £181,000) of which £123,000 (2007 £38,000) refated 1o vested options Tha
total charge 1o the Income Stalement in respect of shars-based payments was

2008 2007
£'000 £'000
Equity-settled share-hased transactions 603 479
Cash-settled share-based transactions 156 17
759 596

Thg above charge to the income Staternent was nchided within administrative expenses
85
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Analysis of Net {Borrowings)/Cash

2008 2007
£'000 £000
Bank loans and overdraft 47,107 (14 120)
Finance jeases and hire purchase contracts {2,108) (2,075
Cash and cash eguivalents 22,219 17 222
Net (borrowingsi/cash {26,997) 1,027

Operating Leases

At the balance sheet date the Group had outstanding commuitrments for future mirimurm rentals payable under non-cancellable operating leases

as follows
Land and buldings Other assets Total
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
£'000 £'000 £°000 £ 000 £'000 £ 000
Within one year 1,081 1,008 1,670 826 2,751 1,834
Betwsen one and five years 3,943 3,975 1,708 697 5,651 4672
In five years or more 3,343 4,284 — 11 3,343 4 295
8,367 9,267 3,378 1,534 11,745 10 BO1
Forelgn Exchange Rates
The following exchange rates have been used In the translahon of the results of foretgn operations
Closing rate
At Average at 30 June
acguisition rale 2008
Danish krone 980 95957 94136
US dollar n/a 20044 19954
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27. Acquisition of Subsidiary

On 15 danuary 2008 the Company acgured the entire share capital of YetXX Holdings A/S, a Danish company The assets and habilites

acguired are aflocated as follows

Book Fair valua Faur

value adjustments value

£'000 £'000 £°000
Intangible assets {see note 11) 261 59,254 58 515
Property, plant and equipment {see note 12) 2,846 (88) 2,858
Deferred tax assets 1,094 - 1,094
Inventories 2,699 — 2,699
Trade and other recevatles 7,268 — 7,268
Trade and other payables (7,295} 714y {8,008)
Current tax (11) - {11)
Deferred tax kabilities - (14 663) {14,663)
Nel agsets 6,862 43,792 50,754
Goodwili (see note 11) 14,397
Consideration (including ¢osts) 65,151
Salisfied by
Cash 63,858
Expenses of acquisition 1,493

65,151

Cash flow on acquisition

The far value adiustments may be amended in the year ending 3G June 2009  information not currently available comes to hght

Goodwill represents the present vatue of synergies expected 1o anse following the acousition

The far value adjustiment in refation to intangible assets recognises marketing authonsations, brands and trademarks in accordance with
IFRS 3 The deferred tax adjustment reflects the tax effect of the far value adjustments Other adusiments reflect tha estimatsd realisable

value of the assets and labilities

For the 12 month perod ended 30 June 2008 VelXX Holdings A/S made a consoidated adjusted operating profit of ©5,818,000 of which

£2 651,000 was recogrised in the penod following acquistion

If the acqusibon had occurred on 1 July 2007, managerment estrnates that consolidated revenue would have been £323 2 rillon and adjusted

operating profit for the penad would have been £22 31 millon
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

27. Acquisition of Subsidiary continued
On 26 Apnl 2007 the Company acquired the entire share capital of Leeds Vetennary Laboratories Lmited The assets and kabilties acquired are

dllocated as iollows

Book Far value Far
value adjustrments vahe
£'00D £'000 £'000
Intangible assets - 377 3r7
Propenty, plant and equipment (see note 12) 67 (29) 38
Inventories et — 38
Trade and other receivables BO1 - 691
Cash and cash equivalents 13 - 13
Barrowings (85) — (55)
Trade and other payables {140} — {140)
Current tax {16} — (16)
Deferred tax - {113) (113}
598 235 833
Goodwill (see note 11} 467
Total consideration 1,300
Satisfied by
Cash 673
Issue of ordinary shares 50
Transfer of freehold property 520
Expanses of acquistion 57
Total consideration 1,300
Less issue of ordinary shares (see note 22) (50}
transfer of frechold property {520)
cash acquired {13)
Cash fiow oh acquisttion 717

Intangible assets recogrised on acquisition represent customer relationships

Goodwill represents the expertise and technical knowledge of the Company’s staff and the long-term strategic benefit of expanding the
geographic coverage of the Group's Laboratones business

For the 12 month penod ended 30 June 2007 Leeds Vetennary Laboratores Limited made a profit of £44 000 (kefore exceptional income of
£237,000), of which £28,000 was recegnised in the pened following acquisition

if the acquisiion had occurred on 1 July 2006, management estmates that consol dated revenue would have been £254 617,000 and
cohsclidated profit f~ the peniod would have been £8 863,000 before exceptional income of £237,000)
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Critical Accounting Judgements and Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

Critical Judgei.iants in applying the Group's Accounting Poficies

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies as descnbed in note 1, the Drectars have made the following judgements that
have the most signdicant effect on the amounts recegnised in the Financial Statements

Intangible Asset — Vatory! Capsules USA

As described 1n note 13, the Group s carrying a total amount of £4,537,000 n respect of Vietory! Capsules USA, Recoverability of this amount
1s dependent upon cbtaining FDA approval te market Vetond Capsules in the USA Based upon posiive discuss.ons with the FDA {suwdenced
by the proauct being granted expedited review status) and the oibtaining of markeung approval in the European Union the Directors concluded
that the obtaning of marketing authansation in the USA 15 lighly hikely and that the cntena for recognising an ntangible asset have been met

Intangible Asset — Felimazole Yablets USA

As descnbed in note 13 the Group 1s carmang a total amount of £697,000 Recoverabiity of this amount 1s dependent upon obtaining FDA
approval to market Felimazole Tablets in the USA Based on positive discussions with the FDA and the obtaining of marketing approval in the
European Umion, the Directors concluded that the oblaming of marketing authonisation in the USA 1s hughly ikely and that the cntena for
recognising an intangible asset have been met

Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty
The key sources of estirmalion uncertainty which may cause a matenal adjustment to the carmang amount of assets and habilities are
discussed below

Impairment of Goodwill and Indefinite Life Intangible Assets

The Group determines whether goodwill and indefinde life assets are imparred at least on an annual basis This requires an estmation of the
value-in-use of the cash-generating units to which they are allocated Estimating the value-in-use requires the Group to make an estimate of
the expected future cash flows from the cash-generating uni and also 1o choose a sutable discount rate In order to calculate the present
value of those cash flows Further detail on the assumptions used In determining value-in-uss calculations 1s provided in note 13

Impairment of Receivables

The Group has estimated imparment of recevables by assessing recoverability of amaunts dug on a customer by customer basis As
descnbed in note 21, credi nsk 1s not highly concentrated with the exception of corporate vetennary practices and vetennary wholesalers if
the receivables due from ane of these large customars proved to be irrecaverable then an additional imparrment provision may he required

Related Party Transactions

Subsichanes

The Group's ultimata Parent Company 1s Dechra Pharmaceuticals PLC A ksting of all principal subsidianes 1s shown within the financial
statements of the Company on page 89

Transactions with Key Management Personnel
The details of the remuneration long-term incentive plans, shareholdings, share options and pension entitlements of ndmdual Directors are
included in the Directers' Remuneration Report on pages 38 to 44 The remuneration of key managernent 1s disclosed in note 7
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Financial History

2008 2007 2008 2005* 2004t
£'000 £'000 £1000 £ 000 £7000
Income statement
Reverus  aoagm 253803 23247t 210267 186,843
Adjusted operating profit 19,142 13876 12,312 o ———1—1_2“5? T —E-!. 1”8-:1
Adusted proft before taxaon " iess3 12 646 11,044 ©grg1 | 8080
Adusted profi after taxaton T 12185 2,866 7 557 Troer 5,751
Adusted earnings per share  — basic {pence} 20 81 © ie8s 1471 377 1128
— diluted [pence) 20 64 16 66 ’ 14 36 ) 13 54 1112
Dwidend per shars (pence) 825 750 624 520 ) 470
;v;a;ear;bgr‘of employees ‘ __——8;9 T _747 B 651— 67?7577” i 6;?3
Balance shest T ToooTmooooomomoo T I _
Non-current assets 99,652 18,828 13,567 12,301 10,308
Woreng captal 17284 13284 t1ra 1zizr . i1a18
Current tax habites @824 (@484 2505 (2050 {1,275)
Deferred tax labilties asate) (a7 _ - T 7
Net borowngsiieash | @eesn  weer  1gra wesw 10114
Shareholders’ funds 71,799 30 508 23,915 17602 10,157
Cash l'lowm o T T o T -
Cash flow from operating actwtes 16,053 14,328 13887 13540 10578
Netmerestpad T peoy @aee 218 (1667 o2
Tax paid ST pesy e e (1998 (1 854)
Capial expendturs  @ny | Gazs) (493 (928 (546)
Acqusmons T (65.151) 717 - - L
Equity dwdends paic o  a.420) (3.595) e ety (2492)
Financing o T esse0 @A) o) 11780 (2,588)
Changes in cash in period 5,027 (2,497) 5705 17,248 2374

* Reported under [FRS
1 Reported uncier UK GAAP

The man differences between the information under UK GAAP and IFRS relate to classification of sale of trading data to suppliers, goodwaill
amortisation, capitalisation of developrment expenditure, share-based payments charges, treatment of lease incentives, income tax deferred tax and
dvdends These are fully explained in the Annual Report and Financiat Statements for the year ended 30 June 2006

90




Dechra Pharmaceuticals PLGC
Annual Report and Accounts for the year ended 30 June 2008

Company
Financial Statements

Contents

92 Company Balance Sheet
93 Reconcliaton of Movements
in Shareholders’ Funds
94 Notes to the Financial Statements

www dechra.com

stock code DPH

N

$58UISNG INC)

BOUBLLICUS N0

BOUBLIBAQL) NQ)

SIUNO2TY MNQ




Dechra Pharmaceuticals PLC
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Company Balance Sheet

At 30 June 2008

2008 2007
Note f£'o00 £'000

Fixed assets
Investments v 84,366 54,658

94,366 54,658
Current assets
Cebtors v 47,574 12,366
Cash at bank and in hand 7 7

47,581 12 373
Creditors (amounts falling due within one year} VI (37,087) (23,348)
Net current assets/(habilities) 10,494 (10,978)
Total assets less current iabiities 104,860 43,683
Creditors amounts faling due after more than one year ] {26,641} 10,120}
Net assets 78,219 33,563
Capital and reserves
Cailed up shars capital X 652 528
Share premium account x4t 62,166 28,041
Hedgng resenve X 281 {71}
Profit and loss account x 15,120 5,065
Total equity Shareholders' funds 78,219 33,663

by the Board of Direciors on 2 September 2008 and are signed cn its behalf by

The inancial states

lan Page Drector

Simon Evans Director
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Reconciliation of Movements in Shareholders’ Funds

For the year ended 30 June 2008

2008 2007

£'000 £000
At start of penad 33,563 32,397
Profit tor the financial year 13,872 3,925
Movement in haedging reserve 52 -
Share-based payments charga 603 475
Dasdends paid {4,420) {3,589)
New shares igsued 34,249 357
At end of period 78,218 33563

www.dechra.com a3
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Dechra Pharmaceuticals PLC
Annual Report and Accounts tor the year ended 30 Jure 2008

Notes to the Financial Statements

®

Principal Accounting Policies of the Company

Accounting Principles

The Company Balance Shest has been prepared under the histoncal cost convention except for dervatves which are stated at fair value in
accordance with appicable UK accounting standards and the Companies Act 1985

Basis of Preparation
No Profit and Loss Account is presented for the Company as permitted by Section 230{4) of the Companies Act 1985 The profit dealt with in the
accounts of the Company was £13,872,000 {2007 £3,925,000)

Investments

Investmants held as fixed assets are stated at cost lass any Impairment losses Where the consideration for the acquisition of a subsidiary
undertaking includes shares in the Company to which the prowisions of section 131 of the Comparnies Act 1985 apply, cost represents the
nominal value of the shares issued together with the fair value of any addiional consideration given and costs

Denvative Financial Instruments

The Company uses denvative finangial instruments to manage Its exposure to foreign exchange and interest rate ngks In accardance wath its
treasury policy, the Company does not hald or issue denvative financial instruments for speculative purposes Howaver, dervatives that do not
qualfy {or hedge accounting are accounted for as trading insiruments

Denvatve financial Instruments are recognised intially at fair value Subsequent to intial recognimon, denvative financial instruments are stated at
far value The gan or loss on remeasurement to tarr value of INstruments that do nat qualfy for hedge accounting i1s recogrised iImmediately in
the profit and loss azrount

The farr value of interest rate swaps, floors and cetings, 15 the esumated amaunt that the Group would receve or pay to terminate the
instrumert at the balance sheet date The fair value of forward exchange contracts and options 1s the r quoted market prce at the balance
sheet date, being the present value of the quoted lorward price

Hedging

Cash flow hedges

Changes in the farr value of denvative financial instrumerts designated as cash flow hedges are recogrised directly in equity 10 the extent that the
hedgs 1s effective To the extent that the hedge Is ineffective, changes in far value are recognised as profit or loss

If the hedging instrument no longer meets the cntena for hedge accounting, expires or1s sold terminated or exercised then hedge accounting
18 discontinued prospectively The cumulative gain or boss previously recogrnised in equity remains there untd the forecast ransaction occurs
When the hedged itern 15 a non-financial asset, the amount recogrised in equity s transferred to the carrying amount of the asset when it Is
rscognised In other cases, the amount recogrised in equity is transferred to profit or loss in the same penod that the hedged item affects profit
or loss

Cash Flow Statement
As the ultimate holding company of the Dechra Pharmaceuticals PLC Group, the Company has relied upon the exemption in FRS 1 {Rewised)
not io present a cash flow statement as part of 1is finanoial statements

Dividends
Dividends are recogiised In the penod in which they are approved by the Company's Sharehclders or, n the ¢ase of an intenm divdend when
tha dmdend 1s paig

Diwvidends recevable from subsid@nes are recognised when ether recened in cash or apphed to reduce a creditor balance with the subsiciary

Interest-Bearing Borrowings

Interest-baanng bormwings are recognised iniially at far value less attnbutable transaction costs Subsequent to inittal recognition interest-
beanng borowings are stated at amorused cost with any difference between cost and redernption value being recognised in the incoma
statement over the pernod of the borrowings on an effective interest basis

Related Parties
Under FRS 8 the Company has reled upen the exemption not 10 disclose related party transactions with other Group undertakings as they are
all ncluded i the Dechra Pharmaceuticals PLG Consolidated Financial Staterments

Employee Benefits

{B Pensions

The Campany operates a Group stakeholder personal penston scheme for certan employees Obligations for contnbutions are recognised as
an expensa in the profit and loss account as incurred
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{} Principal Accounting Policies of the Company continued
(i) Share-Based Payment Transactions
The Company operates a number of equity-setiled share-based payment programmes that allow employees to acquire shares of the Company
The Company also operates a Long Term Incentive Plan for Directors and senior Executives
The faw value of shares or options granted 1s recogrised as an employes expense on a siraghi-ine basis n the profit and loss account with a
corresponding movement in equity The farr value 1s measured at grant date and spread over the penod dunng which the employees become
unconditicnally entitted to the shares or options {the vesting period) The far value of the shares or options granted 1$ measurad using a
valuation model, taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the shares or options were granted The amount recognised as an
expense in the profit and loss account 1S adjusted to take into account an estimate of the number of shares or options thai are expected 1o vest
together with an adjustment to reflect the number of shares or options that actually do vest except where forferture 1 only due to market-based
condilions not being achieved
The far values of grants under the Long Term Incentive Plan have been datermined using the Monte Garlo smulation modef
The far values of options granted under af cther share option schemes have haen determined using the Black-Scholes option pncing model
National Insurance contsbutions payable by the Company on ths intnnsic value of share-based paymenis at the date of exercise are treated as
cash-settied awards and revalusd to market pnce at each balarce sheet date
Foreign currency
Foraign currency transactions are transkaied into sterling using the exchange rates prevailng at the dates of the ransactions  Monetary assets
and llatities are translated at the closing rate at the reporting date Forergn exchange gans and losses are recogrisad in the profit and loss
account
Taxation
The charga for taxation Is based on the preft for the year anc tekes intc account taxation dsferred because of timing differences between the
treatment of certan tems for taxation and accounting purposes Deferred tax 1s measured on a non-ciscounted basis at the tax rates thal are
expected o apply In the penods in which the tming differencas reverse and is provided in respect of all tming differences which have ansen but
not reversed by the balance sheet date, except as olherwise required by FRS 19 *Deferred Tax”
Financia) Gua-1~tee Contracts
Where the Company enters into financial guarantes contracts to guarantee the indebtedness of other companies wathin its Group the
Company considers these to be insurance arrangements, and accounts for them as such i this respect, the Company treats the guarantes
contract as a contingent hability until such tme as it becomes probable that the Company will be required to make a payment under the
guarantee
(il Directors and Employees
Total emoluments of Directors (ncluding pension contnbutions) amounted to £1,378,000 {2007 £1 055,000) Information relating to Directors'
emoluments, share ophions and pension sntitlernents 15 set out in the Directors’ Remuneration Report on pages 38 to 44
Inclucing Directors, the average number of staff employed duning the year solely in an administrative funiction was 8 (2007 8) The costs
incurred in respect of these employess were
2008 2007
£'000 £'00G
Wages and salanes 1,251 1,042
Social secunty costs 151 125
Other pension costs 94 80
Share-based payments charga 269 195
1,765 1,442
At 30 June 2008 outstanding pension contnbutions of £11 000 (2007 £7,000) were included in creditors
flil) Auditors’ Remuneration
2008 2007
£'000 £ 000
Audit of the Parent Company financial statements 20 15
Amounts pad to the Company's auditors in respect of sennces to the Company, other than the audit of the Company's financial statements,
have not been disclosed as the Inforration 1s reguired Instead to be disclosed on a consolidatad basis
www dechra com o5
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Dechra Pharmaceuticals PLC
Annual Report and Accounts for the year ended 30 June 2008

Notes to the Financial Statements continued

iv)

™)

{vi}

96

Fixed Asset Investments
Shares in Subsidiary

Undertakings
£'000

Cost and net book value
At 1 July 2007 54,658
Additions 39,708
At 30 June 2008 94,366

A list of pnincipal subsichary undertakings 1s given in note xi
Bunng the year, the Company acquired VatXX Holdings A/S

Where subsidianes are acguwred for shares, or a combination of shares and cash statutory merger relief has been applied and accordingty cost
includes the nominat value of shares 1ssued

Debtors
2008 2007
£'000 £ 060
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings 45,048 10724
Group relef recevable 1,685 1,218
Deferred taxation (see note 1x} 228 275
Other debtors 508 61
Prepayrments and accrued income 135 88
47,574 12,366
Included in debtors are amounts of £228,000 {2007 £275,000) due after more than one year
Creditors
Falling due
within one year
2008 2007
£000 £'000
Bank loans and overdrafts (see note vi) 33,960 10,190
finance lease obligations 35 —
Amounts due to subsidiary undertakings 1,962 12,540
Other crediors 11 9
Other taxation and soctal secunty 40 54
Accruals and deterred income 1,079 558
37,087 23,348

In accordance with FRS 21, Evenis after the Balance Sheat Date, the proposed finat dvidend for the year ended 30 June 2008 of 5 50p per
share has not been accrued for in these financial statements It will be shown in the financeal statements for the year ending 30 Juneg 2008 The
totat cost of the proposed final dividend 1s £3,588,000

Falling due after
moere than one year
2008 2007
£'000 £°000
Bark loans {seg note wvi 26,491 10,120
Finance lease ocbligations 150 -
25,641 10120
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{vil) Borrowings

2008 2007
£000 £'000
Borrowings due wittn one year
Banl overdraft 13,344 6,180
Bank loan 20,618 4,000
Finance lease cbligations 35 -
33,995 10,190
Borrowings due after mare than cne year
Aggregate bank loan Instalments repayabls
between one and two years 5,000 5,000
between two and five years 15,000 5,200
after five years 7,500 -
27,500 10,200
Arrangement fees netted off {1,008} (80}
26,491 10,120
Financa lease oblagtions repayable
between one and two years 39 -
between two and five years 111 -
150 -
Total borrowings 60,636 20310

The bank loans and overdrafts are secured by a fixea and floating charge on the assets of the Group Interest 18 charged at batween 1% and

1 25% over LIBOR

The Company guarantees certan borrowings of other Group compames which at 30 June 2008 armounted to £1,824 000 (2007 £2,075,000)

(vill) Financlal Instruments

2008 2007
£'000 £ 000
Changes in fair value {charged)/credited to profit and loss {58} (46)
Details of valuations techriques and fair values of each category of financial mstruments are given in note 21 te the Consolidated Financial
Statements n the section headsd 'Financial nstruments and Related Disclosures
www.dechra.com a7
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Dechra Pharmaceuticals PLC
Annual Report and Accounts for the year ended 30 June 2008

Notes to the Financial Statements continued

ix)

x)

{xi)

98

Deferred Tax

000

A1 Juty 2007 275
Transfer to profit ano loss aceount 78
Transter trom equity (125)
At 30 June 2008 {included in debtors) 228
The amounts provided for deferred taxation at 28% {2007 28%) are as follows

2008 2007

£'000 £'000
Short term tming differences (228) {275}
Total (228) {275)
Called up Share Capltal

Crdinary Sharas
of 1p each

Issued share capital £'000 No
Allotted, called up and fully paid at 1 July 2007 528 52,803,699
New shares ssued 124 12,438 210
Allotted, called up and fully paid at 30 June 2008 652 65,241,909
Authorised share capital
At 30 June 2008 1,000 100,000,000
At 30 June 2007 750 75,000,000

Durng the year, 813 666 new ordinary shares cf 1p wers 1ssued fallowing the exercise of options under the Executive Incentive Plan and the
Approved, Unapproved and SAYE share pption schemes The consideration recenved was £537,000 (2007 £357,000)

In addition, 11,624 544 new ordinary shares of 3p were 1ssued In part consideration for the acquisition of VetxXX Holdings A/S The gross

proceeds raised were £35 2 milion

Share Options

Details of outstanding share options over ordinary shares of 1p at 30 June 2008 under the vanous Group share option schemes are shown in

note 23 to the Consolidated Financial Staterments

Reserves
Share Profit
premium Hedging and logs
account teserve account
£'000 L 000 £'000
At 1 July 2007 28,041 71) 5 065
Mew shares esued 235,636 - -
Share 1ssUe expenses {1511} -— —
Prolt for the financial year — - 13.872
Movement in hedging reserve —_ 352 -
Dmdend (see note 9 ta Consolidated Financial Statements) — — {4 420)
Share-based payments charge - - 503
At 30 June 2008 62,166 281 15,120
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(xil)  Subsidlary Undertakings
Dechra Pharmaceuticals PLC 1s the ulimate parent and controfing party of the Group

The pnncipal subsidiary undertakings of the Company, all of which are wholty owned, are

Country of Country of

Company Operation Incarporauon Prancipat Actanty

Dechra Limited§ UK Great Bntain Wholesaler, marketer and manufacturer

of pharmaceuticals, Wholesalar and marketer of

vatarinary products instruments and eguigment,

Prowger of vetennary laboratory senices

Dechra Investments Limited UK Great Batam Hotding company

Natonal Vetennary Servces bimited* UK Great Brtain Non-trading

Arnolds Vetennary Products bimited” UK Great 8ntain Non-trading

Dales Pharmaceuticals Limited” UK Greal Britain Non-trading

Veneto Lmited UK Great Bntamn Holding comgany

North Western Laboratones Limided UK Great Bntan Non-trading

Cambndge Speciahst Laboratory UK Great Bntan Non-trading
Services Lirnitedt

Anghan Pharma Manufactunng Limitadt UK Great Brilan Nor-trading

Anghan Pharma Limited LK, Great Brtan Holding company

Dechra vietennary Products LLG UsA USA Distributor of vetennary products

Leeds Vetennary Laboratones Limited UK Great Bntain Non-trading

VerXX Hatdings A/S Dervnark Denmark Holding ccmpany

Vetxx A/SH Denmark Denmark Marketer and manufaciurer of vetennary

pharmaceuticals and pat diets

VatxXx OY9) Finlard Fintand Marketer of vetennary pharmaceuticals

and pet chats

Dechra Vetennary Products SASH) France France Marketer of veteninary pharmaceuticals

and pet dets

Vet OV Holland Helland Marketer of vetennary pharmaceuticals

and pet diets

Vet ASY Norway Norway Marketer of vetennary pharmaceuticals

and pet dets

VebO! Amimal Health SLUY Spain Span Marketer of vetennary pharmaceuticals

and pel diets

Vet ABY| Sweden Sweden Marketer of vetennary pharmaceuticals

and pst dists

Vetxx Ltdy UK Great Bntain Marketer of vetermary pharmaceutcals

and pet diets

*  100% of ordinary share capxtal held by Veneto Limited Voling preference shares held by Dechra Phanmaceutcals PLC Employes Benefit Trust

100% of ordinary share caprial held by Dechra Investmenits Liruted

100% of ordinary share capnal held by North Western Laboratones Limited
160% of ordinary share capat held by Anglian Pharma Limited

100% of ordinary share capitel heid by Vetd( Holdings A/S

100% of ordinary share capial held by Vetdx A/S

=& I 4+ —+ un
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Glossary of Terms

The following 15 a glossary of a number of the terms and acronyms

which can be found within this document

Adjusted aperating profit

Profit before interest, tax, amortisation of acquired intangibles
and rationalisation costs relating to the acquisition of Vetxx
Holdings A/S

AdJjuated pre-tax profit
Profit before tax, amortisation of acquired intangibles and
raticnalisation costs relating to the acquisition of VetXX Holdings A/S

Cortigol

A hommone which s made by the adrenal glands its production 1s
increased during episodes of stress and it has many effects on
the body It helps regulate blood pressure, the immune system
and helps balance the effect of nsulin to keep the blood sugar at
normal levels

Cushing's Disease

A condition caused by excess cortisol (see below) and 15 named
after the physician who first descrbed the conditicn in humans in
the early twentieth century

FDA
LS Food and Drug Administration, a federal agency of the US
department of Health and Human Services

Hyperthyroldiem

Occurs when the thyroid glands produce excassive amounts of
thyroid hormone This causes an increasa in the animal's metabolism
{the rate at which energy 1s burnt up)

100

Intertrigo

Refers to a bactenal fungal or wral infection that has developed ai the
sie of broken skin due to inflammation of body folds This infection 1s
comman in degs wath folds such as Pugs or Shar Pers

Malassexzia
Yaasts that cause a secondary inflammatory skn dissase Malassezia
15 often found In litis externa

MHRA
Medicines and Healthcare products Regulatory Agency, an
executive agency of the Department of Health

NSAID

Non-Steroidal Anti-tnflammatory Drug, essentially drugs which relieve
pan sweling, stfiness and inflammation  Equipalazone 1s the leading
NSAID for the treatment of musculoskeletal disorders in the horse

Otitls Externa
A condition which causes inflammation of the external ear canal
{the tube between the outer ear and the ear drum)

Staphylococcal infections

Communicable conditions caused by the Staphylococcus type of
pactena and generally charactensed by pyoderma or the formation of
abscesses

Surface Pyoderma

Pyederma 1s the medical term used to denote infections of the skin
causet by bactena Surface Pyoderma i1s a bactenal infection which is
confined to the surface of the skin, one of the commonest types s
known as Pyotraumatic Dermatitis facute moist dermatitis, or *hot
spots”} It i1s typfied by localised tching, moist, reddened skin

patches and ulceratad lesions
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